AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
6:00 p.m. Tuesday, January 16, 2024

The Greene County Commission will meet at the Greene County Courthouse on Tuesday,
January 16, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor) in the
Courthouse.

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Jason Cobble
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Lisa Anderson
*Roll Call

Proclamations

A Proclamation to declare February 8%, 2024, as Tusculum University Day in Greene County

Public Hearing

Approval of Prior Minutes

Veterans Report

Financial Report from Board of Education
Reports from Solid Waste Department
Committee Minutes

Election of Notaries

Old Business

Resolutions

A

B.

A resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget, General Purpase Schanl Fund, for changes in
revenues & expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 in the amount of $2,960,843.91

A resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget, General Purpose School Fund, for changes in
revenues & expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 in the amount of $361,186.00

A resolution authorizing the Greene County Sheriff's Department to donate two UHF Radio/Repeaters to the
Cocke County Emergency Responder's Association- Exhibit A

A resolution authorizing the County Mayor to enter into an agreement to lease parking spaces at the former
Takoma Hospital Building to Coolidge Street Partners- Exhibit A

A resolution to remove Crow Fly Lane from the official Greene County Road List (Second Reading)

A resolution urging the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee to enact laws to facilitate nullification of
certain Federal Action and Federal Overreach to uphold State Sovereignty- Exhibit A

A resolution to abolish the Office of Constable in Greene County, Tennessee (First Reading)

A resolution approving the Greene County Purchasing Department’s Internal Control Assessment coupled
with its Amended Policies and Procedures- Exhibit A

Other Business

Adjournment

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Nick Gunter



**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES AND
ANNEX HOLIDAY CLOSURES**

Saturday, January 13, 2024 - County Clerk’s Office Closed
Monday, January 15, 2024 — Martin Luther King Jr. Day — Annex & Courthouse Closed
*THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M. **

*THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024**



REGULAR COUNTY COMMITTEE MEETINGS

JANUARY 2024
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16 6:00 P.M. COMMISSION MEETING COURTHOUSE
THURSDAY, JANUARY 18 3:30 P.M. ANIMAL CONTROL ANNEX
TUESDAY, JANUARY 23 8:30 A.M. ZONING APPEALS (IF NEEDED) ANNEX
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24 8:30 AM. INSURANCE COMMITTEE ANNEX

FEBRUARY 2024
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5 3.30 P.M. EDUCATION COMMITTEE CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 7 8:30 A.M. BUDGET & FINANCE ANNEX
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8 3:00 AM. EMS BOARD ANNEX
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13 1:00 P.M. PLANNING ANNEX
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13 3:30 PM. 911 BOARD ANNEX-DOWNSTAIRS
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 19 HOLIDAY ANNEX & COURTHOUSE
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20 6:00 P.M. COUNTY COMMISSION COURTHOUSE
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 27 8:30 AM. ZONING APPEALS (IF NEEDED) ANNEX
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 28 8:30 A.M. INSURANCE COMMITTEE ANNEX
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 29 6:00 P.M. AGRICULTURE MEETING ANNEX

MARCH 2024
MONDAY, MARCH 4 3.30 P.M. EDUCATION COMMITTEE CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
TUESDAY, MARCH 5 HOLIDAY- ELECTION ANNEX & COURTHOUSE
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6 8:30 A.M. BUDGET & FINANCE ANNEX
TUESDAY, MARCH 12 1:00 P.M. PLANNNG ANNEX
TUESDAY, MARCH 12 3:30 P.M. 911 BOARD ANNEX-DOWNSTAIRS
MONDAY, MARCH 18 6:00 P.M. COUNTY COMMISSION COURTHOUSE
TUESDAY, MARCH 26 8:30 AM. ZONING APPEALS (IF NEEDED) ANNEX
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 27 8:30 A.M. INSURANCE COMMITTEE ANNEX
FRIDAY, MARCH 29 HOLIDAY- GOOD FRIDAY ANNEX & COURTHOUSE

SATURDAY, MARCH 30

HOLIDAY

**THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

COUNTY CLERKS OFFICE



A PROCLAMATION TO DECLARE FEBRUARY 8, 2024, AS
TUSCULUM UNIVERSITY DAY IN GREENE COUNTY

WHEREAS, Tusculum University has been an integral part of Greene County, Tennessee, since its
founding in 1794, being the first institution of higher learning in Tennessee and the twenty-eighth aldest in
the nation. Founded on Christian principles and living up to their title as "The Pioneers”. Tusculum University
was the first institution of higher education in Tennessee affiliated with the Presbyterian Church (LS A) to
admit women and African American students; and,

WHERAS, Tusculum University has endured many challenges including the Civil War, the tragedies
of two world wars in the early twentieth century. Often led by its own students, the inatitution evolved and
adjusted to the new social realities ushered in by the civil rights, anti-war, and women's movements in the
1960s and 1970s. The instilution innovated In the 1980s and 90s with the adoption of a focused calendar
and a renewed commitment to service that brought higher education within reach of working adults across
the region; and,

WHEREAS, throughout its 230-year history, Tusculum University has provided exceptional
educational opportunities to counlless students, fostering their growth, knowledge, and character. Today,
Tusculum currently houses over seven hundred residential students that spend 1.6 million dollars that are
directly and indirectly injected into our local econory; and,

WHEREAS, Tusculum University has been an indispensable pillar of the community, contributing to
the eultural, social, and economic development of Greene County, and employs a full time equivalent of 260
staff members with an average annual payrall of 13.5 million, the University spends over 11 million in non-
salary items, and contributes a total of 58.3 million to the Greene County economy, and the students, faculty,
and staff provide over 90,000 hours of community service; and,

WHEREAS, Tusculum University has consistently demonstrated an unwavering commitment to
excellence in academia, arts, religion, athletics, and community engagement; and has nurtured a diverse and
inclusive environment, fostering understanding, respect, and collaboration among its students, faculty, and
staff, and,

WHEREAS, Tusculum University has been an immense source of pride for all of Greene County,
their most meaningful and storied history has been, and continues to be, written by the countless actions and
leadership of its graduates as they have fanned out over the globe to do the work for which they were
educated and trained; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, We, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Cal Doty, Mayor of the Tawn
of Greeneville, Alan Corley, Mayor of the City of Tusculum, William K. Kerr, Mayor of the Town of Baileyton,
and Rick Cunningham, Mayor of the Town of Mosheim, do hereby proclaim the 8" day of February 2024, as
“Tusculum University Day” in all of Greene County.

We highly encourage all residants of Greene County to recognize and celebrate the invaluable contributions
that Tusculum University has made to our community. Let us honor the exceptional legacy of Tusculum
University and its past and continued commitment to excellence in education, growth and inclusion of all
students, and spirited volunteerism and generous community support by supporting and wishing "OUR
PIONEERS" much continued success.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the seal of Greene County,
Tennessee to be affixed this 16™ day of January 2024

O My

evin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor Cal Doty, Town of Greeneville Mayor

Alan Corley, City of Tusculum Mayor William K. Kerr, Town of Baileyton Mayor

Rick Cunningham

, Town of Mosheim Mayor

il <



STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
DECEMBER 18, 2023
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in session on December 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.
at the Greene County Courthouse in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor) in the Courthouse.

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioner Brad Peters was asked by Mayor Morrison for
everyone to take a moment of silence for the passing of Former County Mayor Roger Jones,
before giving the invocation. Commissioner Josh Arrowood led the Pledge to the Flag.

Commissioner Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White

were present. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. Therc were 18 present

and 3 absent.



PROCLAMATIONS

PROCLAMATION TO HONOR THE GREENE COUNTY HERITAGE TRUST
NOVEMBER 2023

Mayor Morrison announced that he and Greeneville Mayor Cal Doty do hereby,
proclaim December “Greene County Heritage Trust Month, by encouraging all Greene
Countians to join in celebrating the Greene Count Heritage Trust and its many contributions to
the Restoration, Preservation, and Commemoration of our shared history. “

A PROCLAMATION TO INAUGURATE THE 2023 CHRISTMAS SEASON IN
GREENEVILLE AND GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Mayor Morrison announced the Proclamation to inaugurate the 2023 Christmas Season

in Greeneville and Greene County, Tennessee was on December 1, 2023.

PROCLAMATION
FOR
HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH
Mayor Morrison announced the Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness for
the month of January 2024. He asked Greene County Sheriff Chief Deputy David Beverly

to explain the problems of human trafficking in Greene County and what precautions has

been taken at the Greene County Sheriff’s Department.



PUBLIC HEARING
Commission Carpenter called on Val LaRose from the Roby Adult Center to speak
to the Commission requesting more funds for the Roby Adult Center. She thanked
Commissioner Kiker, Greene County Clerk Lori Bryant, Commissioner Quillen, and

County Mayor Kevin Morrison for the Christmas gift donations for the Christmas Party at

the Roby Adult Center.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Burkey to approve the prior minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs,
Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.
Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. Mayor Morrison announced the

prior minutes were approved.



REPORTS
VETERAN’S REPORT
FINANCIAL REPORT FROM BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORTS FROM SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT
COMMITTEE MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Murray and seconded by Commissioner Bible
to approve the Veteran’s Report, Financial Report from Board of Education, Reports from
Solid Waste Department, and Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve

Veteran’s Report, Financial Report from Board of Education, Reports from Solid Waste

Department, and Committee Minutes passed.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Morrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approved by the
Commission. A motion was made by Commissioners Bowers and seconded by Commissioner
Shelton to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Clemmer,
Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. Commissioner Carpenter abstained. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter,
and Quillen were absent. There were 17 — aye; 0 —nay; 1 — abstain; and 3 — absent. The

Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the notaries.



OLD BUSINESS
VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT
Mayor Morrison recognized Gary Compton, Issac Ottinger and Harold Williamson, and
James Foshie with the Volunteer Fire Departments, who had displayed the new
firefighter equipment which was funded by a Firefighter Grant that secured the turnout gear
for the Greene County Volunteer Fire Departments, in which Greene County provided a match
that was administered through the First Tennessee Development District. The Community
Development Block Grant secured $425,000 for the block grant for the turnout gear for the
Volunteer Fire Departments. Harold Williamson explained how the turnout gear was distributed

through the fire departments and he also talked about the Radio Grant.

GREENE VALLEY DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER PROPERTY
Mayor Morrison announced the approval of the property transfer by the State
Building Commission. Mayor Morrison stated, “Jeff Taylor, Greene County Partnership CEO
and President, and Tusculum Mayor Alan Corley, and myself returned Thursday afternoon with
335 acres of Greene Valley property in hand. So at the end of January when the lawyers get
done doing the formalities with the deeds, we are today the owners of 335 acres at Greene Valley

with significant interest already in what needs to go there.”



RESOLUTION A: A RESOLUTION TO REMOVE CROW FLY LANE
FROM THE OFFICIAL GREENE COUNTY ROAD LIST (FIRST READING)

A motion was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve a Resolution to remove Crow Fly Lane from the official Greene County
Road List (First Reading).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,
Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $850 TO THE
SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FOR FUNDS RECEIVED FROM VARIOUS
SOURCES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Kiker and seconded by Commissioner Murray
to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $850
to the Sheriff’s Department for funds received from various sources for the Fiscal Year
June 30, 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,

and White vote yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was

18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $4,385 TO
THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FOR FUNDS RECEIVED FROM AAA BAIL
BONDING FOR INMATE TRANSPORTATION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson and seconded by Commissioner
Crawford to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating
a total of $4,385 to the Sheriff’s Department for funds received from AA Bail Boning for
inmate transportation for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was

18 — aye; 0 — nay; 3 — absent. The motion to approve

the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION D: A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATED $12,600 FOR
TRAINING WITH INTEGRITY K-9 FOR THE K-9 UNIT AND THE PURCHASE
OF DATA PROCESSING EQUIPMENT FROM THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT
RESTRICTED FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Smithson to approve a Resolution to appropriated $12,600 for training with Integrity K-9
for the K-9 Unit and the purchase of data processing equipment from the Sheriff’s Department
Restricted Fund for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,

and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was

18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE JAIL IN THE AMOUNT OF 14,734
FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE TRAINING EQUIPMENT GRANT FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2024.

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Shelton to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds
to the Jail in the amount of $14,734 for the annual allocation of the Training Equipment Grant
for the FYE June 30, 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION F: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE JAIL IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,327
FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE MENTAL HEALTH TRANSPORTATION
GRANT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds
to the Jail in the amount of $34, 327 for the annual allocation of the Mental Health
Transportation Grant for the FYE June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY TO APPROPRIATE AN INCREASE IN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH GRANT OF $8,400 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Burkey to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate and
in the State of Tennessee Department of Health Grant of $8,400 for the Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2024,

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioner to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioner Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION H: A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE
GREENE COUNTY ELECTION COMMISSION RECEIVED AS A REIMBURSMENT
FROM VENDOR SUPPLYING ELECTRONIC POLLBOOKS AND SOFTWARE TO THE
GREENE COUNTY ELECTION COMMISSION

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Peters to approve a Resolution to appropriate funds to the Greene County Election Commission
received as a reimbursement from vendor supplying electronic pollbooks and software to the
Greene County Election Commission.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,

and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote

was 18 —aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION I: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO REAPPROPRIATE FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT
OF $35,000 TO THE UT EXTENSION OF AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT FROM
THE SOIL CONSERVATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE ADDITION OF A 4-H POSITION
SPONSORED IN PART BY TSU FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Smithson and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to reappropriate funds
in the amount of $35,000 to the UT Extension of Agriculture Department from the Soil
Conservation Department for the addition of a 4-H position sponsored in part by TSU for the
FYE June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION J: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT
OF $610,000 TO THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FOR THE PURCHASE OF TWO AMBULANCES WITH POWERLOADS FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds
in the amount of $610,000 to the Emergency Medical Services Department for the purchase
of two ambulances with POWERLOADS for the FYE June 30, 2024,

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION K: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION
OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE APPROVING AN ECONOMIC IMPACT PLAN
FOR THE MOSHEIM CROSSING DEVELOPMENT AREA-EXHIBIT A
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution of the County Commission of Greene County, Tennessee
approving an Economic Impact Plan for the Mosheim Crossing Development area-Exhibit A.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,

Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent.

The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION L: A RESOLUTION TO ALLOCATE FUNDS TO MONITOR AND
ENFORCE THE OBLIGATION OF BUSINESS/ENTITIES REQUIRED TO REPORT,
COLLECT, AND REMIT PRIVILEGE TAXES FOR PROVIDING LODGING AND/OR
ACCOMMODATIONS TO TRANSIENTS IN GREENE COUNTY, TN
A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissioner Smithson
to approve a Resolution to allocate funds to monitor and enforce the obligation of business/
entities required to report, collect, and remit privilege taxes for providing lodging and/or
accommodations to transients in Greene County, TN.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,

and White voted yes. Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was

18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



OTHER BUSINESS
APPOINT NANCY H. SOUTHERLAND TO THE LIBRARY BOARD
OF TRUSTEES AS BARBARA BRITTON WILL BE EXISTING OFF THE
BOARD EFFECTIVE JANUARY 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by
Commissioner Lawing to appoint Nancy H. Southerland to the Library Board
of Trustees as Barbara Britton will be existing off the Board effective
January 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads.
The following vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible,
Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray,
Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners
Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and
3 —absent. The motion to appoint Nancy H. Southerland to the Library Board

of Trustees as Barbara Britton will be existing off the Board effective January

2024.



OTHER BUSINESS

Architect Dave Wright gave a progress report on renovations at the former
Takoma Hospital. He said that about $3.2 million has been spent so far at the
old hospital for items such as HVAC unit purchases and installations, new roof
installations, window replacement and employee clinic renovations. The
employee clinic has been open at the site since August. Wright stated that
about $1.2 million had been spent to renovate the old church at the property
which will house the University of Tennessee Agricultural Extension Office.
The local UT Ag Extension office is expected to move into the new facility

in January.



OTHER BUSINESS
AMENDMENT ON RESOLUTION D

Commissioner Murray asked to amend correction the wording on
Resolution D:  The second paragraph should read:
WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff’s Department wishes to use funding
from its restricted account in the amount of three thousand six hundred dollars
($3,600) for the K-9 unit to train with Integrity K-9 and nine thousand ($9,000)
for the purchase of data processing equipment.

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by
Commissioner Smithson to amend the correction on the wording on Resolution D.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads.
The following vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible,
Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing, Murray,
Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was
18 —aye; 0 —nay; and 3 — absent. The vote was 18 — aye; 0 — nay; and 3 — absent.

The motion to amend the correction on the wording on Resolution D passed.



ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by
Commissioner Anderson to adjourn the meeting.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads.
The following vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible,
Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Crawford, Dabbs, Kiker, Lawing,
Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.
Commissioners Cobble, Gunter, and Quillen were absent. The vote was 18 — aye;
0 —nay; and 3 — absent. The motion to approve the appointment of the meeting
passed.

Commissioner Kathy Crawford gave the Closing Prayer.

*The GREENE COUNTY EMPLOYEE CHRISTMAS BREAKFAST IS
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 19, BEGINNING AT 8:00 A.M. IN THE

GREENEVILLE FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH FAMILY CENTER*

*THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT
COMMISSION MEETING IS THURSDAY, JANUARY 4, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M.

*THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024*



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

Monthly report for December 2023

January 4, 2024

* Electronic claims submitted: 157
* Mailed claims, documents, etc.: 82
* Telephane calls: 239
*  Walk-ins: 71
* Appointments: 62
* Referrals to other agencies: 47
(i.e., Food Bank, Volunteers of America, Appalachian Regional Coalition on
Homelessness, James H Quillen VA Med Ctr
* Veteran’s Organization’s Meetings:
Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990
American Legion Post 64
Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42
Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League

Sincerely,

Semip A0

Sonja Forbes
Director/VSO



€202 'Ul0E JeqWBAON
JJoday |eloueuld

s|jooyos AlJunon ausaln)



00°0 'S'd'd = - -SeLIT-IT
{v8982'T) Agunuuy ore - - bREITTHL
LS7TSS'T ey = - -I8E1Z-HL
00001 5U0RONP3Q LOILY PSID = - -OBETZ-WHT
000 Aupqesia ajqesn -« -DLETTIHT
0070 Heunsni] - -99E1Z-THI
00°0 JUNOCOY sbuiAes yyedH - - -SOETZ-THY
000 SS3LYIT |22 Siqes() = = -HOETT-THT
0070 WOTAN A9esn = - -PYETT-THT
00°0 3)r1 {oA 3jqensn - - -T9EIZ-THT
1L€6 S3|AT] pUY SIuALYSILIED « - -DOETIZ-THT
0070 ULUPOOSA WISPOL - -LSETTTHT
00°0 3jM1 SselIe] SITTIULSL - - -SSETTIHT
000 1oue) qesn - -ESETT-TbT
00°0 SUJ B Uuel BJRI0H = - -ZSETT-THI
000 {e1u3Q SWBURqdWe) = - -TSETZ-THT
00°0 s12uag dwaod - - -0SETZ-THT
000 Aep pajun - -6PETZ-THT
F::744 SUJ YitesH 0035U0) - - BYETZTHI
00°0 JUBPISY 3ygesn - = -SPETZ-THT
6 LBL'TT 25v1 - Buipuads X314 - ©led 19PS - SHETZ-THL
B9b6 SUJ SIYPEDL [UOREN - HPETT TP
00°0 su] AJyapld uesUSWY - -EPETT-THT
(oz'1) 31 21qesN - TPETT-IBT
$H°0£9°9 Sul JpE3) 0 19 - - -THETZAIMT
000 eLpwesuRL - OFEITIPT
j: Y4 1935 PUGAH JudwRipey - - ZEETT-TRE
$9°€90'7 1S9M 18219 H10t EE 34 ¢42 14}
{89°€66°€) SUONNGLAUOD WILINY - - -DEETZ-THI
000 uopENPsQ uedIpal 3a4otdw3 - - -SZETZ-THY
000 xe] AQunsag |epos - - -DZETZ-THI
00'0 predufy puy PRUYIM XeL Swoou] = - -0TETZ-THI
(1H°565"SHE) ajqeAed sjunay = - -00T1IZ-Tv1
L9°TES'TBSTOT S3I2UNOSHY JO SMOLANQ PIUAAQ PUR SISSY |01
L9'TEG'TBSTOT sessy (Mol
S9TEL'8bLT U S I0L1d 10 SARSY 0L PBYD dx3 - - -009PT-Tb1
65'8¥5'88T 61 {I0QUOD) JBBA UBLIM) - SNIPUSAX3 = = -00SKT-TbT
ST96T°6LL (jnuoD) seouruquinoug parepinbijun - - -00THI-TET
TT°0EV 14619 S3NUIABY pajewnsy = = -00THT-THT
{00°£06'Z€T) xe) Auado.d 9|gepa|jodun H0J 3ouemoly = - -OISTT-THT
00°£STIIE'D 8jqeap00y saxeL Apadord - - -0OSTI-TbT
000 Spund BGRO woa4 Ang - ORPIT-THT
000 SWIBLILIBAD 12YI0 Wodd 3ng - - -OEPII-THT
(0z'0) 21qeAIRIY SWNODY - = -OTHIT-THT
TS ELYEED'TT JBISNIL YU UsED = OPITI-THI
98'1009 Jjueg ug yses = -0ETTI-THT
:uejeg uopduoSSQ JUNOIOY J3QUINN WNCRY
|ooys ssoding jessuldny TP pund
7o 1 9bed £Z0Z JAQUIAON pung ans g puny
WY $0:6 €£202/02/Z1 dWiL/¥ed pund-qns pue pund Aq 329ys ouejey Aq 10yS 20ueien :Aq pojead

projmen epe) )]

uoReonpy jo piecg AQunod ausun

pauyaq 597 auwseN ejdwat



00'0 looyos esodingd fessuey  THT s|e301 punyg

(£9'1£8°T8S°TOT} Iouk|jeg PUNJ PUE ‘S2JN0SIY JO SMOPUT PALSRQ ‘SPRIIGe|T [EI0L

(9v"z59'188'0%) soginb3 [&oL
(00"000'002) 21 0y ueoT - paubisseun k- -0006€-T+1
(2855 THL'9) paubisseup -~ -00065-THT
{68°8v2'042) weibolq [00UPS PAPUSIXG - J8S ISUTION O uogesRdQ Jod paubissy - d53- -0LLYE-THL
{£9°sv5'78p) SANUASLT JUSWIAINY - LOREINPI JOJ POUBIsSY - QY -SS/PE-THT
(99°128'16) ssandng 0) sobpug - uoneanpl 104 paubissy OTT- -SSLPE-THT
(sTTo9's61) UoREDNp3 104 pubissy - -GS/PE-THT
(b1'661°6) 1BppET J8BIRY) - UORPNIISU Jog PAPLASIY - WD -095bE-ThT
(BE"T8Y'80T1°T) DA IOl - STOURIGIIOLT - - -QZTEE-THY
(ST961'642) B3 JUILMY - SOURIGWNOUI . - OTTHE-THT

(1Z2'6£T'T0LT6) Sopiigery 12301
0070 SNUIASY djqelisARUN/PRLIAIS] ARG - - -0666Z-1bT
(00'£Z8°4LT) soxe ] Apadold Juanbuliag pessRa - - -ShE6T-THT
{00°Z64'v66°S) soxe) Apadaid WaNg paLyRg - - -ObE6Z-THT
(Sp'0€2'v20'€7) (joguoy) senuassy - - -DOSSZ-TPL
(TT°0E4'146'19) (jonuo)) suoneudoddy - - -0pIgZ-THT
S0'1Z6'%1 S0SSBULRL JO TS 0L I - - -DESTZ-THI
(00000052} spung Jatio 0L ang - - -DOSIZ-THT
00°0 Pl = = -6ETT-THT
ouejeg uondiIsag JUN0XY PGUINK JUNCIY
100yRs asodung [eJeusd TPT: pung

740 ¢ abed £€TOZ QLISAON pung qns g pung

punj-gns pue pund Aq 39ys ouejeg Aq 399ys Fouesy :Aq pageasd

WY $0%6 £202/02/21 oL/

pioymen) eihe)

UCREINPJ JO piBog AJUROD SUIID

pouysq D9 :wepN geidwd)



T[T 609 8oL] TobS VE TE CPP EOL T UULS85EIS]  OOOOEZZIT o000 DO O0E ZLL'T INRIAIY VJ0T HIR1D WWI0L  U00FY
0L'%00°¢2) Y%l6'SE 0£°008°9T {0E£'869'S) 00700022 000 00000¢C U AEE 1
(P0°S0Z'+9T) %bE'ET TL489°8LT°T (6z'Tyb'181) 00'000°09€°T 000 00°000°09€°T SYI9 g suonqLQue) 0LSb¥
000 %£9"99 00°00T (00°002) 00°00€ 000 00°'00E 1enpIIPU] LLOLY PAISACORY sabelueq 0gstt
000 %SLBET (00°S2Z) 00'seL?) 0070002 000 000002 usLaIND3 JC 3j2S 0£Shy
00'0 ja0png ON 000 000 000 000 000 P34 08T+
(80°609°6) %90°6T 56'6£9°TH1 (50°09£°€E) 00°000°SLT 000 00°000°S4T SpUNJ3y SNOBUE(ISISHY 0L 14
00’0 %EP' SP L072€9°T (£6°29£°T) 00°000°€ 000 00°000°€ SjeLgelW PRPPAIRY JO 3(BS 14844
(05°L¥T°S) %EP 88 05°L29'v (05°24£7°S8) 00°000°0t 000 00°000°0p s|equay /ased (174874
(&£ ep9'LB) %8B0°20Z (09°S¥9°8LT) (09'S¥9'€SE) 00°000°SLT 0070 00°000°S.1 pawe] }sa.ul [1]8874
TEFOIC 6L) YelETE 6L BBY EEL (I GEEIUT] OU¥PLS OPE 00 DOFLE OPE ____ SJJIA83S INJUHIT 804 SIDUVHD 1v10L  UOOEFR
000 %00°0 00'000°1 000 00°000°T 000 00000 T HIoLD puno.ibyoey [euilli 181 €85t
(00°8£8'02) %LS'Sh 88°CET’0TT {z1°062°26) 00°%25°20T 000 00°$TS20Z PIIYD-$39J BIAIRS AJIUNWIWOD T18SED
(£6°'8¢8°2) %bLCT L£°018°69 (£9'681°01) 00°000°08 00°0 00°000°08 S{OOURS [ENPIAIPUT WO.Y SIAIS3Y 174334
(9b"66%) %IL8 S 9'Sh (9'SSE'p) 00°000°'0S 000 00°000°0S SWIASAS JOIQ uonepodsuesl TESEY
000 %00°0 00°000°T 000 00°000°T 000 00°000°T SIUNLPEJ DUIpUBA 413133 4
000 %00°0 00°000°9 000 00°000'9 000 00°000°9 ADUI|I 4O 3fes f41123 4
1ETZI5C) UoEL CE gT¥E9 | WL 508 0005 ¢ o000 00005 ¢ SIIWH3d NV S35N30LT 1101 UO0LF
\S9°45T) LT Lt S7P6ES'T (#2°508) 00°005"2 000 00°005¢ SSla0[] SDEMIER ij4413
TECISLTPIET) Te8C IE EEPID00C 0T (ZOGBUBESP)  OUUULBESFE 00T UUCULBEEPT SAXVL VOO T IVIOL 000UV
0o'g %05°L1 00°0tt (00°04) 00°00% 000 0000y SSXE] €00 | MOyTeS 1o G6EQF
000 %00°0 00°000°02 000 00'000°0C 000 00'000°0Z Xet as519x3 jueg 0zeoy
(Zb'€22) %ET'8 85'88S'Y P11y} 00°000°S 000 00°000°s Xe] juug dn S£20b
{09'88°508) %I TH 6TTILTHLY (1£'887°8EE°E) 00°000°00T'8 00°0 00°000°00T°8 Xej S9JeS uondQ (2307 0120%
(SE'T1T°E) %I0PT T9°L6¥'1C (8£°205°¢) 00°000°SC 000 00°000°5Z J3LRO SBXe JO Nor Ul SJUAWAR £910F
(86°59£'£2) %88'L¥ 64 P0S'SET (12's6¥veT) 00°000°09Z 000 00°000°09C AN (€207 SeXe L JO NBI Ul SJUIWARY 2910
(56°S0€) %08°SC STOLY'Y (52'625°T) 00°000°9 000 0070009 VAL S8xe] JOo NS Ul SJusiuAed 19100
000 %000 00°00T°T 00°0 00°001°1 000 00°00T°1 sexel dn-yd 0STOb
(0S"89€°F) %96°'PE £9°5LT°Th (2€922°'2T) 00'000°'S9 000 00'000°99 Ajjeuad 18 35310u] 14104
(95°490°) %TE'8C 8T L8F'bS (2¢221s°12) 00°'000°9L 00’0 00°000°9L MBID YN 0€T0b
(09°12) %ES'TC §6°95T (SO°Er) 00°00C 000 007002 Aoanayueg uoQds)|i0) I9lsTUL SZ104
(89°£01°ST) %E8'CS 6£'868'+8 (19'101°S6)} 00°000°08T 000 00°000'081 YA 10Ud-SHORDID0D S,2R5TU L 0ZT0p
(60"0S6°€SH) %6891 SS'€65'690°S (S"904°0€0°'T) 00°000°00T‘9 000 00'000°00T"9 Xe] Apadold Jusund 0110
INUIAIY JUILIND pazieay pazjjeasun pazieay alA pajewns3 |ejoL sjudwWpuUsY 353 [eUlBLO

% JOOYOS IsodIng |RI1BUdD) 1T :pung
T 40 T abed £T0T 19quidAoN pung gns Aq
DU ANUDASY

Wd ZH°T £202/61/2T sounl /aqeq punj-gns Aq S9NUIAIY JO JuaWIje}s 291 'AQ pajeal)

pIojMeI) BIABY

uoizeoNp3 jO piecy AJURC)) FUDAIL)

pauyaq Do WEN ejdwBL



BT OPS 951°9) oLl ZE Y9661 ZI6 8L \GFUOECPCUEL) TLUEP IP6 LD TTEOTELL UUL9C 8L 19 91 pund 103 [eJ0L
TOO U000 00 00U GZ 000 U0 000 52 000 T S308N0S §3HI0 1W1I0L  UDUGE
000 T %000 00000 6L 000 00000 G2 000 00700052 1 i 00B6Y
(US8s 9) TSt OF 19252457  (bedsE O8] OO UOEGZ8T [0 DOUEGZB8T INFWNEIACD V8303 V101l O0UZP
000 %000 0000001 o600 a0'a00ot 000 00000701 DAIES Bl 089%
(50°585°9) %68°€C S 19T (ov'gLe'cn) 00700095 000 00°000°95 UBWRSINQWISY J10Y 0b9Lb
000 %TS L £0'956'66 (£6'££6'91) 00°0£691T 00'0 00°0£6'91T 93835 yonoLU L |218pad IYI0 065.F
000 %00°0 00°000°S 000 00°000'S 000 00°000°S padadesipueH 3y Jo Uoleanps I 4 ¥4 4
TETEOT ZES 7) UBEY BE FECBLSBULL  VZLEGL PeoLl)] 1L DIV BLILVY TLESLELL OUEIE 909 v IISSINNILI0 IVIS 1vI0L  OO09F
000 %00 0 O00ZTE 000 DOOLTE 000 BOOLTE el aes B UB6oy
{96"EbEOE) %090°0b 9I°'pT9 18T b8'sLET2D) 00'000°€0€ 000 00°000°€0€ spung UOREINP3 31€)S JALD 0659¢
000 %000 00°000°T€ 000 00'000°'TE 000 00°000°T€ uogeonp3 s1IsALQg 0SS9%
00°0 38bpng ON (£0°008'5T) (£0°008°+C) 00'0 000 000 lappet Joase) 0199
000 %000 IT'E9T°ETT 000 TTE9T'EIT TTE9T°ETT 000 Ya1d pads S1S9
(1L°EL6°2ET) %L8'SC 96°891°921°T (b0'v£6°T65) 00'£bT6TST 000 00'EPT°615°T 3-21d 323 STS9b
(96'S8LELT') %666 $1'958'$59°G2 (9B8'EPT'S60°LT) 00"000°0SL T 000 00°000°052'¢Y USPNS UJ JUSURSIAU] 39558UUD L 07159
3INUDAIY JUILND pazijeay pazijeaiun paziesy AlA pajewnsd [ejol SJUIWPURY 153 fewiiuQ
% [oOYDS asodung |esauany s pung
T 40 T vbed £Z07 19qWBAON puny gns Aq
USRS INUSADY
PUNJ-qNS Af SINUIAIY 30 JUBWIEIS 9 Aq pajeRId

Wd ZH'T £202/61/2T

oung /33eq

plojmen) eiAy asn

uoneanp3j 10 pEeog AQuUnod) ausaly

pauyaQ DY SWeN 3jejdwa ]



BhT+'b (25 z60°018) 09°2£9'TE 88'62L’S 0070 {00°005’£¥8) 00'0 (D0°00S°£+8) wiwdinbg vogannsuy enbay €24
%eeby (289 bhT) 00°00pT 89°6ET 2T 06°ETY (00'800°652) 00'0 (00"800°652) sebiey) IS0 665
%I08z- (S00TT'9W) 00°0 (so'0TT’0T) 000 (00°0019€) 000 (00°001'9€) sjeuagely puy sanddns opo  66b
%81'8EC  05°££S'TTT 00°0 06°£ZE'T6T 000 (00052'08) 00'0 (00°05208) aemyos  TZb
%Ig /81  LTEO6'EY $0'789'6 T8 00'0 {00000°05) 000 (00°000°05) purog - ooyl &b
%00°0 {00°000'S) 00'0 000 000 (007000'S) 000 (00°000°S) Juema - SjooqpeL  0FP
%9559 (59°Z80°6Y) 85°6YE'T {74906 FARq ¢:3°14 (00°005'2HT) 000 {00°00S'Tr1) saddns jeuopongsul 62
%0085 (000092} 00°000°6T 00°042'92 600 {(00°000'82) 00°0 (00°000'82) SOTIAIRG PIELUCD PO 66E
%I8pZ  (1E°606°CT) 00°0 69°065'Y £9'981 {00°005°8T) 000 (00°005°8T} 1dinb3-sa0IAIaS Jedoy puy soueusjulely  9EE
%00'00T  00°099 000 00°099 000 000 000 00'0 sopuaby a1eAld UM spenuoy  TTE
wIL6T  (0T'96T'6Y) 00°0 08'€08°0Z 14099 (00°000°02) 000 (00°00004) uonez||iqels PUOAH - uawsigay  LTC
%ezsT  (LeuLE'stD 000 £9'bT2'9L PO 1LV (00°209°108) 000 (00°709'10€) asenipajy LAoiduy  ZTC
%11 (9°656'6) 00°0 vS 09T 00°0 {00°000"92) 00°0 (00°000°92) uonesuadwoy JuswAodwaun 01T
%9E0T  (DOTETT'9E) 00°'0 00241y 00°009 (00°00€"0t) 000 (09°00¢’0b) souensu] s 80T
%egor  (68°906°080°2) 00'0 1T°90€"vTH'T 7S Y6EVET (00°€7T2°505°€) 000 {00°€12’505°E) suesnsuy [@Ipa  £0T
%ETh  (68°TTYE) 00'0 IT'S6E°T 9'c8y (oo'818°s) 0070 (00'818's) soueunsur a4 902
%06'27  (L8'2£8°6+0'T) 00°0 £1°062'90% 0€°Z6€'6ZT (00'€Z195P'T) 00'0 (00°sTT'95+'D) uswaugay A|ms 0T
%bT's  (01'85£'596) 00’0 06'8bZ'¥ZE 0T°562'€07 (00°209'682'1) 00°0 {(00°£09'682'1) Aunoas jepos  T0T
%2009 (6872Z6'TH) 00°0 T1°£20°€9 56'869'TZ {00°000°50T) 000 (00°000°S0T) SI9YOED] SIMRSANS PayIs)-uoN 86T
%6675 (£8'£06°T€) 00’0 £1'760°LE 06's2E"8 (00°000°0L) 000 (00°000°02) sIsydea) Jympsqns payiey  S6T
%zs'el  (1T°2L0104) 000 6L Ly6'8bT 65'T1L'Th (oo'0z0’0S8) 00°0 {00°020°058) sabem g seueles B0 68T
%ITTZ  (ETETL'0L6) 00'0 LLpLL'652 86'751°08 (00°885'0£Z'T) 000 (00'88v'0c2'1} suesissy feuonednpy €91
%0501 (00°002'€S) 00°0 00°00€°9 00°00E"9 (00°'000°09) 00°0 (00°000'09) spenuo) papuspq Jeppe] 1eee)  LZT
%L2'ST  (98°E9ETh) 00°0 I 9E9°L 8E'GHS'T {00°000°05) 00°0 (00°0000S) weibosd Jappe PR LTT
%96'ST  (61°EL6'H0L'bT) 000 1R'Z€9°P5T'S 2116691 (00°909'658'61) 000 (00°909'658°6T) siowesf 91T
003TL
mg Pduejeqg soueiqunouy  saumipuadxg  ssunyjpuadx3y yofipng sjuswpuawy jJunowy 32bpng uondsag Ny  JIQUINN JUN0IDY
196png pasaqunoudun  Buipueising 9eQ-03-1e9A 3eq-03-YIUOKW papuawy wbpng
3O %

[o0Yds 9sodind [eJauds WY - pung

T 40 T 2bed €707 2qWISAON
Wd £5:T £202/61/21 roulL] fa3eq pund Aq [qO Aq AlRWWINS SUNNPUIAXT JO JUILUI)ELS 091 :Aq pajeasd
piomes) ejhey BT uoneonpd Jo pieog AJuno) U9 pauyag D91 dwepN ajejdwa]



00ETL

chirir  (T6'S68'T6T'E)  VBELT'L 8€°LTT'06T'T YL '88Y'6EE (t1rzec’ose’y)  (TTEST'ETT) (oo ver‘LLT'y) weiboid uonesnp3 [eRdS  00ZTL I=|0L
%859 (v5'692°5) 000 9b°0€C 9b'0EC {00°005"€) (00°005°€) 000 Juawdinb3 uogeonpd jepads 27
%00Sy  (8EHHSY) 16'9LL'T 86T 98'7/8'1 (11°€92'8) (r1'€18%} (00°05£°€) sjelsel puy sapddns 1aippo 669
%I6'66  {Z9'€65) 06'96%"S 8b°60t'8 SEBLY (00°005°+T) 000 (00°005'pT} salddns jeuoponasul 6
%00°0 (00°00S) 000 000 00’0 (00"008) 000 (00"00S) 1dinb3-seowuns seday puy dueuUelN  SEE
%Q0°0 {00°005) 000 0070 000 {00005} 000 {00'005) Bunss) puy uopeneas  ZCE
%86 (OTTILT) 00°0 08'882'SL 00'8L6'T {00°000°24) 000 (00°c00°2L) sapuaby eAlld M spepuo)  ZTE
%999z (6t°£98S) 000 IS'ZETT L80EL (o0 000°8) 000 (00°000°8) uonezIiqeIS PHGAH - JRWaMRY  LTT
%867  {(0b'9sT'se} 000 09'815'01 9L'90b'E (00°SL2Sh) (00084} (00°5656°tF) amaipaly ;shoidug  €TC
%000 (00'52€'2} 00'0 00'0 00'0 (00'sze'?) (00’s2) (00°0522) uonesusdwo) JuswAodwaun  0TZ
%TS'T (00'008°S) 000 00°0ST 00°0ST (00056'S) (00°0st) (00005°S) suensuf |jusq 80T
%zr'sE  (£1'8£6°28€) 000 £8°881°80Z VAR 2N o4 (00°£91'168) (00"006°2%) (00°£97'8%S) ouelnsu] jexps  L0T
%ocgz  (8€°228) o0'0 79'92¢ z€'89 (00'pST'T) {00°sb) (00°601°1) aouainsul 3y 90T
%S0t (ST9RLLOT) 00’0 SLY6L'ES $6'6bL LT (00°185'192) (00°001'S) (00°184'952) wewamey &S5 $0Z
%E9'TT  (BEELE'EST) 00'0 /WL 60'9€6°CT (00°969°s61) (00°00£"s) (00-96¢°761) Aumas epos 10T
%I0'¢ST  80°'S6S'6 000 80°565'91 8T'SkS'p (00°000°2) 000 (00°000°L) SI9UDRS] IMASNS PAYMID-UON 86T
%ze'ss  (LUpEC'E) 00'0 £8'599°1 B1'S6S (00'000°S) 00'0 (00°000°S) sIayoea] aImasqns paye)  S6T
%b1'0Z  (0S¥STE0E) 00°0 05°99¥'9L YT r6Y'TT (00°12L'6L8) 00°0 {00'TZL'6LE) ibojovied ysads  TLT
%9057 (9£'65H'8¢€) 000 VO'6LT'ETT 5L 'SE (00°6£91Sb) (00°005'78) {00°6£166€) Kuessissy (euoieonpa €91
%s9'sz  (baep0'os) 00’0 91'289°6C ST'996'S (00" 1eL'STT) 00°0 (00°1€£/81T) sy punegqawoy  BZT
%0007 {20'00T°E) 000 86°66L 99'997 (00°000°t) 000 (00°000'y) we.bo.d oppe sy /1T
%08'v2  (0£'998°299'T) 000 0L°8TY'8bS 6£°150'68T (00's62°T12°0) 00°0 (00°562°112'D) siayesy 91T
00ZTL
%0Z'8C (IT'88S5'€S8TT) ET6TLHCT 99'L1885+'8 L8'B6E98ET (00°SET'LEV'OE)  00°0 (00°SET'LEVOE) welboid vopnnsur Jenbey  GOTTL 1eloL
%00'00T  00°0Z9°6S 00°079'65 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00'0 ewdinba B0 064
00TTL
ox3 NVuejeg seoueIqQWNDL]  saunjipusdx3  sainjpuadxy 16png SJUAWpUWY  junouuy 326png uondinsag JUNCDY  JIGNN JUNODY
P6png pssaqumousun  Buipueising 9)eg-03-1evA 33eq-01-YJuon popuswy yobpng
30 %

jooyos asoding jesuan IvT . pungd

#1 Jo z sbed €207 J9qWRAON
Wd €5:T £202/6T/2T awl farea puni Aq [go Ag Alewiuns Sainjjpusdxy jo Juswiajels 291 :Aq pajeasd
paoymen) ejAey 498N ucQEINP3 jJO pieog AJUNCD ALY peuyaq D97 ewep ajejdwol



%000 {00'0sT} 000 00°0 00'0 (oo"osT) 00'0 (00°0ST) uonesuadwo) juswioidwaun  0IZ
%00°0 (00'szT) 00’0 000 ag'o (00's22) 00'0 (00'sz2) . soueinsut [@ued 80T
%Iz9s  (0899b°S) 000 028102 ¥9°E0F'T (o0°ssv'et) 000 (00" sebzr) soueinsu] [eApdW  Z0Z
%0009  (08'8) 000 0zl o'z (00'70) 00°0 (00'ZD aoueansur 3y 90T
%61'sE  (6£'€66°2) 600 12’101y 61296 (00°559'1T) 00°0 (00'559'11) wewamy ayms  HOZ
%s6'0r  (Z0PIS'Y) 00’0 86'6Z1'E 89'0L (00'vH9°2) 000 (009} Anoss lepos  TOC
%00'ST  (9£'668'9b) 000 brees’st 80°TIT'S (00°€£5°29} 000 (00°€£5'79) sebiem 3 ssuejes B0 687
%ob'se  (0008Z'se) 00'0 00'008'ST 00°09T'E (00°080°1+} 00°0 {00°080'TH} puuosid e 291
%S8'0y  (SbZZ1’0E) 000 55'608'0 16'19T'p (00°££608) 000 {00°z£6'0S) lopaug/iosinedng  SOT
0TTIZL
%zobr (€9°8009ZS'T)  SY'9TOPLT 68 TET'9ZO’T LTTBL'6ST (o0'zsT'92L'7) 000 (007£51°92£°T) wesBosd UOQEINPI [CUOKIEIOA  QOETL 12304
"€5b'T 05'118'26T 66°6£9'Z51 1S 18E"VS 000 {00"0sev1)} 000 (o0r0se'yT) wdwdinb3 vopansuf jeuonecoA  0EL
%0070 (00 LL1'2T) 000 000 00'0 (00°2£1°2T) 000 (00°2£1°21) sabiey) PO 665
%66'9EE  bL°L0S'PS 62902 §6'00€°LL 0070627 (00°000°€2) 000 (00°000'€2) sleualely puy soiddns Spo0 66
%EV6Z  (62°€9£'29) 0L621'TT T0°£0S'p 69°€S8'T (00°000°88) 00'0 (00°000'88) salddng jeuorpnasur  62¢
%000 (00°000'T) 000 000 000 {00°000'T) 000 (00000°T) 1dinb3-se01A15S JiedaY puy oueuuel  9EE
%59'96  {(587295°0T) 00°0 SI'TL0°C0E 000 (00°rES‘TIE) 000 (00°bES2IE) SWRISAS [00YIS PO Y spequay  TTE
%bb'L (1z'841°02) 000 6L129'1 LYEEY (00°008°1) 000 (00°008'12) uoReZINgRS PUgAH - ewaigRy  LT1Z
%8891  {£0°/6'6T) 00'0 £6'780°9 66°1£9°T (00°0€0'9g) 00'0 (00"0£0°9€) aieoipap RAodwy  ZTZ
%000 (00"00Z'c) 00'0 000 000 (00°002€) 00'0 {00°007°) uopesuadwoy wawhodusun 012
%00'0 (00°058°¢) 000 000 00°0 (00°0582) 000 (00°058°0 2oueinsul uag 80T
%be6e  (ETHEY06T) 000 LLLET'SL 6681997 {00°2££'692) 000 (00°2£L'692) aouelnsuj jepay  LOT
%88'6 (zo'sb1'D) 000 £6'STT 11'92 (00'pL2'T) 000 (00'veZ'1) souesnsur 3yl 90T
%IVZL  (8Qr91E'ZST) 00'0 6°6Th'1€ 92°70S'8 (00°9bL€8T) 000 (00'9pL'e81) jRwamsy aes 0T
%0507 (b2TT'Y6) 00°¢ 90862 v 65°20¥9 (00°0bS'8TT) 00’0 (00°0$S'8TT) Aun9s jepos  T0Z
%Ivey  {0T8EL'L) 000 08'192°L SO'S0E'E (00°000'sT) 000 (0000051} siayoed) ymAsqns paynias-uoN 86T
%96'(1  (19'58Z°0T) 000 6T I8k {00'005°2T) 000 (00'00s"21) SIydea ) Angsqns payed  S61
%0000T S THTOE 000 SLTPT'0E 00°0 000 000 000 sabep, g soLejes BLAC 681
9%00'00T  05°00T’6% 000 05°001‘61 ST0S5'6T 00’0 00°0 000 [PUuUosIRd soueping €21
%005z (£0°05C°T) oo'o L6°6bL 66°6kC (00-000'c} 000 (00000°¢) welboud seppe ey LTT
%02'TT (v L08'9bT'T) 00°0 97°9£9'S6E VO'SET'ER (00v85'209'T) 000 (00°v8r'209'T) ssyoeal 91T
00ETL
ax3 souejeg saouelqunoul  saunjipuadxy  seumyipuadxa yebpng sjuswipusluy  Junowy Pbpng uondisag JUNCOoY  JOQUINN WNOIDY
«whﬂwn passqumuaun  Buipuesing 2jeQ-0)-1894 9JEQ -03-RUCK popudwy yobpng
0

jooyas asodind (eseusd FPT :pund

T Jo € abed €707 4OQRIDAON
Wd £5:T €202/61/21 i) fajeq pund Aq (GO Aq Aleuiung SUNYPUSIAXT JO JUSWIEIS 291 :Aq pajeasd
plojmer) ejAe) 9sN uopeanpy Jo pieog AQJUNoD SUIJUDH pauled Do BwepN ajeidwa)



%000 (00°000'7) 000 000 000 (co'000°?) 00'0 {00°000°7) SI3UoL3 | SIMAsqns peynsd 561
%bbL (5£715'99T) 000 ST'¢BY'ET SL°S6F'Y (o0 oo008T) 00°0 {00"000°081) sabep g saueles B0 68T
%06k (09°ZE€'sH) 000 Ob'8LYSE 00°0£8'6 (00'918°08) 000 (00°91808) sjuepuieny  ¥9T
%9k (6£'806'08L) 000 12'8/9°95C 9z 0bE'bL (00°285'160°T) 000 (00"£85°TH0'T) puuossed souepng  £¢1
%000 {00000°1) 00'0 000 000 {00°000°1) 000 (00°000°T) weiboig soppe] 12ae)  L1T
0ETZL
%8¥'8s (09'EL9'EVE) 66°LTT'8 WTSL'SLY 0788028 (00'+59°£T8) 000 (00"559°£Z8) 0TICTL VoL
L9t 15°199°15T ' EH0'E L0°719°bST ¥5'956'C (00°000"9) 00'0 (00°000°9) wawdinba yyesy  SEZL
%8s Ty (29'068'S) €£'S¥9 SO'8bS'E 8¢ /18 (00°v80°0T) 000 (00"¥80°01) sebleyd apo 665
%00°0 {007005'T) 00'0 000 00°0 {00"00S’1) 000 (00°005°1) wewdapasq ymsfmes-ul  Hes
%0817 (8/TT'6) 0s'TTIT TLa9r’T 11°05 (00°0081T) 000 {00'008'1T} sjeualely puy salddns PYI0  66%
%Iys  (TT'STY) 00°9€9°C 8L 8bb'Y 99°666 (00°005°2) 000 (o0005°2) salddns [esipa puv sbrug  €TH
%000 {00°051°9) 000 000 000 (00051°9) 000 (00°051°9) SEDIAIRS PBDENUO) JBIRD  66E
wibcy  (4'808'%) Z1'98T Sb'L0S'E INgZAg4 {00°205"8) 000 (002058} [oaesl  SSE
%000 (00°002) 000 go'o 000 (00'002) 00’0 {00 002) sabiey) je3sod  BHE
w69 (05°65S) 09'665 06'9t% 965/ (007965°T) 00'0 (00°965°T) uonedlunuiuo)  Z0€
%es'se  (9L20'S) 000 vT'208'T £6'b6L (00°528°2) 000 (00°s28°2) aIedipay RAojdul  ZTL
%00'0 (00°05%) 000 00'0 000 (00°05t) 00’0 (00°0SH) uonesuadwe) Juswhojdwaun  01¢
%869 (00°000'2) co'o 00°0ST Q0’0 (00°051'7) 000 (00°057°2) suensu] ewsq 807
%igy  (91°Z01'S6) 00'0 $a'62£'89 9T'€L9'Ct {00°ZeH'€91) 000 (00'ZEr'€91) Joueinsuf [@IPSW £02
wst'sy  (0Z'bET) 00°0 o1: 3741 09'12 (00°652) 000 (00'652) auensur N 90C
%ST'2E  (6YTI'TE) 000 90'266'81 9,'S6£’S {00°211'18) 00°0 (00°Z17'19) Jueuminay &S ¥0T
%85St (90°€69°12) 00°0 $6°186'TT $O'66£'E (00°5£9€€) 000 (00°5£9'¢€) Aunoss (epos  T0Z
%b1't9  (05°Z55%) 000 0S°€91°2 SL'006'T (00"9rL'11) 00°0 (00°91£'11) sabem g sauejes 1an0 68T
%seer  (bS'161'157) 00°0 9y0Z2'261 85°S6€'05 (00'21v'EbY) 00°0 (00°ZIH'Epb) PuuosIag [oIpalN  TET
%0001 (OV'79L'ES) 000 09'EL6’S 09°€6'S (00'9€£'63) 0070 (00°9€2'6S) jopanq/oswadng - SOT
SIAIRS YIedH 0ZTZL
%96'ct (T6°0ES'0ZT) 00'0 80'880°TTT ET'STY'ST (00'619'1€2) 00°0 (00°6T9'1£7) OTITL 1=30L
%000 {o0'001) 00'0 000 000 {0000t} 000 {00°001) sebiey) 2po 665
%00'0 (00°002) 000 000 000 {00°000) 000 (00"002) sfeusiely puy s3ddns B0 GoF
%SF'Z0T  0£°050°F 000 04058’V 00°0 (oo'008°28) 000 (00°'008ZP) Se0IAIRS papesuUoD IR0 66E
%606 {00°9S0°'T) 000 00°2€L £TELT (00°882'T) 000 (00'88£'1) 2IE0Ipaly JoAodwy  CTT
0TTZL
ax3y souejed sojueiquinduz  sasnjpuadxg  saumypuadxl e6png SjudWpUAWY Junowy 3o06png uondidsaq JUNCIOY  JoquIny JUNCIDY
196png pasequmousun  Bujpueising ajeg-0)-ieas  33eq-o-YuoW pepuswy w=bpng
3O % ’

j002s asodind |e1pusd IvT :puny

1 Jo { o6ed £20T OqWIIACN
Wd £5:T £20¢/61/21 owi) /ajeq puny Aq [0 Aq Alewwing saanypuadxs Jo Juswaels 291 :Aq pajeasd

plogmes) ejiey

SN

uoneanp3 jo pJeocd AJUN0D UIJDH

pauysq 091 swep ejdws)



%000 (00°006) 00'0 000 00°0 {00°006) 000 {00006} uonesusdwio) Juawhoidwaun 01T
%0067 (007055°T) 00°0 00705 007051 {00°000°€) 00'0 (00'000°€) ssueinsul |@queg 90T
%sS'LE  (80'TE€S'9LT) 00’0 76'SET'901 £9°2190Z {00"£99°z82) 000 (00°£99'782) oueinsuf [epaiN  £L0T
%igey  (92'692) 000 ¥L'S0Z bE'SE {00'SLb) 00°0 (00'SLb) aouesnsul o1 90T
%612 (¥S'0ZL48) 000 9%"802°0F 11°881°0T (00°626"v21) 000 (00'626'b2T) weuRmy s H0T
%0987 (1ST06'EL) 000 6b'809°6¢7 0C'099'c (00°'T1S€0T) 000 {00°T15'€0T) Aumoss jepos 10T
%zsee  (0T¥Ze'e) 00’0 08'5£9'T SE'T6L (00 000"s) 000 (oor000'S) siayoes] IMASIns payaed-uoN 86T
%beT9  (1T°€SL) 000 68°9¥C'T ST66C {(00°000°2) 000 (00'000'2) sjyoea) aymnsqns paue)  S61
%6CST  (ZETEY'LTT) 000 89'961°1¢ L1'667'S (00°629'8€T) 000 (00°629°8ET) sabep g souejes BLRO 68T
%68'SE  (S2'998°S7) 000 S£°08vbT S9'¥02"y (00" LbE'0b) 000 (00 2¥E'0b) sueysissy Jeuoneanps €91
%bbge  (00£01'%2) 000 00°950'ST [iad § (2 {00°c91'68) 000 (00°€916E) jpuucsSRRd [eowep 29T
%91'8E  {(£6°£55'€87) 000 £0'856'FLT ECIST9E (00°275'85b) 600 (00°'215'85%) jpuuosiag epdl uoneonp  LET
%172 (TLVSE'ETL) 000 8Z'HETE0T 9L pbL't9 (00°689'916) ooe (00°689°916) suepeiqnn  6¢CI
%00'sT  (£0°0SZ'h) 000 L6°6bL 66'6bT (00°000°S) 000 (00°000"s) weiborq JoppeT saw)y LT3
%97y (06'621°86) 00'0 01'260'0L [4Z: 10241 (00°zze’e9T) 000 (00"zz2’asT) Jopaug/iosivedng  SOT
01z
%6T'8C (SS'065°4ST'YT)  TS'SSP'ET YE ELT'OLY 06'+TO'0ET (00°0TZ'T$£'T) 000 (00°0TT‘3SL'T) 0£1ZL |20l
"00p'T 00°009't 000 00008y 000 (00°002) 000 (00°002) wowdinba Byo 064
%Lc9s  (O1TpIEE) 1565k 6€°9Zb'T 86°LE (00"00Z’s) 00'0 (00°002°s) sobleyy PO 665
%ETSLT P8I 00"966'E poZet L0 (00°005°T) 000 (00°005'T) wRwdopasq yers/eoomps-ul s
%610 (59'6v8) 000 SE£'0007 000 (00°058°2) 00°0 {00°058°7) sjieugely puy saNddns 1BIB0 66
%0Lbe  (00°00%°EL) 000 00°000'6€ 00"000'vT (000ob'ZIT) 000 {00-00t'21T) SOojAIRS papenue) B0 66€
%eces  (00°000°TT) 00°000'61 00°0 00°0 (0070000} 000 (o0'000'0€) bugse| puy uonenjery  ZZE
%66'0p  (STSLH'T) 00°0 SLH20°T £1°28C (00°005'27) 00°0 (00'005'27) UOREZINGRIS PUGAH - Juswaupsy  LTC
%9S'6Z  (+0'682°0T) 000 96’LTE'Y 19Tt (00°209'bT) 00°0 {00°209°¥T) spaly PAodwa  ZTC
%00'0 (00°00s? 000 000 000 (00008} 000 {00°00%) uonesuadwio) juawiodwaun - 0T
%00'0 (00°005°€) 000 000 00°0 (00005} 000 {00005°c) souensul |gusa  80C
%vsZs  (OEPILEY) 000 0£'580°0L ¥5°L62'v1 (00"00v’ecT) 000 (00"00p’£€T) soueinsul [@IPAW £0C
%I8'sk  {£0°9ST) 000 €6°TET 07'sT (00'887) 000 (00'882) aouemsur 3y 90T
%ITTE  ($9°592'1S) 000 9g"LbT'E 09'289'9 QUEIyvs) 000 (00°ETH'b2) wawamy a|s  H0T
%95'67  (08'S66'Eh) 00’0 0TE9b'8T £0°'SEE'S (00'65b°29) 000 (00°65'29) AQunag epos  TOZ
%00°0 (00°000°2) 000 000 00'0 (00'0002) 000 {00'000°2) sRDes) Amusqns paynied-toN 86T
0EITL
ax3 2ouejeg soouelqundul  seunyipuadxz  saumipuadx3 yebpng SUIWpUIWY  Junowy J6png uondiosa(Q JUNCIOY  JAGLUNN JUNOIDY
«wwwwn pasequmouaun  Buipueising  ajeq@-03-JESA  Aleg-03-IUOW pepuawy whbpng

jooips asoding jelaua0 THPT pund

#1 30 S 9bed £Z07 1PQWSAON
Wd €5:T £202/61/2T owil/aea pung Aq [QO Aq Alewwns s3.m|puadXd Jo JusWIAS 291 1Aq pojeasd
ploymeny ejhed H o)) uoneInp3 Jo pseog AJuno)d sudI9 pauyaq D9 eweN ARedwsl



%RESOST  LO'2BY 0£'792'9 2470859 LE6 (oo000'8) 000 (00°000'8) predL  GSE
%00'sZ,  (00°0SZ) 00°0 00'0SZ 000 (00°000'1) 000 (00 000'7) Kdinb3-ssowuss aieday puy sdueuquiey  9£E
%00°0 (00°05S) 000 000 000 (00°0SS) 00°0 (00°0SS) sjuswAhed osed  OEE
9%99'cl  {SL86L'E) 00°0 ST'109 05222 {00°00b"%) 000 (00"00%'p) soptRbY J1gnd JoYI0 YIM spequay  OTE
%0008 (00005} o1°268 06'70€ 96°SL (00'005°T) 00°0 (00°00s°1) uopedunwwo)  £0E
%00'00T  ¥9'LTY 000 v9' LTk 16°90T 000 000 000 uonezige3s pugAN - uswaaRy  LTC
%ze'se (6800} 000 11°28¢°C 92'258 (00°€5£"9) 000 (00°g5€°9) ueoipo ;hodwz  TTT
%000 (00°0ST) 00°0 000 0600 (00°0ST) 000 (o00sT) uonesuaduwio) Juswhojdwaun 0T
%8181 (00°5L9) 000 00°0ST 00°0ST (00°'se®) 000 (00'sz8) 2ouesnsut lewsg 802
%bzor  (0ZT¢21E) 000 08'962°LT £6'€9’'s {00"ag0’ss) 000 (00'8€0'65) oueunsu] (e L0Z
%Lt (084S} 000 (rraf3d orot (0o'T0T) 000 (00'10T) souemsuf N 90C
%YSEE  (88'SESHT) 000 T1'96€'2T SL60T'E (0o-zes'ee) 000 (00Ze6'98) swamay a1s 0T
%z6SsE  (PISOP'LT) 000 98'£5.'6 §5E9E'T (00°e91"22) 000 (o0£91'22) Aunoss epos 10T
%SLTH (957257°99) 000 $IT6b LY o1'¥92'2T {00 SkL'ETT) 000 {00"sb2’eTT) sobem g seurles o0 68T
%9Tvy  (09°€96°0T) 000 0v°0/9°8 00°2€9'T (00'+€9'6T) 0070 (00°#E9'61) (siueanes 19T
%eCEE  (89°zT8'sh) 000 ZEIT6°2 €9'¢eL's (00°veL'89) 00°0 {00'b££'89) jpuucsRd wawssessy  GET
%p0'81  (1Z'654°207) 000 6L°L95¥H 81°'8£6'01 (00 z20’tyvT} ooe (00°£20°£b2) [puuosIag Jexbojossyd  PCT
%00°0¢  {00°001°7) 000 00006 00'00€ (00°000°c) 00 (00'000°€) weibosd soppe 1) L1T
%9ty (0SET8'bS) 000 05°ZST6€ 05'0€8°L {00°'996'c6) 00'0 (00°996’c6} Jopaigfiosadng - SOT
0zITL
%L0€E (TT'6E8°ZTT)}  TIS'P69'SE 8€"89€'T9L £9°989°00Z (o0'z06'60v'T) 000 (00°z06°601°7) 01ZZL *I0L
%00°0 (00°000'T) 00'0 00’0 000 (00°000°T) 000 (00'000'T) wewdinbz o 067
%00°0 {00°005) 00°0 000 000 (00°008) 000 {00°00%) sebieysy o0 665
%00°0 (00'000°S) 00°0 000 000 {00°000's) 000 (00°000's) Jwewdopaeg yeys/eames-ur - bEs
%ITOIT 620201 SE'991°T by be8’s 00°000'6 (00'000°0T) 000 {00°000°0T) Sfenalel puy saiddns B\I0  66Y
%z6z8  (00°£98°F) 000 00°€£9'€C 00°0 (0000580} 000 (0000582} eipap/ioog Aeiqn TeV
%LOTLE  ¥T°099°Ck 16'666'62 L1°099'ST 81°099°ST (00°000°5T) 000 (00°000°ST) SOOIAIRS PIPenuUo) BIpg  66E
%I6'es  (06°966°6) 000 o1'€SL'ET 05'922°€ (00°05£°€0) 000 (00'052'€D) BAell  SSE
%000 (00'001) 00°0 000 000 (0o 00T) 0070 (00"001) Jdinb3-s901013g sleday puy oveusulely  9EE
%00°0 (00°000°S) 00°0 00'0 00'0 (00°000°s) 00°0 (00°000°s) sueynsuoy  80E
%65's6  {00°00€) (Y §:7434 18°146'T 91°96b (00'008°9) 000 {00°008'9) uoneunwwoy  Z0€
wiszz (487 000 ET42T se (00°000°T) 00°0 (00°000°1) uonezNges plGAH - Juswauny  LTC
%687 (Zv'8gT’Ln) 000 856969 €6'£08°T (00'802°¥2) 000 (00°80Z'v2)} asaipayy Aoduz  TTE
0¥TTL
ax3 aouejeg sedueIqunouz  sasmipuadx3  saanyipuadxg 196pna sUWpURWY junowy JB6png uondipsag JuNoddyY Jagquinp JUnolny
26png pasaqumoudun bBulpueIsINO  3IR@-03-ILIA  I3RA-03-LIUOW papuawy ybpng
3O %

Jooyds asodind jeseus TPT :pund

pT jO 9 abed €T0T JOqUIIAON
Wd €§:T £20Z/61/TT awl /aeq pund Aq IO Aq AJBWIWNS SINPU3AX] JO JUSWRIRYS 291 :Aq poyeasd
plojmen) ejiAey HECT) uoneanp3 Jo pleog AJUNo) dusvd pauyag Do Pwel agedwa)



%Igys  (00°529°%) 000 00°52b"S 00°0 (00°0017°01) 00’0 (00"0oT’01) sdiysiaquiew puy seng  OZE
%00'02T  00°000°S 000 00°000°0€ 00°0 (00°000'ST) 00°0 (00°000'S2) SRS PNy SOE
%8r'9e  (v0'SOT’S) 000 96'65L'T 98 (00's98'%) 000 (00°598'%) Sie0ipajy PAodwy  ZTT
%9E'9  (81'ZHEEEE) 000 78'TEE'61T £9°Tss'te (00°005'€St) 000 (00°005'£SH) uemsup g 20T
%ez’9T  (bBESYT) 000 9T'9ZE 964§ (00-010°7) 000 {00°010'2) souesnsur 1 907
%z 0  (00°vZS) 000 00°€9€ 09’2z, (00°¢88) 000 (00°¢88) weuwniny 31@s  ¥0T
%AT'9E  (09°SLT'ET) 000 0b'S2S'L 9b'LE {00'108°02) 000 (00°108'0T) Aundes jepos  TOT
%eeel  (0onse'TY) 000 00°059'v 000 {00'000°22) 000 (00°000'£2) 5394 SI9qUalY 2AWIWC) puy piecg 16T
%982 (£6'601°98T) 000 €006S'ETT 000 (00-000°00€) 000 (00 00000£) Aed AyasbBuo 98T
%9y (SE'856'%) 000 S9'THS'E €€°802 (00'005°8) 000 (000058 precg 0 Alegaies  BTT
otTeTL
%ervL (STET99S) 00°00s’8 $8'98S‘vST S6°6¥7°T {00°002'617) 00°0 (00°002°61T) 0SZZTL =0l
%6866 (96'88€'6E) 00°005°8 SOTTT sk S6'6¥C'T (00°000°26) 000 (00°000'26) alemyos  Tib
%se99  {00°SZEE) 000 00°5£9'9 00’0 (oo-o0o'o1} 000 (00"000°01) bujqen QL
%98 (0T'668°ET) 000 08008°86 000 (00'00£°211) 00°0 (00°00£°2T1T) Aanreuuoy puRul  0SE
0scTL
Y%b96e (€9'885'€L) 00°0 LE'6TE'SY 9p°01L’6 (00'916'12T) 000 (00°816'TZT) 0€TTL [°¥0L
%0070 (00°005°s) 00°0 000 000 (00°005°S) 000 (00°005°S} aRs)  5SE
%ey' Ty ($9°908) 000 9€°04S EFPTT {00'2££'T) 000 (00'2££'T) sueolpsly RAoidwy  ZTC
%000 (00°ve) 00'0 00°0 00°0 {00vE) 000 (00ve) uopesuadwo) Wawiodwaun  0TC
%00°0 {00°0S1) c0'0 00°0 000 (00"0ST) 00°0 (00°0571) aouelnsuf jeyuaq 807
%ITIy  (0O'ZVE') 000 00°'SLT°E 00°5£9 (00zzs’s) 00°0 (00°225°L) oueinsuf jeipald 202
%98cy  {00'8) 00°0 009 ot {00 vT) 00°0 (00'%1) ssuensu1 3y 90T
%sS'Tr  (£2'08L°€) 000 ££'989'C £0°0bS (00 ¢9¥'9) 000 (00°29v'9) wowapay s b0z
%' (ZT6vr'E) 000 8L'8EF'T 9Z'68% {00°g88's) 000 (00'888°S) Aundsg jepos 10T
%00'0c  (00°00£) 00°0 00°00¢ 00°001 (00°000'T) 000 (00'000'1) weubosd seppe] i) LTT
%9 Tr  (0S°ET8'HS) 000 05'Z51'6€ 0SDEB'L (00°996'€6) 00°0 (00°996€6) lopesngfiosiasdns  GOT
0ETTL
opgzee  (¥S'LVL'TLY) Ob'LTE'L 60°EL6°LTT £0°6T9'ES {o0"s10'20L) 000 (00°810°20L) 0TZTL I=oL
%00'€T  (86'%L1°7) 000 qosze 000§ (00°005'2) 000 (00'005'7) sabreyy A0 665
%beed  (STEED) 000 SL'991°1 000 (00'00b'1) 000 (o0'oob'T) Juswdoppasq Jers/aInss-ul IS
%S 1z (86'7€9'8) 00691 T0'861°C 80°20b (00'000°17) 00'0 (007000'TT) siepa3e puy salddng Buio 66
ozTTTL
ax3 souejeg seoueiqUINDU]  saunjpuadxl  saumpuadxy 126png syusWpUsWY junowy ybpng uondidSag JUNCIDY  JSGUINN JUNOIDY
jobpng poasaquousun Buwpusysing jeg-03-423\  LA-01-YIUOW papuawy yobpng
30 %

jo0yds asodind (elaiRy T - pund

b1 40 £ 96ed €70T 49qWOAON
Wd €51 €20Z/61/Z1 sswil /e3ea pund Aq [qO Aq Alewwns saJnjipuadxy Jo JuaWd}eIs oo :Aq pajeand
plojmer] ejhey HE )| uonResnp3 jo paeog AJUNO) JUIAID pauyag Do RweN Aejdwal



%85’ Tr  (06°¢€5'€9L) 00'0 01°68¢"EbS 29°¢£9°301 (00°£26'90€'1) 000 (00°226'90€°T) sledound  HOT
(18 744
%zo'sy (90°690°292) TT'BEY'ST TLIT6'S6T £9°66L'VE (oo0ve9'ost) 00'0 {00ve9’9ct) 0ZETL Aol
%00°0 {00009} 000 000 000 (00°009} 000 (00°009) WwRwdinby uopensuwpy 104
%00°T {00°s6t) 000 00°’S 000 (00°008) 00'0 (00°00%) sobuey) ISRO 665
%eo'y  (29'0887) LETY'T 09'502 69'S (00°005°s) 000 (00°'005's) sayddng soiyo  SEP
%ILLIT 00°Ove'T £8'ESH'S L1'982°T 000 (00"000°2) 000 (00000'0) SOOMUSS PIPRNUO) 10 66E
%0l  (PT6L2'T) 00°00L 5£'020'T 61°£9€ {00°000'%) 00°0 (00°000'v) jprRIL  SSE
%S (26'290°9) or°60b'1 86°CCS sg'op (00"000'8) 000 (00°000'8) sefiey) easod  SVE
%000 (00°00£) 000 00°0 00°0 (00'00g) 000 (00°00¢) 1dinb3-saoses Jiedsy puy oueuluel  9EE
%5e'68  {00°S06) 00’0 00'565"2 0070 (00°005"8) 000 (o0'005'8) sdiysiaquiap puy seng  0CE
%9v'68  {I1°5€9'7) 15°907'T 82'8ST'1Z €9°494'T (00°000°52) 000 (00°000°52) voneounwwoe)  Z0€
%ep'Te  (00°000'7) 00°'S5v% 00°SbS 000 (00°0002) 000 (00°000'2) busnrApy  Z0€
wez'eE (TSTEEL'D) 000 8y L9LT 89°THE (00°T0S%) 00°0 (00°105'Y) aiedpap s8hoiduz  T1C
%00°0 {00 0pT) 000 00’0 00'0 (00'ebT) 0O'0 (o0ovT) uonesusdwon JuswAcidumun 012
%00'sT  (00°0Sb) 00°0 00°0ST 000 (00°009} 00'0 (00°009) soueinsu] [mux] 80T
%(9vE  (££66E'PE) 00’0 £9°5S2‘8T DT'EEE’E (00°559'7S) 000 {00°559°¢S) asuednsu] Ip3y  LOC
%zl 6E  (96vE) 000 P0'€Z 1Al (00'8S) 00°0 (00°8S) ouelnsur a1 90T
%80'1b (0T PEL'ET) 000 08'962°6 9£'658'T (00°1£9'72) 000 (00'1£9'72) wawasy N|s  ¥0T
o%LT°6€  (25'£89°IT) 000 8p°L5S°L 1TSoH'T {00°ste'61) 00'0 (00°sye’6T) Awnoeg jepos 10T
%g89'8c (00721992} 000 00'+82'97 08'95¢°E {00'96e’et) 000 (00°06£°cH) [Puuosid (U 29T
%9 T (56°79¢'9L) 00'0 50°'S¥5'bS 10°606°0T (00'806°0€T) 000 (00°806°0£T) (shuesissy €01
%Iy (S9°T6E'6L) 000 $£'802'98 L9 THETT. (00°001°9€T) 00'0 {00°00T°9€T) 100 aAgenswpyflenyo Awnay 10T
OTETL
%EE'sE  (v6'916'884) 0£°0ZS0T 9€°SLY0ZY £6°688°0S (00°cT6'6TZ'T) 0070 (00'ET6'61Z'T) 0I€ZL I|oL
%sz09  (10°081°E) 0L°049'E 6T'6b1°T e (00°000°8) 60'0 (00°000'8) sableyy PO 66S
%8T've  (SL°4ZT'8) 00’0 STUTY $9'80b (00°005°z1) 000 (0000521} Q1 - suediKddy JO vogeBnsaauy leuw)y €8S
%eo've  (b1°606°261) 000 98060201 0£°026'+2 (00'000°00£) 000 (00°000°00€) uoissiwwo) sasruL 018
%9679  (00°005°2) 000 00052y 000 (00°052'9) 00°0 (00°052'9) SIS PIPRRUD) BYI0  66E
%ZIS'E0T  BLPES 00°058'9 8.°¥89'8 £6'106'T (00'000'ST) 000 (00'000'sT) ARl SSE
%867 (b8'SSLTL) 00°0 T HHT'ET 000 {00"000'52) 000 (00°000°s2) sooiales 6607 TEE
0TEZTL
ax3 souejeq sedueiqundU]  sainjipuadxy  saanjipuedxy 3eb6png spuslpusWy junouy J86png uondipsag JUNOY  JOquUINN JUNOOY
j396png pasequmouaun Gujpuesyng  Aeg-03-ied)  Neq-03-HUoW papuswy 196png
O
i jooy3s Isoding |esauan IPT  : pung
#T Jo g 2bed £20T 13qWoACN
Wd £S:T £202/61/21 PwiL/aeq pund Aq [qO Aq Aewiung SINI|PUIAXT JO JUBWIAIRS 291 :Aq pojean)
piomen ejiey H ) uonedInp3 jo pieog Ajuno) ausalo pouyaqg 391 eweN ANejdua)



%68'9E  (¥67650'85) 00°0 90°bH6cE 01°€619 (00°v00°26) 000 (00°+00°26) 2oueansyf o LOZ
%6509 (08'6€) 000 019 az°ot (o0°T0T) 000 {oo'TOT) souesnsur 3y 90T
%bT Ty (I9E1L'12) 000 6£°SL1'ST peEL0's (00°6889€) 00'0 (00°688°9¢) wowamay meys  HOT
%gz6e  (5'8YSET) 000 ShvaL's 6EPIL'T (00°€1£°22) 00'0 (00°€1£'70) Apnoss jepos  T0Z
%S0t (Z0°06%'6LT) 000 86°Lob ST Z1°S68'vC (00°856°20€) 00'0 (00°85620E) puuossad [eowep €91
o108 (0£'SEP'TH) 000 0£THH'ST 9,'880°S (00°8¢6'99) 00°0 (00'8£6'99) sopsaqfiosinedns  SOT
0ISTL
%2088 (WL°LS6'9LSTY  LTIST'OY 66'08SEVS'T TTIS0°E9E {00°06£'09T1°%) ©00 (00°06£09T'V) 0TvTL 1oL
"609°T 00°'p6T'0E 000 00'¥61°2€ 00°b61°2E (00°000°2) 000 {00000°0) yswdinbg uogegsiiwpy  T0Z
%000z (00'008) 000 00°00¢ 000 (00°000°T) 00°0 (00°000°1) sabiey) BPO 665
%£9°T0T  00°007 06'0SL'S 0T'6bE 000 (00°'000°9) 000 (00°000°9) s[eusiely puy sd))ddng PO 66F
%00'00T 000 €8'1SL'EE L18bTTT 000 {00°000'SY) 00'0 (00°000°5k) S90URS porenuo) BYylp  66F
%00°0 {00°0052) 00'0 000 000 (000052} 000 (00°008'T) ARy SSE
%00'0 (00°0001) 00’0 000 000 (00°000°1) 000 (007000°T) 1dinbg-seoinag seday puy ajueuuiely  9EE
%og /7 (68'86Z'0€) ¥5'8bL £5'256'01 86°L€ (00°000°2p) 00°0 (00°000°2H) uonedunwwo)  £0€
%00'00T  8T°CSk 000 8Tk LO°ETT oo 000 000 UOREZIGES PUAAH - usWRInRY  /TZ
%e6vE  (Sb'620'8) 00°0 S5'9P0’ST 91'99¢’E (00°920°ch) 000 (009£0'ew) aieoipaly oAodwy 1T
%00°0 (00°003) 00'0 000 00'0 (00008} 000 (00°00S) uogesuadwoy Juswhcidwaun 012
%298 (00'056°2) 000 00°05L 00°05k (0000£'8) 000 (00°00L'8) dueinsu] juaq 907
%o7'8E  (ST'HEG'6LE) 000 S8'05H'S€T SEPBS v {00°58£°519) 00'0 (00's8€°519) aueInsuf [2IPAW  £0T
%THr (6T HLb) 000 1L'SLE 6899 (00°058) 000 {00°058) 2duednsur 3y 902
%O0LSE  (STBEL'8PT) 00°0 bLTI0P28 LOPST'6Y (00'0+b8°0€2) 000 (00'0¥8°05T) wowamay Aes 0T
welbe  (PUETT'OZI) 00'0 98'€L0'¥0 62CZEEYT {o0"z81°48T) 00'0 (007 281°v8T) Aundss epos  T0C
%IE9e  (S8OIE'LS) 000 S1'689°C€ £8'925’9 (00°000°06) 000 (00°000'06) sobem g ssuees B0 681
%0'EE  (86'bST'VEb} 00'0 Z0'H6T'vHT 75'T20'99 (00'6b€"8EL) 000 (00'6vE'88L) (S)uepnas 197
%617 (PB'PES'ISS) 00'0 9T T¥6°89C 62'SET'L9 (e0'94°5£8) 00’0 {00°924°5€8) sedioung uegsissy  6ET
%bel (') 00°0 €L°U8 1606 (00'000°2) 000 {00°000'2) weiboig eppe sovey  LTT
oTPTL
ax3 souejeg soueIqundNl  saunypusdxy  saanjipuadxy Jebpng sjusWpURWY  junowy 36png uoRdnsa@ JUNOIY  JaquINy JUNC0Y
ebpng pasequmouaun Bupuesino 3jeq-03-Jed  Ieg-03-luon papuaury
JO %

looyos asodung [21pus IPT :pund

T 40 6 3beg £20T S9qWIBAON
lud €5:1 £202/61/21 2w /siea pun2 Aq [0 AQ AlRWWING $3INPPUSEXT §O JUBWIIES 91 :Aq polesD)
plojmelD ejhey asn uongesdNp3 Jo pieog AJuno) UG pauyag D9 :dwepN jedwel



%0018 (20°061) £5°859 SHIST 86'LE (00°000°T) 00’0 (00°000'T) sobieyy 1280 665
%LTSET  L9E9L'S 00'0 £9°€92"11 00°0 {(00°000'S) 00°0 (00°000°S) Seusield puy sauddns ARD  66Y
%zb'9c  (ET'TEL'IOT) 000 £8'892'85 [agsid)s {00°000°09T) 000 (00°000°09T) MIS puy IIeM bSH
%66vE  (IbOT0ZS) 00°0 65°686'¢T L0'BLY'S (00°000°08) 00°0 {00°00008) sep jeimeN  bEb
%02 (58°059°£18) 000 ST'6VE‘L6E $8°£98°0L (00°000°S1T'T) 000 (00°c00°S1Z'T) Apupsp STV
%£6°09  (SvSES'vh) 61'105 9£°€96'89 S6'28F'BE {(00°000°¥TT) 000 (00°000°V1T) soyddns (eporsny 0T
%80'CET  ¢B'19T'6 00'b¥9°07 78L19'91 008152 (00°000'82) 000 (00°000'80) SRS papenuo) BP0 66E
%s6'1e  (L0T2L'D) 00°0 £6'LLT'T 00°0 (00'000'%) 000 (60°000') PreiL SSE
%0009 {(00°000°2) 10°982°2 66'T1L 66"9bY (00'000°S) 00'0 {00°000'S) idinb-saoinieg neday puy dueuuie  9EE
%00°00T ZL°0T 000 ot 000 000 000 000 UORRZINQRS PUGAH - JudwRImRY  LTT
%zre  (OT'OE0'ZD) 00°0 06'TET'L 0T'HHS'T (00°2s1'6T) 000 (00°291°61) a1e0ipa Jakodwa  TTZ
%0070 (000052} 00’0 000 000 (00°0052) 000 (00°005°2) uogesusdwo) Wwawhojdwaun  QT¢
%00°E (00°058't) 00°0 00°0ST 000 (00°000'5) 00'0 {00°000°S} soueunsuf (g 80C
WIgPr  (91°029°0LT) 00°0 pRoBE LET 860527 {00°200'80£) 000 (00" £00°80E) aoueansuj [eapaid £0C
%s1°0e  (657€99) 000 5987 S5°6€ (00°056)} 000 (00°056) sjuesnsur 1 90T
%S6T  (£5'£96'€9) 000 LPOT'8Y v6bLT'0T (o0°zeT'ZIT) 000 (oo'zer'zim) wewamay ms 0T
%0T'zy  (66°976'TH) 00'0 10°e8b'0E §5°T09°9 (oo"otb'zL) oo'o (00°01¥'2L) Aunoos epos  TOT
%6276 {TESISLH) 00°0 89°£T1'ES 00°00£°6 {00°c49°001) co'o {00°cv9'00T) sobep, g sauees PG 68T
%o6'9e  {I/'¥09°692) 00'0 62'H2T' 15 $8°€59°00T (00'6Z8'027’T) 000 {00'6z8°'022'1) [SuuosIad jepaasny 99T
019ZL
%99°6€ (ZT°860°0SE) T6°86T’Y L6°ETH'STT 85°LbT'8Y {o0°TzT'08S) 00’0 (00 12T 08S) 0ISZL |80l
%00°0 (00"000'e) 000 000 000 (00°000°€) 000 {00'000°c) wawdinb3 uenensiviwpy 102
9%97'858  08°06L'€ 0070 08°062' 909 (00°005) 000 {00°00S)} ssfileyd otpo 665
%00°0 (00°005'T) 000 000 000 (60005'D) 00'0 {00°005'1) sjeuajely puy saiddns BlRO  66b
%0059 (00'00L) Sg'pS9 ST'SH9 66'0€ {00°0007) 000 {00°000°2) soyddns soo  SEb
%00'0L  {00°008'T) 50'bbS'E $6'5S9 000 (00°0009) 00'0 (00°000"9) solddng Buissodold eq 1T
%91'se  (00°€£0'12) 000 00°£TY'TT 00'S€8'9 (00°005°2€) 000 (00°005°2€) S3IARS papenuod B0 66E
%00°0 {00"00Sy) 000 000 000 (007005} 000 (00'005'Y) PARlL  SSE
%00°0 (00°000'T) 000 00°0 000 {00°000°T) 000 (00°000°T) 1dinb3-seoinses seday puy dueusyuiely  9EC
%00°0 (00-019'T) 00'0 00°0 000 (000T9'T) 000 {00°019'T) sdiyssaquialy puy seng  0Z€
%BT'6E  (0€°891°E) 00°0 0L'6b0"2 76'00F {00'812’S) 000 (00'812°3) awexpan ;hoduz  TTT
%00°0 (o0°0b1) 00'0 000 000 00°0%T) 00°0 (00"0p1) uenesuadwo) uawAoidwaun  0TZ
%00'0 (00'050°T) 000 600 00'0 (00°0s0°1) 000 (00°050'7) souelnsuf |uweg 807
0TsTL
ax3 souejeg sedueIqUNdUI  swunjipuadxy  ssumpuadxy 1abipng SUSWPUAWY  Junoury 3a6png uogdidsa@ JUNODY  JSGUINN JUNCOOY
96png pssequmiusun  Bulpueysing ajeg-0)-ieas  3ed-03-yuoKw papuswy
0,
e Jooyds 9s0ding jeJauan IPT :pund
1 Jo 0T abed €207 19qUISA0N
Wd £9°T £202/61/21 :2wi] fazeq puny Aq [qO Aq AJEWIWNS SINYPUIAXT JO JUdWNEIS o1 tAq paaeasD
pioymen) ejlAey L9sN uoneanp3 jo pieog ARINOD dUIDIH pauyag 91 [wepN AejdweL



%00'/€  (PI'6TRZE) 000 98°597'961 9261’68 (00'580'12S) 000 (00°80°12S) ouelnsu] jeapa  £0T
%IgTE  (£9°T00'T) 00'0 ELLoY S86L (00°69b'1) 00'0 (00°69°1) aouemnsur 7 90T
%gsze  (€E'8vb0ET) 000 £9'2€0°E9 09°788°LT {00 186€6T) 000 (00°181°¢61) wowamsy ;s HOT
%68'1E  (£9°90£°62) 000 LE'STE'LE 10°89€°0T (00 ze0’21T) 00'0 (00'ze0’2TT) AQumss epos  TOZ
%egvy  (80°8TE'0FT) 000 6°T6 1T 0£°096'1€ (00°12¥'552) 000 (00121552} sebep g soutees 2O 691
%evoE  (O¥'1ST'986) 00’0 09°Zre'TEY £9'T0V'671 (C0'v6b'LTHT) 00'0 (00°v6L'LTH'T) sieAug sng  SbT
%ILSE  (T6'TZL6T) 00’0 80°6£8°601 b 0185 (00°102°£0€) 00'0 (00°T0£°L0E) {spwewpa  ThHT
orLTL
%z9'9E (9€'S6T'LyL) LEV¥6'86 LTT08'TEE TO°LS8'Y9 (00°T¥0'6£T'T) 000 (00" I¥0'6LT°T) aT79ZL 2oL
%000 (00°0SL'p) 000 000 00’0 {D0"0SLY) 000 (00°0s2'y) juowdinbg soveusjuew LT/
%99°L {z€T05°201) 06°265'L ££°501°T 05°LbC {00°00011T) 000 {00°000'TIT} safuey) BR0 665
%9'98  (00'000°E) 95'/80°91 P'TIP'E £L°565'T (06°005°22) 000 (00°008°22) sjeusely puy saijddng 20 66%
%s9'9€  (00°005'6) 95'65L'T bH0eL'T 20°65 {00°000°S51) 000 (00000°ST) syeq Asuiypdely puy uswdinby 8T
%b0L8  (00°80Y'P) 6EYEL'L 19°45€°TC Sh'ELE'E (00'000v€) 000 (00°000°V€) SSOAISS POIORIUOD BRO  66E
%00°0 (00°poS) 000 000 000 (00°00S) 000 (00'008) [pAeIL  G5E
%682,  (1T°/SS'ED) $£'S08°6C STL£9'S ST (00°000°05) 00°0 (00°000°0S) Jdinb3-sao1Aias Jieday puy asueusjuiely  9EE
%8aes  (6ETET'TE) 1671062 0£99€"62 95°096"bT (00"000°c02) 000 (00°000'002) JIpINg-SeoIAIRS J1edsy puy adueusjuield  SEE
%00°00T 000 9L'E0b'T #2'965°T 88'015 (00000} 00°0 (00°000°S) PomnaRg Aspuney 67€
%Ep 1z (00°00b) 55818 Sb'IST 86'LE {0000b'T} 000 (00"00¥'D) uopeownwwo)y L€
%ie0E  (90°9€6'p) 000 $6°5b1°2 6T vy (00°€80°2) 00°0 (00°€80’) sieopey RAodwg 212
%00°0 {00°08¢) 000 000 000 (oo"08¢} 00'0 (00"08¢) uonesuedwo) JwdwAoidwsun 012
%606 (00005T) 00°0 00°0ST 00°'0ST (00°959°T) 000 (00°059'1) oueinsuf [uag 80T
wlLse  (05°609'99) 000 05°680'LE 6£°£95'9 (00°669°€0T) 000 (00'669'c0T) Fouensu] [eApal L0
%009 {(op'zom) 00'0 09°£S 096 {00'091) a0’ {00091) souesnsup g1 90C
%es'1e  (06'6LT'bE) 00°0 01°88£'ST 79°LST'E (00°890°0S) 00°0 (00'890°05) juswemy s H0T
%05¢z  (€6'H0TVT) 00'0 £0°08T°6 LTPI8T (00°'s8e’es) 000 (00°588‘€€) Auross feos  T0Z
%Ie9r  {00°628'1Z€) 000 00'968'bTT 0T'6£6'7C (00°szL'9¢p) 000 (00'szL'oet) jPUUOSRd ueusuel /ST
%8s (00°82622) 000 00'89€'vT 09°€£8°C (00"9ve’Le) 000 (00°9bE’LE) RuUgssad [edeD 79T
%9p'8E  (0£'£29'6€) 00°0 0€°¢9L'PT 9b°€S6‘Y (00°56€‘¥9) 00°0 (00"s6£'v9) sopangfiosnadns  SOT
0z9zL
%ET'6E  (GV68T'60T'T)  E€L'LVE'LY Z8°S66'TIE'T €8°9ET'6LT (o0'ce9'89t’e)  00°0 {00°€£9°B9P'E) 019ZL 1®0L
%BZ'I91 7961’6 00°9SZ€C 79'9¢6 00’0 (00°000'sT) 000 (00 000’sT) Juswdinb3 uogesado jueld 027
019ZL
axgy [vuejeg sasueiquINdU]  sSUMIpuadxyg ssumipuadxy ja9b6png SJUBIPURIMY  Junowy }a6png uonRdidsag JUN0OJY  JIQUINN JUNODDY
jebphg pamqumousupn BulpueisinQ®  ANea-03-ieIA  33ed-03-LPUOK papuawy ybpng
30 %

jooyds asoding essuan IPT :pund

T 50 1T abed £Z0Z 19GWIAON
Wd €51 £202/61/2T rawny farea pund Aq [qQ Aq AlRWWINS S33Npuadxy JO WBWIAS 291 :Aq pajeald

ploymer]) ejAed

SN

uonednp3 Jo preog AJuno) dus3D

pauysg D9 :=weN ajejdudlL



%eszz  (067419'TD) 000 01'Z8e’e 9T'081°T (00°000°sT) (00°000'sT) 00°0 [Puuosid jousp 291
0DEEL
%sE'9r  (999T1°98) 000 £ 918°0E YS'ELE'L (00'1E6'9TTY) 00'0 {00°TEE'OTT) 018ZL (|0l
%Iree  (86'€08) 000 20°Eb €09 {00 2301} 000 (00" 2b0°T) ueopayy Phoidus  ZTT
%00'0 {00'sL) 00°0 000 00°0 (00°52) 00°0 (00'S¢) uonesuadwoy wawiodwaun 0T
%000 {00°00¢) 00’0 000 000 {00°00¢€) 000 (00°00¢) aoueinsyr jEueg 807
wog've  (z811vd) 000 8L°6L6'¢ 0L6CS'T (00'860°2E) 00’0 (00°860°ZE) souesnsyf [eoipW  £0T
%956F  (0FF1) 00°0 oLt o'z (00°60) 00°0 (00°62) uemsuy 1 90C
%667 (bb'8£9°F) 00'0 9577007 8V'ETS (001899) 000 (00'185'9) Wwowauny 21018 $0T
%Iz'er  (98'8€bE) 00°0 $1°6E0°T 20857 (00°8pp) 00°0 (00'8LH'p) Aunisg eoos 10T
%502z (95°589'28) 00'0 b Le5°61 09'600'S (60'€zE'e) 000 (oo'gzT'el) sabem g soLeles B0 68T
0I8ZL
%zB9E (ZOLVS'V6E'T)  LTTLS'OTT TLT98'vRT'T EE'LIE'VEE (00°'186°684'E) 000 {00°186'68L°E) oTLZL 1|01
%pL'19  (PPER'E) 00°0 95°985°S 000 (00°000°6) 00°0 (00°000'6} Juawdinb3 uoneypodsues) 627
%b8'8s (9178501} $8'0v1'8 00'¥92'1€ [4 9744 (00°000'0%) 000 (00°009°0S) sebiey Japg 668
%S0y (0000¥°01) 15'968'S 6¥"€0C'T LWL {00"00s°21) 00°'0 (00°00S°2T) s|eudely puy soddng 120 661
%bl'0L  (b88¥96S) 65'845'PE £5'155°S0T £4°669'91 (00°6£2'661} 00'0 (00°62£°661) suegd spiEA €SP
%00°00T 0070 80°9v5"8E 76'€56°9 02°96"y {00'000°SH) 000 (00°000"sH) ssqn) puy sant  0Sb
%obbp6  (00°000'T) 95'bEL'TT pb'S9T's 8E'HS6 (00°000°81T) 000 {00"00081) sjueouqm €€
%895  (TrHE'LY) 000 95'659°£T 85'p6b'S (c0°000's£) 000 {00°000'5L) aujoses  SZb
%9r'0L  (E¥'SEY'T) 05'989°C L0°8LYL SE°L8 (00°005°S) 000 (00°00s’s) so|ddng abeesy  bZP
%I6'67  (S£'S€9'55€) 00'0 S9¥OEbTT §5'159'ZY (00'00008) 00'0 (00°000"08%) prdpsaia  CTh
%0009 (00°007) 00°00€ 000 000 (00°005) 00°0 (00°005) SIIAIRS papequUo) PO B6E
%ISBT  (6TEEF'S) 000 1L°91€T 25047 (00°052'9) 000 (00'05£'9) PAelL  GSE
%000 {00°00¢) 000 000 00’0 (00°00€) 00°0 (00°00€) sjeusy  1SE
%sevyd  (00°651'S) 000 00'1£€’s 00'€L8'T (00°005'bT) 00'0 (00°005°bT) SIS (EJuUag puY [eIpeW  OPE
%0005 (00°000'%) TEB68'E 69'10T 000 (000008} 00°0 (00"000°8} PIYBA-S9OIISS Neday puy adueudjuel  8EE
%00'00T 000 8Lv00'E 'S66'T LT6TH {00°000°s) 000 (00"000's) 2o1as Apunet 62§
%186 (26'S%) or's8z't 86°L99 96°€S {00'005°2) 000 (00°008°2) uogesunwwiey  Z0€
%00°00T  9b'8 000 '8 or'e 00°0 00°0 000 uopez)iqels PUgGAH - wawsugay  LTZ
%s9ZE  (9Feve’st) 000 $S'SLE'S £1°659°C (0061282} 00°0 (00°672£'80) aseoipa Phojdwy 21T
%00'0 (00°00Z'c) 000 00°0 00'0 (00°002°2) 000 (00"002’€) uogesuadwo) awioidueun  OTZ
%b90T  (0000£'9) co0 00°05Z 000 {00°050°) 000 (00°050'2) sdouesnsu] [ueg  80C
orTLTL
axg souejed ssoueiqunouz  sasnjipuadxy  saumipuRdg 1°6png Sjuswpuawy  junowy JR6png uoRdirsag JUN0JDY  JSQUINN JUNCIDY
1ebpng pasequniusun  BupueIsang Jlea-o3-des) eq-0)-Yjuon pepuIlY yo6png )
%
g jooyos Isodind |ei3uan ¥t : pund
+T Jo 2T 3bed €T0T 1PQUWIDAON
Wd £5:T £202/61/21 iswil/a3eq punyj Aq [go Aq Alewiins ssunjipuadxs jo Jusuials 291 iAq pojesd)
plojmes)) ejiey 1SN uonesnp3 jo pieog AJunoD U9 pauysq )97 ioweN xpdwal



%t e (0b'620°CT) 00°0 09'022'6 8T (0005270} 00°0 {00'0S2°70) sopang/iosiaedns  SOT
00bEL
%er'6E (0B OES'ELE) SL°86V'79 SYE61°995 TLYOV'TYT {00°E7S209'T) 0070 (00"€25°209'T) 00EEL 18301
%60'/€  (85006°TE) 95°559°T 98°eST LT Y6y {00°07£0S) (00'005'pT) (00'otZ'es) sabley) PO 665
%86's6  (I1B'TK9) 00°0 67°L5€’sT £V LSP'S (6000091} {00°052) {00"052'ST) wRwdoRA3g yeag/eoimas-ul  PIS
%0776  (9€°0IS'E) CO'E19’SE 79'990°¢ T9ETT'E (00°062"9%) {00°068't) {00'00b'TH) sleudel puy soddns IS0 66
%095 (62°90L°TT) 15950 0T LET'TT 26'08p'E (00'006'82) {00'005'S) (00°00t'€2) saiddng [euomonasul - 6Lt
%00°00T 000 99'€LT'T £'9z78 000 (00°000°2) (00°000'2) 000 solddng pooyd 22
%19y (TLeet'in) 00'0 8b'vbS’6 6T'ELY'T (0z'€£900) (00°000°T) {oz'cL9'61) presl  SSE
%00°00T  00°0 00°000°02 000 000 (00°000°02) 000 (00 000'02) sueynsuo)  80F
%00°0 (00"00%) 000 000 000 (00°00%) {o0'00t) 00°0 uonenwwo)  Z0E
%00°00T  bbLE 00°0 'ty 98'[T 00°0 000 00'0 UONezZIKGeIS PUGAH - sy LTT
%92'6€  (SL'06.'8) 000 96'789°S ST'S9E’T (12°sev'vl) (00 s+'p) (12'820'01) uedpey PAcidwa 212
%000 (00"00S} 00’0 000 000 (00°00S) (00°00S) 00'0 uonesusdwo) swAoidwsun  0TZ
%00°00F £8°THb 00°0 8ty £l 00’0 000 000 aueinsuf [euag 807
%Syl (06°299'790) 000 ST'I8L'bb 89'965°TT (S0'pHb"L0€) 98°ZrL'06T {£6'981'86S) ouesnsu] [P Z0C
%00°00T HE'E 00°0 vee 8L'0 00°0 000 000 oueinsul sy 902
%8E L€ {(84'SPT'SY) 000 §TLVS LT YL TIS'L (90°€69°€L) (88°116'9) (81°18¢'99) wawamay @15 0
%65 Ty (£0HTT'bE) 000 $6°662'vC 1£'2£8'S (86°cZ1'85) (0o98e'sT) (86°¢£0'ep) Aundsg lepos  T0Z
%6 Ty (62'H60°0SS) 000 TL026°L6€ 19'802°S6 (00°ST0'856) {00"09v612) (00°s55'82L) sabep 3 seuees IO 68T
00€EL
ax3 souejeg SeOURIUINDLT  saunjpuadxy  sunypuadx3 326png SUSWpUAWY  unowy yabpng uondipsag JUNoddY  JOqUINN JUNOIDY
196pna pasequnouaun BuipueIsINg YRG-03-4Ld24A e -o}-yjuopw popultuy yabpng
3O %

jooyas asoding [elauan IPT : puny

b1 Jo £1 abed £20T J9qWIAON
Wd £S:T £202/61/21 BwiL/e3eq pund Aq (O Aq AleWWNS SINNPUSAXT JO JUBLIBIRYS 291 :Aq pa1es)
plomes) ejde) uasn uonesINp3 Jo pieog AUno) susug pauyRq D9 PDweN ejdwa



%wor'ZE  (££'SBS'EL8'TY) ST'96T'6LL 65'819'887'6T A Ty ay: 14 2 (Tvoer’tre'19) (ITE9T'ETT) (00°£9Z'828'19) ™t tpung Jod [&0L
o%%0b'ZE (LE'SBS'SL8'TP) ST'I6T'6LL 6S°8V9'S8Z'6T  TLZYI'8ISY (Tr'oer’Tr619)  (TT'E9T'ETT) (00'£92’828°19) Jelo)
%otzE (LES85€L8'TY) ST96T'6LL 65'9Y0'982°6T  TL'TIY9'SIBY (TT0ey'Tv6'19)  (TT'EIT'ETT) {00°£97'928'19) (=301
'S80'T  8T'86T'SY 00°0 8T 86T'YS 00°0 (00°000'5) 000 {00°000°s) 00T9L jeroL
%00°00T  £O0°TESLE 000 £0'CES'LE 000 000 000 00°0 wowdinbz B0 064
%00°00% 1299291 000 12°99L/9T 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 syswanoxdug Suippng L0
%00°0 (00°008's) 000 000 00'0 (00°000°5) 000 (00°000's) sosupry  H0E

00T9L
%96'sz (££'8TL¥TI'T) 000 £9°vZTY'V6E SY"0TO'61T (00°c¥T'615'T)  00'0 (00"€rT’61S°T) 00VEL 1el0L
%sgcz  (1Z'840'D) 00'0 86'SLL 66'v8F (61¥5T'E) (61°57'E) 000 sayjddng evomongsul - 6P
%08'8T  (T9°€21'LET) 00'0 0Z'0rL1E S0°SE6'L (18°€98°8971) (18'586'9) (00'848°191) sapusby Mand 12RO Yum spenuo)d 0T
%66'0r  (1°804) 00°0 88'I6b 96°€91 (00°002°1) 00’0 (a0r00Z'T) UOIeZIQEIS PUGAH - JUdWRINRY  LTT
%os bz (£0°SH9°0T) 000 L6'bSY'E S5'STTT (00°00T'pT) 007001 (00°00Z'¥1) aleoipap ooy TTT
%00°00Y 000 000 00’0 00'0 000 00°0¥8 (00"0v8) uopesuadwoy wawiodwaun 01T
%000 {00°00+'E) 000 000 00°0 (00°00b€) 000 (00°00b'e) oueinsu] (ausg 80T
%B8bE  (SH'S6T'EET) 000 SSHOP'TL 19°'SPLFT (00°00£+07) 000 (00°00£'02) aduelnsul [P L0T
%10y (9bb6T) 000 $S0ET 9€'ST (00°s2¢) 00’0 (00°sze) souemsur i 90Z
%86'T1Z  (61°597'99) 000 TB'bES'8T £€'980°9 {00°008'¥8) 00°00£ (00°00s'58) uewaunay A H0C
%8sve (bl Lze'sy) 00'0 99'TLL'YT S9'TI8'Y (00'001°09) 007005 (00°009°05) AQunes jepes  TOZ
%0b'2s  (06'6/£T) 000 01029t 06'T06'T (00'000°s) 00°0 (00'000'S) sRydeal MNIsans paymeD-uol 86T
%bR'0T  (20°85pD) 000 86°THS 5166 (00°009°s) 000 (00'000'5) SIPUREYL AMASNS paynRy 96T
%S6'87  {8EEPYLL) 000 79'955°TE 00°p60°0T (00"000°60T) 000 {00°000'607) Quesissy jeuoneonpy €91
%86'bC  (94°0£0°879) 000 ¥56L0°602 81°£69'69 {00"0ST'E8) 00°001°8 {00°052°518) spyesy 91T
00PEL
ax3 aoueeq sdueiqunouz  saunjpuadxy  saunjipuadx3 yabpng SJUBWPURWY  Junowy Jobpng uondidsag JUNODY  JSGUINY JUNOOY
196png passqumouaun Guipuesino INeg-0j-ied] eq-03-Yuon papuaury 136png
%
o [00ys 2sodind (erauan T¥T :pund
T Jo 1 9bed £70T 1YWIAON
Wd £5:T £202/6T/21 swtl /azeq pungj Aq [qO Aq Alewwng SSumipuadxy Jo juawalels 91 :Aq pajeald
plomen) ejdey 3sN uonesnpy jo pieog AHuno) SuID pauyeg Do PweN Aejdust



Safold [esepad 100G

TPT s|Qol punj

000
{p9-Lr9’L1£'sT) saouejeg Pung PUe ‘S324N0s3Y JO SMOLUT PALIRJaQ ‘sanliqer] [e30L
(oz-gzs’'ers'y) somnby @Ol
(SE'ES0’00ST) paubisseury 0006€
7$'pe1'108 uogEeONP3 104 PIXHASYY SESPE
{1 T6L'96E'T) B4 10U - SHOURIUINDUT [ir4243
{0T'€08'LvL'T) 1934 WBLNT - SOURKGUINOUT o1IpE
(bv'¥60°pLY'0T) saggiqer]  [|moL
(£2°£89'008'Y) {1013u0D) senudAY 0058
(95°069"¥29'S1) (jonuog) suoneudouddy 00182
00°0 paLuIY T6€1Z
08°10T $aNQ UORRPOSSY T6€T2
00°0 Aunuwy NeA PBETZ
(00°09) SUCIDNP3( UoIUf| IPaD 08€12
000 Auigesia =iqesn 0LETT
000 spreunsnil 99€1Z
000 uncody sbuires yesy S9ETZ
oL SS3U||I 1eoRUD IESn YOET2
00'0 WOTAN 21esn f4:1 444
00'01 I [0A 9)gRNSN 19€12
00'0 SOIAT] PUY SUSWIYSILIRS 09€1Z
00°05¢ 3jr] seuuel SISOUUS ] SSETZ
[CHAL RouR) 3jgesn €S€12
000 SU 217 UL DRIOH 25€TC
(£8'65b) jeyaq ucuedwod 1S€12
(gozeT) swsueg dwop 0S€12
00°0 Kep, payun 6¥ETC
bb69 WIPOIY Sqesn 9ET2
05°2€S SV, - bupuads xald - e3eQ IS SbETZ
95°69 SUT SJAPE3] [PUOHRN brerz
{19'22) ?)r AAGesn WETL
(6L¥65'6) Su JoYeaL, 00 19 TPETZ
(£9°98) 119G PUGAH JUSWRINY ZEETT
(00°0p) 155M 19319 XTOY 1€€12
(90°869) SUOPNALILIOD JUIUWRIAY 0€ETZ
(¢s7ee) uompnpaq DIpaly 3a40idw3 SZETZ
{0T'6€T) xe) Anoas [epes (1742 ¢4
(o001} piedun puy PRYYUM XeL Swodu] 1) £ £4
(6£°826'8¢) ajqeAeg SRINOOY 00112
$9°LT9'LTE'ST $I3UN0SY JO SMOPINO PILIAJSQ PUE SIOSSY 2301
9" L1 LTE’'ST 0assy oL
PTHO0'E6S 2u3 SIA ol i5d 3AISSY 0L PEYD B3 00941
15°029'S9%'S (10guoD) JedA UBLING - SAUMGIPUSXT 00SbT
0T E08°2bL'2 (10-8ucD) se3ueiqUINOLT pPalRPINDIUN 00z51
95'069°k29'sT SonuaAsy pelewns3 00THT
SEBOE SWRIILLBAGS JBUI0 WOl 3ng 0£pTT
$5'69588 JASUL YUM YsED (174841
eSS sueg Ul yseD OLITT
3ouejeg bujpul uonduysaq JUN02oY J3GUWIANWNTOY
s139(01d |esop3Y |0OLPS TPT pung
L jo | obed £207 2BquIaAoN
WY Z1:6 £202/02/21 13w /a3ea PRZURWIING I2VYS Foue|eg pazpewng Aq pajean
PpIoMRI) BlARY LIS uojeanpg jo pieog AJUnod eueein 393YS 30Ue(eg pSLYRQ 397 aweN ejdwudt



TO'STY'ITLT

(68'St6'TIL'T) %TLOE £8'900'vZ8°0T {e£'€89°008°'Y) 95°069'p79’ST $S'GOT'ETSTT ZPT ipung 104 |ej0L
20°STY'ITLT

(68'SY6'TOL'L)  YTLOE £8°900'¢T8°0T {££°£89°008'Y) 95'069°'bZ9'ST YS'S9T'ET6'CT e0L
00°0

000 %000 LSTPE'9LY 00'0 LS'THEILT LS'THEILT a1e35 ybnoay |esspad PYI0 0652 6
000

000 %000 LV 000 LLyPY'EY LLbbb'Th R PV Ueld BNIS3Y LedLiswy vObib 00L
000

000 %00°0 9£'560°TT 000 9£°560°2Y 9/'560°TT JUBIS PY UB|d BNISSY UEILPWY 00 106
000

(05°572'89%'T) %IS'EE 19'€6£'£59'9 (60°£L0'10t'E) 0£0/7°850°0T 0£'0£4p'850°01 WIRID PV Ueld INDSIY UBDBLLY 104y £€6
00'CTL'6S

000 %LS'6€ L¥'160°S0T {zo0og'HET) 6b'16€°6EE 6b'6/9'6LZ JusWdo|aAaq Joid JaMoyuSsI3 6814b 002
(65'810°T)

00°0 %00'0 186'T1Z 000 15'186'T1C 00'000°€TZ uopednp3 |einy 8b1Lb 005
LT°T90°8P

{(29'v06'T) %60°LT 6£'019°08 (82 0zg'91) LTTEC'L6 00016 Sjueus [00Yasalgd uojednp3 [eads SHILp 016
Sb°S85'9/8

(88'861'891) %8L'9T 6£°506°9/5'T {90°909'9£5) SHTISESTE 00956°92L'T 0] Sjueis - uonednp3 jeads 13024 006
66'v11'822'T

(y891T'vZT) %L9'9T 88'£66'09L'1 (s8'515°019) £LE18'T0M'T PLBEE'ELT onp3 (2307 0L SWeI T UL 292 011
00°0

000 %L6'ET 85°ELT 00T (£6°£95'1€) 1604 TET 15°20L°1€T 0L SjuRI Jiseq - NP3 [BUOGEDOA IETLY 008
000

000 %00°00T 000 000 000 0070 SUPa.D 2nypuadx3 08Tit got

SNUIAIY JUBLIND pazijesy pazijessun PozIjeaY ALA pajewnsy |01 SUIWpUBLLY uondunsag uoppuRy pund-gns

% [3s3 [lewmblIo
spalold [219pad [004DS ZPT :pund

T 0 7 abed €20 1OqUIDAON paziewiwng

Wd 25T £202/61/21 :wiL/a3eq POZUEWIWINS SINUIAY JO JUdWIRIRYS JURWRIEIS SNUIHBY :Aq pagessd

plommes) epiey 195N uoiyeInp3 Jo pieog AJUNO) IUIAID pauysd D9 :swepN jedwal



%IE6  (VOE6L8H) 000 9er1e20Z £0°610'9 (00°520°69) 00°9TH°Z 0" TP 1) WawaIRy A|s  +OT
%bb'sz  (Syseb’vb) 000 SEHOT'ST ¥1'905"y (00°009°6S) 00°166 (00°165'09) Aunag epos  TOZ
%S0T {06°€€8'0T) 00'0 09°€22'T 0S'TEL {0s-£50°71) 000 {05°£50°2T) siaY2eD] TMISANS paytEd-uoN 861
s%esze (S0r2L9'e) 00'0 $8'88L°1 0F'695T (06°59b°S) 00'0 (06's9%'S) sieyea) JymAsqns pAYRL)  S61
%00'0¢ (60°009'7) 60’0 00°0 000 (0070090 000 (00°009'T) sabem =1 seuees B0 681
%bosz  (89°708°0L) 00°0 ZE050°4C TES65‘8 (00°zs8°26) 000 (00°Z58'L6) wibojoyzed yseds  T/T
%0587 (15°€29'6TH) 00'0 6b'SSZ 9T ZI'616'9% (00°6£8'98%) (00°6£LPLT) (00°001'ZTE) Quesissy jevoneonpl €91
%757z (867£50°€02) 000 20°110°6S ve'0L9'61 (00°690°292) 000 (00'690°290) siaysesl 911
weibosd uogeanp] [epads  00ZTL
%B86'LZz (V6'SZL'L66'E)  0E'955'8ZT 9L FOV'PTY'T £9'66T 89T (00'¢89'0ss’s)  (66'698'22.'T)  (10°LI8'TLL'E) weibosd uogonysuy jembsy  QOTTL 0L
%Z8'9 ez 259'avT'1) B9'T92'65 0T'185'1E ITEb6YT (00°000°0FE T} (00°000°06) {00°000'052'1) wawdinbg uogonasul senbay 7L
%0591 (00°0SL'Th) 00°0 00°052Z'8 {01'619'€9} (00°000°05) 00005 (00°00508) sjeugely puy saiiddns 120 660
%818 (08'166'6%) 9T°bLb'6T P0'HES'02E ob'Z01 (00°000°06€) (00'000'06T) {(00°000°002) alemyos Tib
%009 (8S°ETT'08Y) 9b0CE st 65°bZE€8E ST8b1'g8 (£695L'T1L} (gz'2sz'ss) (0£905'v£9) s9|ddns jeuogonnsul 62
%eL8y  (94°028°0€) 00°0 $0'962'62 $0'962°6¢C {05°911'09) (94'£91'82) (rL'8v6'te) SADIARS pAPRNUOD PO BEE
%00°0 (00°000'%) 000 000 000 {00°000'} (00°000'p) 00'0 POYILSD-UON - SIYDL GnS Jod spus  0LE
%00°0 {00°000'9) 000 000 00'0 (00°000'9) {00°000'9) 000 PRURIED - S53Y3e3L QNS Jog SPIWD  69E
%00'00T 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 000 uoneziqeIS PUdAH - WaWaIRAY  LTT
%F9'LT  (88'958°6T) 00°0 SOY6ES 110112 (£6°052°95) (00"00b'ST) {e6°058°02) aueoipap 12hoidwa 27T
%Zy'LZ  (00°00S'p) 00'0 00°002°T 00'0 {00'002"9) (00°00£'T) (60'00S°p) uopesuadwo) aukoidwaun 07
%89'Z {00"0Sk'S) 000 00°051 00°051 (00°009's) {00°009°7) (00'000°€) souelinsu] g 80T
%Sse1E  (89°T18'697) 00°0 421}t X4 £9'SbT'ST (00°Z60'c6€) (00°000'S6T) (00°z60'861) soueunsul {IPpW  £0Z
%L6TH  (PT'61E) 600 98'0£¢ i (00°05S) {00°052) (0000€) ssuesnsur 3y 90T
%6197  (88°969'EST) 00’0 0£289'62 18406 (81'82£'¢81) (00"005'19) (81°88'10T) wauwaimay a1as YT
%Z0LT  (£8'88Y'8TT) 000 S9'TIEYT S5'861'8 (z5-008°ZbT) {00°005°09) (¢S00E'Z®) Auroas epos  T0Z
%00°0 (v6'998'4T) 000 00°0 000 (+6°998'pT) 000 (¥6'998'+1) sIyrea | Aasgns paysd 561
%LT6 (b£'STZ'¥S9) 000 97°(58'99 96185 (00'c£0’T2L) 00°0 (00°££0'122) sebep g soueles PO 681
%SLTE  (£5'619'6627) 000 £7'0BE'6ET 86°S97'0% {00'000°65b) (00°000°6S) (00°000°08¢) Suelsissy jeuonednpy €91
%egbz  (88'/£5'S8L) too TT'Tob'652 0b'9Z1°88 {00°000°5¥0'1} (00000956} (00°000'6£) siyeal 911
weiboid uononygsuy Jenbay  00TTL
aqg Iuejeq souRIqUINOUZ  SaJnjipusdxy  saunupuadxy whpng SQuUalIpUdWY jJunolwy 126png uondinsag UNoDY  JAqWNN JUNOIY
uwwwwn passqunousun  Buipueising  9)eq-03-1EPA  Bjed-03-lUOW pepuawy Jobpng

s1ofoud |[esapad [00YIS THT 1 pungd

G Jo T abed £T0T QUIIAON
Wy £1:6 £20Z/0Z/2T il fageqg pung Aq G0 Aq AleWWNS S3INPpudX] Jo JudURRIS oM 1Aq pgeu)
plomes) ejhey 498N uopeINp3 JO pieog AJUNCH FUID pauyag J91 eweN jejdwal



%09°Ty  (01'8€8'8E) 000 06'199°£Z 8E'CES’S (00°00599) 000 (00°005'99) lopauig/iosiedns  SOT
wesboid uoonisur Jenbay  OTTZL
%6r'8s (8T LOB'VTT) €L€98°CT 65"08E’8S ET¥56'67 (05°150'98T) {00°569°8ST) (05'95€'£T) yoddng JUIpmS RO  OETZL 19300
%ITL9  (§5°LLC°E) 000 SbeeL'e 58'S67 {00"000°0T) 000 (ooroo0’om) justudopasq yess/eomesur  HEs
weree  (ozeez'ie) €£'€98'TT LOET6'T S7'S85 {00"c00"sw) (00°000"sk) (00°000'7) sjenale puv sauddns oo 66F
%000 (00'000°01) 000 000 00’0 (o0°coo’ot)} 000 (00'000°07) PARYL  SSE
%spLs  (ze'oss) 000 89°605 LT THE (00°09c'1} (00002'T) (00091) d1pa RAoldwy  ZTZ
%00°'0 {00001} 00°0 000 000 (00"001) {o000m) 00°'0 uonesuadwo) uswioidwauny  OTZ
%00°0 (0o0’0sT) 000 000 000 (00°0ST) (00°051) 000 soueinsup [gusq 80T
%96'8¢  (06°215°21) 000 06'£86° 05°£65"7 00°005'02) {00°005°02) 000 wuesnsu] eoipa L0Z
%000+  (CO'6) 000 00’9 0z'T (00°sT) (oo'sT) 000 ssueansur 3yl 90T
%st'se  (€0'S19°%) 000 L6'ES'T 61°S89'T (00°051°2) (00°056'9) {00°007) RuRIgey 31s  YOT
%26 (65°00€E) 00'0 6412 06’8561 {00'08y's) (000g0’s) {00°0sP) Aunaos fepos 10T
%b88.  (05986'S) 00°0 00'01€'C g0'0SZ'61 (05°962'82) (00°0s2't0) (05°915°S) sabem 3 sauejes 2RO 68T
%b6ve  (6V°28LTH) 000 1S°L1THT LTBEL'Y (00°000'£S5) (00°000°2S} 000 [euL0sIdd soueping  £TT
yoddng JUepNIS IDNQ  OETTL
%80ty (66'09T°ETT) 8T"£68'0T YE'EEL PO 80°+61°0Z (15'16£'86T) 00°0 (15'T64°86T) welbo.d UOedNp3 (BUOEIOA  GOETZ el0L
%867z  (90'0££'9S) 000 86'€26°9T 00°0SH'pT 0'v59°cs) 00°0 H0"¥S9'EL) Juewdinbg uononusu] jeuopedoy 0L
%EL' TP (€9°785'€S) 68'EP8bT 87'LS0°ET 00'TIL'E (00°v8b'16) 000 (00'v8'16) sjeuaiety puy ssliddns Jalio 66
%bsTe  (01'8+8'7) 67'€S0'9 80°CSL'VT 80'ZE0'T (£b'€59'€E) 000 (Ly°e59'ee) sofddng |euopnnsul 62
wesboud UOREINP] [EUOKREDOA COETL
%65L7 (TGTSE'EIT'T) TE6ITT SELLT'6LY ¥9'S6V'6VT (8T0s9'vbL't)  (LETTL'VIV) (18'8€6’6TE L) weiboid uoneonpy jesds  DOTTL IBA0L
%EsT6  (86°520'T) £5'PS6'T 6'6E1'6 00'0 (00°0ZT'ZT) (0z'sse’s) {08'¥92'9) WwdWdinb3 uopeanp3 jepeds  §TL
%Lb'S (8£°566'vT) 6£°S9T 10°€0Z 10°€0Z (81'+98'ST) Lrsren) (10°€04'T) sleudjely puy sa)ddng 120 66F
%989 (17°2e510) 00°0 6€'585'T 6£'685'T (09°211'€2) (o0'osz’02} (09°£98°27) salddng feuononnsul - 6Ch
%00'0 (00057} 00°0 00°0 00°0 (00057 000 (00°052) SODIAISS PIPENUA) IBNO  66E
%00°00T 000 000 00°0S9'€1 000 (00'059°€T) 000 (00059'c1) idinb3-s:d1uaS Neday puy SdusuNnuUIEl  9EE
%96l (S8'ETVOPT) 000 ST'9/5°65 0b'56£6E (oor000’008) (00°000°00T} {00°000'002) sapueby aeAud ynm senuo)  ZIE
%0Lsz  (Skesc’on) 000 5895’ 58°€50'T (00°008'c1) 0092 {00°$90'pT) aseaipaiy RAodwy  ZT¢
%zo'zy  (80'859) 000 76'9Lb 00°'0 (00°5€1°'T) 00°0 (00°S€T'T) uoesuadwo) ywewhodwaun  0TZ
%gTor (000967 00°0 00°05Z 00°0 {00°012°€) 00051'T (00°088’%) duemnsy] [wsg 807
%169 {b6'081°£9T) 00 90'618'£6 6L°T1E'8T (00'000'592) (00°000°s) (00°000°092) duesinsu] [IPsW L0C
%8sk (Ibebd) 00'0 657502 POPE (00550} 00'ET (00°gav) aoueinsul 1 90¢
weuboid uonesnpy |epads  0OTTL
ax3 ouejeg seoueIquIndul  saunypuadxy  saamypuddxy 135png SIUSWPUIWY junowy 326png uonrdirsag JUNOOY  SIQUINN JUNCIDY
1wbpng pasequmousun  Bupueisang Ijeg-03-Jea) jeq-03-yjuow papuauly 126png
30 %

s3al04d |ei3pa4 [00YDS TPt punyg

S §0 Z 3bed £T0C 1B3qUISACN
Wv £1:6 £202/02/21 rewiLL/aqeq pund Aq [0 Aq Aewwng S3JNPU3AxX3 JO JUBWIELS 291 iAq pajeas)d
pliogmen) ejAey H Ty uopeanp3 jo pieod AJUno) auasald pauljaqg 397 oweN aejdwa)



%0801  (10°9kh} 66'ES 00°0 000 (00°00S) 00°0 (00°00S) sjeualely puy salddns IR0 669
%00°0 {00°000°2) 00°0 000 00’0 {00°000°) (00°052'9) (00'052) SSOIAISS papequol PQO  66€
%651z (L9UT'Y) 000 £E€LTL" €Lt {00'000°8) 00'0 (00°000°8) ARl GSE
%00°0 {0000T) 000 000 000 (00001} (0005} (00°08) sebrey) [e3sod  8VE
%00°0 (o0"001) 000 000 00°0 (00°00T1) {00'0%) (00°0S) 1dinb3-sadjases diedoy puy soueudluiey  9EE
%9kbE  (00°STE'GE) 00°0 00°5£9°0Z 00°00¢’s (00°000'0%) 000 {00°000°09) sapueby a1eaud yum spenuay  ZTE
%0e'sz  (£4°090°€) 90°0 £5°650°T 99'60€ (00°00T'p) 00'£0€'T (00 20%'s) ssipely sofoidua 21T
%000 (00°£€T) 000 600 00'0 {0o°€T) 00°05 (00" £81) uonesuadwon Juswioidwaun  OTZ
%igst  {00°51S) 000 00°00€ 000 (00°s18) 007051 (00°596) soueinsul fEudg 80
%50'6€  (€5'P8O'TE) 000 LY'ST66T SE'686'C (00°000°1S) 00'00£°8T (00°00£'69) ueinsu] |2apa  £0T
%S1'Th  (90°2h) 00'0 $6'Z€ 0£'9 (0o'o8) 00°#1 (00¥6) uensu 1 90T
%857 (66'6TT'LT) 000 10'S46°S 61 1ELT (00001's2) 00°20L%6 (00°£08°2€) Wwewaigey @S 0T
%ob'sz  (HO'SSO'ET) 00°C 96 H 'Y 80°¥ZET (00°00S°1) 00'019'S (00°01T'ET) Aunaas epos 10T
%8LHT  (SLZ9H'09) 000 ST'ET66T ST'ZI0'9 (00'9££'08) 000 (00°92£°08) sobep 13 sauees BP0 681
%Eg9e  (00°£S8'%2) 000 00°89€E'6T 09'€£8'2 (00'szz’se) 000 (00°s7Z6E) (SHheppss 191
%8sz (607092611} 00°0 16°+29'1H L6'bLR'ET (00°s88°097) 600 (00°s88°091) jpuuosRd [opan  TET
wesboid uoneonp3 [e)XRds  0TTTL
%ZEe9E  (8T°¥98°995) 0T"00Z'LE 79°0S1°98Z 6S°0ET'69 {06'v17'068) (I EPT'ETE) (6¥'1£6'9LS) wesfiosd uoppnnsuy b’y  QTITL 1900
%00°0 (00°000°S) 000 000 000 (00°0005) (00000t} {o0"000'T) wowdinby o 064
%6L°0 (00°00¢'002) 00'0 00'009°1 000 {00°000'200) (0o°000'102) (00°000'1) sobueys PO 665
%69'09  (SE'808'sH) (1§ > 374 96'162'Sh 9T'S0E'TT (Tb'ges'9tr) (1+°'182°8%) (00°Z¥T'83) Juawdopasg yeis/omss-ur - ¥Zs
%IT'pE  (6p'1TT'1E} 00°2LL'20 00'ETP'E 68'pEL (6" 10F'LF) (00°296'22) (6b'6Evv2) sjeusiel puy ssiddng alpg 66t
%891 (69'P6E'0T) 000 1€°50T'2 ££°055 (0o'00s'z1} (00°008S) (00-000°z21} joaRll  SSE
%OEbe  (LLTE'E) coo €2'859°C €1°42S (00°000°9) (00°008) (00°005's) aseopaly RAodws  TTT
%00°¢ {00°062) 00°0 000 000 {(00°062) 000 (00'062) uogesuadwon Juswiojdwaun 01T
%00'6Z  (00°0SH) 000 00°0ST 00°0ST {00°009) 00'0 (00°009) uesnsul jeuaa 80T
%69le  (SK86e'Ee) 000 65'102°0C 88'865°C (00°009°cS) 00¢ {00°009'¢5) soueInsyl [eNpSW £0C
wosey  (S1'8D) 000 (1214 6I't (00°05) 00'0 {00°0%) soueunsur 7 902
wigy (Loew'sl) 00°0 62'94L'TT 6€°SEB'T (00°00Z0€) 000 (00°00Z°0%) ewemay A5 HOT
%86'9b  (L8'SSE'TT) 00°0 oT'+65°01 0£°990°T (00'085'22) (00°000°T) (0o0ss'12} Aunaes lepos  TOZ
%IE6r  (£9°€95°0ST) 000 LE9EPIYT 0p°LLE'6T (00°000'262) (00"000'52) (00°000'2£2) sabem p seuejes BP0 681
%080  (00709L4T) 000 00°0¥T'2T 00°8vb'7 (0000008} 000 {00°0000€) (s)uepasas 19T
weibold uoponysuy Jenbsy  0TTTL
ax3 soueleg soouRiquNOUl  saamyjpusdx3y  saunjipusdxg 126png SjuawpuaWly  Juncwy 36png uonRdpsag NSy  JIQIINN JUNODY
1ebpng  passqunousun  Guipueysing 9je@-03-18A  3jeQ-O3-IRUOKW papuwy 1bpng
3O %

spoefold |eiapad jooyas TPT - pund

S Jo ¢ abed £Z0T 13qWIaA0N
WY £1:6 £20T/0Z/TT jawiLL/aeq pun4 Aq [q0 Aq AJelING S3IMIpUBX] JO JUSWINLLIS 291 1hq pajeas)

piojmes] ejie t19s(} uoneINP3 JO pleoy AJUno) FUIIID pauysg Do oweN djejdwdl



Aepng [ende) seinboy  00T9Z

%9T'Ss  (S5'v88°6L) 00°0 TLSYE'Y 90°'SYE'T (£Z°0€T'¥8) (00°000°S) (£z-oET’6L) uoneyodsuel)  QTLZL {@0L
%00°0 (£7'885'8¢€) 000 000 000 (£7°885'8€) 000 (£T'885°8€) uawdinb3 uoneyodsues)  6T4
%00°0 (0070005} 0070 000 00°0 (00°000°S) {00°000°S} 000 safuieyy ;20 665
%es0l  (bB'SHH) 00°0 TS ¥6'22 (00-00S) 000 (00005) aseopay Jehoidu 21T
%9901 (TI'9TT°E) 000 88'€8¢E £6°291 (00°009°¢) 00°0 (00'009°€) JuRwamy s H0C
%LEL (z8'2£0'2) 000 81791 00°sL (00°002'7) 000 (000020 Aumoag jepos 102
%1601 (05°965°0€) 000 05°SbL'E 6985’1 (00'Tbe'pE) 000 (00°Z¥E'vE) somuqsng  9bT
uoneyodsuely O0TLTL
2%00'00T Z8'8¢0°C 00'0 L8'8V0°T 00'0 00°c 000 00°0 weld jouonexdo  0T9ZL €0l
%0000T 6§42 000 65742 000 000 000 00’0 e Riodug 21T
%00°00T  00'8TT 000 00'81T 000 000 000 000 Aunoes epos 10
%00'00T 8Z'€06'T 000 87°€06'T 000 00'0 00'0 00°0 [BUL0SIa [erpoisn) 99T
juejd Jo uoneddo OT9TL
%9 6E (6L901°LT) 000 TT'E6B'LT TTLLS'E (00"o00's¥) 00'0 (00 000°St) ABojouyda)  0SZZL 1MoL
%000 {00'000°T) 000 000 00°0 (00°000'T) 00'0 (00°000'1) Preal SSE
%8zbt  (19'850°T) 000 6€°9LT 90°S€ (00°SET'T) 00'¢ {00°s€2'T) aseoipay 1Rhojduy  ZTT
%000 {0000T) 000 000 000 (00001) 000 {(00001) uopesuadwo) wawdodusun  0IC
%00'0 (00°0S1) 000 00°0 000 (00°0ST) 00’0 {(00'0sT) soueinsu] leuag  80C
%69cy  (00'S8S’Y) 000 00'STH'E 00'€89 (00°000'8) 000 {00"000'8) aoueinsu] (0Pl £07
%008y  (08°2) 00°0 oTL 0z'1 (o0s7) 000 {00°sT) souemsur T 902
%oe'0s  (0T'THC'T) 000 068521 8L'1ST (00005'7) 000 (00'005'7) weuRey Es  $07
%lsce (8LSYC'T) 00°0 TTSL 88661 (00°000°2) 00'0 (00°000'2) Aunsg jepos 102
%b6'0b  {0S°8ILLT) 00'0 0S'182°C1 0£'95vT {00"000"0¢€) 000 (00°000°0¢) PuuoSRd Jeindwo) |euopangsur - BET
ABopouydal  0STZL
98Tz (60°PTET) 00°0 16'589 LL'B1IT (00°000°€) 00°0 {00 000°¢) wesbosd UORRINPI [RUOREIDA  OETZL |®OL
%982  (60°b1ED) 000 16589 L8 (00"000°€) 000 (00°000°¢) Juswdoipasq persfaomssur - b
weiboig uoneanpd feuonedop  0€2TL
%82 (90'TIT'¥9E) 66'€S ST'ET9'9PT S$9°65E°6Y {0T"88L'01S) (ST'S06'6) (56Z88'00S) weibasg uonednpg [ePHS  0TTZL I|WOL
%117z (08bH1'0Y) 000 SLTEETT 8L°v0L 0T (55°2€5°15) (o8'vv1'ob) (5£7T6€'TT) wawdinby Ao 064
%zy'6s  {Z0°Z8v) 000 86°CIL 00'90S {00700z'1) 00°0 (00002°T) sebiey) ;BLRO 665
%6928  (£9'1£9) 000 86005y bZ'000'T (s9°z€1’s) SS'1SST (0z'+89°9) Juswdofarag yes/omes-ul  #ES
weibold uoednpy fepads  QTTIL
ax3g aoueeq ssouRIqunduz  sedmjpuadxzg  sesnppuddxy yob6png SUIWpUsWY junowy JR6png uonRdpPsag WNoXdY  JIqUINY JUNODY

wbpng posoqundudun  BulpueIsIng  93eQ@-03-iBIA  NLQ-03-LJUOK papuawy je6png

0%
spoafoud (eapad [ooyds TyT :pund
$ jo p abed €207 JIDGWIAON

Wv €116 £20¢/0z/TT Pwil/agea punj Aq [qO Aq Atewiwng sa:MIpuadx3 Jo JuswNe)S o) :Aq pagess)
plomer) ejARY 13sN) uogednpg jo pieog AJUno) susln pauyeg D91 ewen Ijejdway



%isTS (58'99TTIV'L)  OTE08'LrL'T 1§°029'S9%’'S T6'T0TTYI'T (95°069'vZ9’sT) (TO'STV'TTLT)  (¥S'SOT'ET6TT) 4'a :pung 104 (€301
%.LSTS (S8'99T‘TTH'L)  OT'E08'LYL'T 15°079°59V'S T6°T0T'TYI'T (95069'vZ9'ST)  (zZo'sT'ITLT)  (HS°S9T'ET6TI) I=30L
%iszs  (S8'99T'TIvL)  OTEOBLPLT TS029'S9¥'S 26'T0TTVY'T (95°069°¥29'sT)  (zo'sev'v1L?)  (pS'SOT'ET6'TT) j;aoL
%000 (00°000°9TT) 000 00 00'0 {00°000°9TT) (00°000°Z€) (00-000'v8) o ssRysuell  DOY66 [=I0L
%0070 (o0°000’01T) 000 00’0 000 (00°000°9TT) (00'000°2E} (00°000'+8) oy paapul  bOS

ng sidjsuedy  O0T66
%08°28 (£0°886°£9L) 86°'TIT/9ST 66'9LT'T86'T T0LTT’0S0'T (00" £L2's62'9) 00O (00" 2LT'S6T°9) Aeping jepde) senbay  0OT9L IRAOL
%Iepe  (£5°€€9°4ST) S6'9£0'9/6°T TSEE6'E62'T ZI'EST'6LS (00'vp9’Les'y) 00’0 (00"++9°£25'P) juawdinb3 vogeRdo eld 027
%ETTL  (0S'PSEDIS) £0°5£0°04S LhEbT’89 68'EL8°0LY (00'€£9°£92'T) 000 (00'€£9°29£°T) uoipngsuod Bupiing 902
Aejang 1eyde) Jenbad  QOT9L
ax3 3ouejeg souRlqunOUy  saumipuadxg  seanjpuadxl b6png SUSWPURWY  Junowy R6png uondinsag JUNOJIY  JOqUINN JUNOCIOY

Pbpng passqumousun Guipueising 8jeQ@-03-1BAA  eq-03-LRUOKW papuawy 196png

30 %
spafoid [erepad |[0oYds ZrT  :pund
S 4o g abeg €202 J9qWIAON

WY €16 £202/0Z/21 swlL/aeg pun4 Aq [QO Aq Aselwwuns ssunjipuadxy jo Juswes 291 :Aq pjess)
pIoMELD BlARY PsN uoneanpy jo piecg Auno) susaun pauysqg D91 otweN ejdwsl



00'0 epaIde) [RNUSD s|RoL pung
(ge9cs'ere’s) aouejeg pund pue ‘S33IN0SAY JO SMOYUE Pa.UIIRQ ‘SSRIjIer] a0l
(LtroL6'8vT’e) sapinba jwoL
(eL0ve'6L8'T) 485 JSUT-LON JO UOREIBAD 104 PRPHISY = = -DASHE-EHY
{68'S£2°0LT) Je3A, J0lg - SSOUBIQUINUY - -0TIVE-EPT
(s8'€64'861) B34, WAL - SSOURIGURNT - - OTTHEEbT
(16'S9£4'¥60°S) SORIGeT (oL
wezpi'1zs) (lonuoD) sanuaAay - -00S8Z-evl
(00°602'2£1'p) (jonuoD) suogeudo.ddy - ~001BT-£vI
{sTLLn) Ainqges|q 24qesn - - 0LETZ-EML
{08'Z0) 34 10A s1gensn - - -T9ETZ-ET
rn |2uaq uowedwo) - -TSE1T-EbT
0070 811 8(gesn - = -ZHETZ-EPT
(zer09€) suJ ;apeR] 03 19 - - -THETZ-EVT
000 SUOQNALALOYD JUSBIRSY - = <0EETZ-EPT
0070 uoRINpag WP FaAvjd3 - - -SZETT-EHT
00°0 xeL AUndaS [epos - - -0ZETC-EPT
00°0 predur) PUY PIRUYIM XeL Swoou] - DIETTEPT
(£6°2ET) 3lgeded s;UNO0Y - -00TTZ-£4T
SET9EL'EVE’S SAUNOSIY JO SMOLANGD PALIASY PUE SISSY 2101
seecs'erve’s SIPsSY |20l
68°889°09€ IUZ SIA SOl 104 SARSAY 01 oD dx3 - - -009T-EHT
£2°208'b22'T (103u0D) Jea Juauny - saungipuadxy - = -0OSHT-EVT
SE'E6L'86T (1enuas) saoueiqUNdLY PIRRPINbIUN - - 00ZPT-EHT
00°602'22T't SINUADY PareWNSS - -00THT-EHT
000 Spund PO Woid 3ng - - -ObbTT-EbT
0070 SIUBLULIBACD SRR WoL4 NG - = -OSHIT-EbT
00°0 3jqeAla0ay sjunay = - -OTHTT-ERT
88 TH9EE'T BRNSNLL LA USeD - - -OBTTT-EMT
66°661°L yueg uf ysey - = DETTI-EpT
ueieg UORALDSSQ JUno2dY J3quINN Ny
BLL) [enua) €91 : puny
T 40 1 d6eg ETOT SRqWDAON puny gns @ pungy
WV $1:6 €202/02/21 awlL/xeq puni-qns pue punj Aq 3294s aouejeg Aq 328ys ueeq iAq pagean

plopmer) ejhey s

uoReINpP] Jo preog AJuno) 3uan

pUYSA 397 dweN Rejdwa)



{IS'TIP'TYE) %60°CT 99'99¥°0ST'e  (VE'TPLTTE) 00°60T°ZLY'Y 00°0 00'60T°TLTY

€97 spund Jod |30

TOO o000 000 00 000 000 TG00 TuIISNvVHL DNILYS3d0 V101l 00067
000 e0png ON 000 0 000 (Y] 000 T bupesadg =
OE TS0 TvE) V05 T ST LU GPEC (IS ZUSEPS) U0 LIVEGHC B0'0 U0 LI £66°C INTWNEIA0D 1va303d 19101 O00ZF
GE5E0a) T 61 [} 10 00098 8% ! 098 5% ~vasn 34043
(2£°716'68) ST 89°/SE'9EY (2£°859'791) 00°910°665 000 00°910°665 15EpERIg ETILY
000 %000 00°ZZET0E 000 00°22E 10 000 00°2ZETOE SaNIPOWIOD YaSN 44947
(STH60°SHT) %L0°ET 06+99°24S'T (0T"8b5'TLP) 00'ETTHH0'2 000 00°ETZ'PH0°T YPUNT-HU0G3S TTTLY
o %000 00088 CE TG00 DO 0S8 ¢E 00 00 088 2% TA55INNAL 30 91915 V101 00097
00 %000 00088 ¢ 000 00 0BR CE 600 D008 2t MBS Podd 100035 00597
BWUOET OB EZeP DG ELELIv) 96 EtlCh) O0000 T BO00 T0000 T INNIATE VIO BIHI0 1VI0L  G00bP
(GT09¢5) 195pAg ON (3709¢) G1°09¢) 000 000 000 SpUgSY I 017
000 %BE"LETH (I9'€2€'TH) (I8'ELE°TH) 00°000°T 000 00°000°T pauIes 159553u] OTTHb
OO ol G UL TP L1V 606 {45 005 5Ee) OO BIG VL L B00 DOBIE PPL L S3JIAUIS INJUBND HOJ S3DUVHD TVI0L  OUDLY
000 %8 T6 60 80 (Z0%5516) 00 £9¢ 00% a0 00 €92 00% SIES ane) ey (4723
000 %97°ST 00°S8H'EET (00'¥+8'€2) 00°62€"£ST 000 00°6ZE £ST ¥epeasg Wo.d awodur €75Ep
000 %bb €T SLL8Y'SS (5T°£50°02) 00 TH5'S8 000 00°TH#S"S8 SINPY-S)USUIARY tPUNT TTSEr
000 %p6'61 SLPEL 10 (57°0S0°00T) 00°S8/°T0S 000 00°S82°10S UBIPNIYD-SIUBLUAR UM 14122
SNUIAIY JUBLND pazmyjessun pazijead Q1A pojewnsy (€301  SIUSWIpUBWY 153 [eUIBLO
eusjase) |enua) (32" ¢ pung
1 40 T abed €707 JOqUIBAON pun4 qns Aq
Juswislels sNUBAIY
WY 91:6 £202/0Z/CT @il /aeq punj-qng Aq SBNUSASY JO JRAWIILIS 91 tAq pageau)

piojmer piAey uasn UO[EONPZ JO pieog AJUN0D U

pauyag D9 PWEN ejduwag



ouze'sE  (SEZI9'869°Z)  SBE6L'S6T LLTOB'PLT'Y YE'ETZ'98E (o0"60zTLT'Y)  00°0 (00°60Z°TLT'Y) €T 1pung 104 |01
%zESE (BE'ZT9'869T)  SB'E6L'86T LLTOB'RLT'Y vEETT'98E (00'60Z°TLT'Y) 000 (00°'60Z°2LT'Y) 2oL
%ZE'SE  (BETIVN6T)  SSE6L'S6T LL'T08'vLe’T YE'ETT'I8E (o0'60Z’z£1'P) 000 (00°602°2L1Y) =0l
opzesE (8E€CT9°869°CT)  SO'E6L'96T LLTOS'VLT'T VEETT'98E (00'60Z°zLT'Y)  00°0 (00°60T'ZLT'Y) 9IAIBG POO4  DOTEL I=30L
%8508  (O1°06E"Hb) 0Z'§SL'TLT oLseb'eT 85°0Z€ {00'1£5'822) 000 (00'7.5'822) swdinbg sowues pooy 01
%T9'E9T  69'918°E 00'0 69°918'6 22494 (00°000°9) 00'0 (00'000'9} safueyy Bpo 665
%00°00T TE£'Z Qoo 1€ 000 00’0 00°0 000 volssiwwe) s@9isiil 0TS
%0070 (p086.'21) 000 000 0070 {o0'86L'2T) 00°0 (00'86L'eT) sleuajely puy sofiddns BL0  66F
%000 (00'zee'10€) 000 000 00°0 (oozze'1og) 000 {o0-zze'T08) saypowwo) - epsn 69
%00'0 (00°000°€) 00'0 000 00°0 (00000°c) 00's (00°000°E) soyddns Do StV
RETVE  (TTHLY'ETE'D) 000 68°¢82'861'T 85'5V6'TLE (00°852°21S°E) 00'e (00'8s¢'71S'E) SOOAIDS paIRNUOD BYID  66E
%526 (PEVL) 000 99'S26 000 (00°000°1) 000 {00°000'T) RAesL  SGE
%sLve (05790 00°000"1 05°LEL'E 000 (00°000°s) 000 {00'000°5) suLio4 puy Alsucnels ‘Bunuud  6VE
%00°0 (00°000°E) 00°0 000 000 (00°000°c) 00°0 (00°000"€) sabueyy jeisod  SKE
%5821 00°060°0T $9'BE0'9T SET96'8T 62'STLT (00°000°SE) 000 (00°000'5€) Jdinb3-sowiag Jeday puy ueumuiely  9E€
%0691  (ZS'T0b'S) 000 85'860'1 00'0 (00°005'9) 00’0 (00'005'9) vogeounwwo)  Z0E
Wbty (10°26) 00°0 66'56Z ov'T9 (00029} 000 (00'029) aenpay ;shodwy  TTE
%00°0 (00'0g) 000 000 000 (0g0g) 000 (00°0g) uopesuadwio) uswhojdwaun  OTC
%00'00T 000 000 00°057 000 (00'0ST) 000 (00'051) souemnsul |@wag 80T
%sese  (g1'296's) 000 89°CHT'E 000 {o0'002'6} 00'0 (00"002'6) ssueinsul (eipal  L0C
%008y  (08°2) 000 oTL o't (00'stT)} 00°0 (00'sT) soueinsul 41 90Z
%62'es  (SEE96'T) 600 $9'6€2°T Gbht (o0°€0Z'y) 000 (00°€02'Y) wewaunsy A4S H0Z
weLey  (16'9LZ'T) 000 655971 £5°29C (00'Tbs?) 000 {o0es') Aunxg jepos  TOZ
%62'es  (Z1'0S81'61) 000 88°6¥R'TC 89'LEE"Y (00°000°TH) 000 {00°000'TY) jpuuosrRd oM 9T
00TEL
axy soue(eg ssouesquIndug  saampuadxy  saImipuadxy bpng SuaWpUWY  jJunowy 336png uondisag JUNOIDY  JAGUINN JUNOIDY
wbpng paqunmusun Sulpuesing Aeq-0y-ied)  3eg-01-YIUOW papuswy 1obpng
30 %

eusaye) jenua) €Y1 pund

T 4o T abed €707 {SquiaaoN
WY 5Z:6 £20Z/02/2T 1wy f33ed pung Aq [0 Aq Alewng suNJIpuadxy Jo JUsWRIRIS 291 :Aq pajessd

piomenrd) ejiey Isn

uoneanpy jo pieog Ajunao) susaun

pauyeq D91 Pwep ARejdwdlL



00'0 sp9foud (e3ided uonednpl LY 'S|0L PURY
(£L0T8’6TT'ET) aouejeg Pund PUR ‘SIOINOSIY JO SMOUUT PaLSaq ‘seRiiqer) [RI01
(eTTPL'TITE) sapnba oL
00°S6£'625°91 paubisseun 136png - -00068-£2T
(69°8£6'C10°T) paubisseun - 0006E-24T
(00'115'6£8) sasoding 40 404 PaRIRsaY - -06SPE-LLT
(00°000°000°51) 310 - spafoid [eyde) 104 pIPLRSN - A1) -SBSYE-LLY
(67°€68'£8£2) JBDA Mol - SSOUBSGLUTOUR - -0TIPE-LLY
(SE¥61'16) 1R3A UILNT - SADULIQINOUT - -OTTHE-LLT
(05'8£0°888°6T) sapjjigen 1oL
(00°668'0) saxe] Audald usnbuiad pa.119Jsq - -SbE6Z-LLT
(00°£29°955°T) saxe] Aysdolg Jueund pauRsRa - -ObBET-LLT
(05" TT1"2LE) (janue)) sanushsy - -00S8Z-2L1
(00" SYEL6°LT) (jonuon) suogeudoiddy - -0018Z-4L1
000 sjqeieq SUNCOTY - -00TT12-2L1
EL'0TS’6TT'ET $A0INOSIY JO SMOPYING PILIIJIQ pue SRESY (0L
££°0Z8'6ZT'EL NISSY  |0L
6£°B0TESET JUJ SuA JOUd 104 SIS OL PBYD dx3 - 00SHT-LLT
60°ST5°6€ (joquoy) Je94 BN - SAUNYpUSd - -00SHT-2£T
SEPET'TE {foBu0)) SoURIqUIMUT Perepinbin - -00Z¥T-LLT
00059°£8€'T SANUBASY Paewns3 - -00TPE-£L1
(00°€z5'2E) e} Ayodold B|QEIIBOIUN J0d IDUBMORY - -OISTI-£LT
00°+86°0€9°T SlgenaIay sexe . Apadold - -00STI-2LT
00°0 SJBUWLLIBAOS) JALNO Wol4 3ng - -0EPTI-LLT
000 3qeAIIAY SJUNCXTY = ~OTpII-LLT
06'768°659°87 SASIUL YIM UseD = -0BITT-LLT
oueey uopdpIsaQ JUNONY JOQLUNN JUNCoyY
spafold jey)de) uopeonpl L% pund
1 jo 1 abed £Z07 42qUWAAON pung gng g pund
WY 0€:6 £202/02/71 @ /e3eq pung-qns pue pung Aq 3324s Ioueieg Aq 199yS nueeq :Aq payeasd

piopae) BRH

UoREINPJ o preog AJUNOD IUFMD

pouysg J97 roweN Rejdutal



(66' 222 6EY) %8T LT 0S°8ES'0T0'T (0S°TTT LLE) 00'0S9'Z8E'T 0070 00'0S9°Z8ET 12301
TOFESG PLI %98 LLE oL V&S 537 ot 25 520 DO 000 0L (seg] B0 SNN3ASY Vo0 §3RL0 1vIOL _ UO0PY
000 Jabpng oN (S0'E61°ST) (S0"€61'ST) 00°¢ 000 00’0 Spunyay ISI 0LTHY
(0b"€96'pT) %68'10€ (bT'8LE"OF) {18209} 00'000°0T 00°0 00700002 paLwwey 153831 )74
? OO DUUSO ZOE T =—SIXVL 17001 TWi0L _ UO0OF
000 000 0070007 000 00000°E 00'0 007000 D3PX] qued 0Ze0F
(b8°£08} %e8'1L $Z'25E (9£°¢68) 00'0S2°T 000 00°05Z'1 JSYI0 $IXE] 4O Nan Ui JudwiAed £910%
(18°0LT) %Z8'8L 18'11¢ (61°88¢) 00'000°T 000 00°000°T Ay|nN (@207 SIXEL JO N3N Ul JuIWAed 7910%
(€z'zs) %C9"bL +a'es (91°192) 00°0SE 00°0 00°0SE VAL 53X JO N3 Ul SUBIUABd 1970%
(€9'+00'T) %6963 vbeLe (95'922'S) 00°005'Z 000 00°005°L Ajjeudd B 1saaju] ObTOb
(18'b€6) %89°0L 82250°C (T2 Lv6'p) 00°000°Z 000 00'000°Z pi=eRie) o] 0£TOr
96'%) %2867 60°0b (16°6) 00°0S 000 00°0S Adjdnnjueg uonoaj0) SRS L STIOP
(89'b2+'€) %ITL6 §£'429 (S9°2L8°T2) 00'005°Z¢ 000 00'005°CT JBO JOUJ-SUONPIY[OD S,3a18M | 0TI
(€0°¥98°£1T) %6102 PIEP'L50'T (9£'9£5°£92) 00'000'5Z€E'T 00°0 00°000°SZE'T xe|] Apadold WBLn) oT10¥
INUDAIY JUBLIND pozyedy pazjeasun pazijeay QLA pajewnsy [0l SJuAWpURAY 353 jeulbo

% spalold [e1lae) uonesnpa LT ipund

T Jo 1 abed €T0T 19qUWIDAON pung gns Aq

WS NUBATY
WY 82:6 £202/02/21 :awL/33eq pund-qns AgQ SONUSADY JO JUBLINES 291 Aq pajeasd

picMmer) ejaey

oSN

uoiedNp3 JO piecg AJUno) audls pauyRq D91

zawepN ejdwdL



YELQ (95°SEL/TBL'LT) SEPET'T6 60°STS'6€ LLTEYFT (00'sr¥'ET6°LT) 00°0 (00'st¥'e16'LT) LT :pungd 104 [90L
o%EL'0  (9S°SEL'TSL'LI) SEVEI'T6 60°STS’6€ LLTES'PT (00'SYY'ET6'LT) 0070 (00'SH#'ET6°LT) =301
%eL0  (9S'SEL'TBL'LI) SE'VET'TE 60°STS'6E LLTES'YT (00°stb’s16'LT)  00°0 (00°SP¥'ET6°LT) e30L
%el0  (£8°200°€8L'L1) SEH6I'T6 8L TYT'6E LLTEB'YT (00°SYY'ETE'LT) 000 (00°SP¥'ET6°LT) 00ET6 {20l
%00°0 {00"0c0"'095) 00’0 00'0 00'0 (00°000°095) 00’0 (00°000°095) juswdinb3 uogepodsuel] 62
%TE0 (00'505°692'91) SEYH1'9Y 59'SbL’S YO'v02'E {00'sb+'128'91) 000 (oo'st'1Z8'aT) suawesosdwi Suping  LOZ
%0£0z  (£8°705's2) 000 ET°L6b"9 ££°829'C (00°0002€) 000 (00°000°Z€) uojssjuuoD spasiu) 0TS
%0%¥E  (00°000'8ZH) 00°000'sP 007000°£2 00'000'6 {00°000°00S) 000 {00°000°005) spamaty H0E€

spafold leade) uonednpy  00ET6
%00°00T TETLT 00°0 TEe'2LT 000 000 00°0 000 0TEZL 18300
%00°001  TE€ZLT 0070 1eUL 000 0070 000 00°'0 votssiwwo) saa3snul 0TS
OTETL
axg duejeg seoueiquinouz  sainypusdxy  seunypuedx3 yobpng SUDWPUBWY  Junouwy J6png uondpsag JUN0Y  JIqUINN JUN03DY

@6png pasaquinduaupn bBupuelsjng  3JRQ-03-JBOA  IRJ-0}-YIUOW pepuBswy wbpng

JO %
spafosd jende) uonednpy ZLT  :pund
T Jo T abeg £70Z I9qWIACN

WY Z€:6 £20z/0Z/ZT sewiL/s1ed pung Ag [0 AqQ AlelWwing S3aMIpuadxd Jo USRS 91 Aq pajeas)
pIOMED) BIACH HE ) uonesnpy Jo pieog AQUnod duan pauyag 191 Pwep Rejdwal



0 6TEPST SLCT ¢s'el €811 ce0T 0 §5¢0¢e 00¢6 9'6¢/S9T | CO'CLTY 889¢ S/L'SET 4514 999 SP'SEVC | 99°68S9T | STVLIOL
Sa1 S sa1 SNOL # S1vO Sg1 Se1 S Sg1 Sa1 Sq1 SNOL # # SNOL SNOL
6€EE9 €6¢ (74729 9'6¥EO0T 4410 AON

0cre 0¢8L S8°S 9T 9¢ LETVET LSS 6¢
029C 00S8T LL'Y 6T 8¢ 68°LT1 6¢€1 8¢
00s8 4 €8T 09¢¢1 vS'1T 9T 14 €0'C0T (514 /4
00S8 Ev'e TE€T L0 4% 85 L T1S'8€T 1099 9¢

#+5C

68°9L 74
ov9t 039 ovs9e £6'C [T €T 89'60T SL°6S [44
08¢9 v’ ST ve €6'88 8799 114
08/9 €v'y (33 088L 56 14" S¢ YO LIT £'6E 0¢
0091 S6'T 8¢ [43 19°1T1 6E°¢EL 61
0v66 080t¢ €L°ST LE 0s T LT €0'LET 81
9T'¢ L8T 09¢6 98T 8T St 856 99'TL ST
0¢6¢ 00¢6 [4%°] 8T Le 80°CET €99 14"
081¢ ¥9'0 6T 096 9L'6 11 1¢C 8601 8¢'8¢ €7
S.CT 079 0¢sc 0 [43 6€ vCeer (44 [4)
090§ S¥'¢ €1T Ov6ET 86 VT 143 [4) TO'EET 9'6ET T
08TT 0cee E€T'E YT 0¢ 90°0TT 85779 8
00v6 61T'¢ 06T vy ST Sic Ly'TCT 1’19 L
08sT [4%3 0€¢ 090t 97’6 €T 144 Ev'eTt [A A% 9
09€LT (4374 [40)4 SE'9 oy 144 SELLT 87'69 S
0849 07601 Sv'8 0¢ 14 19°/61 €L°8ET 1%
0¢8¢ SLT 0078 889¢ 66°C 61 8¢ 59°L9 59'69 T

NIM 1331s 1H91IaM | INNOD 1o SSvig NOILLV1S €¢,230
_ ION3d  |IHOI1 /NILHOLYIaVY| 3J¥IL L a3isn 1lvg IANY ‘d'N'O 200 JILSY1d | /43dd0d | OW3a ‘snd SAVO1 |¥3dSNVYL| SNOL ilva

31SVM alTOS ALNNOJ INIIYD




vL°9S

vL9S

TV101l ANVYD

90°'v

90t

SANId 1S3IM

IN3IIYD 1SIM

NMOLYINTVM

6¢’L

6t°L

JAISANNNS

SINVT LS

o

O3INWON

o

ANVE3INHO

a1vNOaWN

€8S

£€8°'S

A334D ISYOH

QYVYN3H TVH

ANOLSAIYD

66°0T

66'0T

Asnd3aa

L9

L9

HYOHINV SSOYD

SONIUdS ¥VITD

NOl1A31IVE

LLTT

LLTT

NOLldv

V10l

AvValyd

AVASYNHL

AVASINGIM

Avds3ini

AVANOW

431N3D

g€eoz/t/Tt

TZ/T/2T 40)3IM

HLSVAA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHHAAD

AVd ¥3d SNOL 4O1OVdINOD




LL'LST 1'0S 88'1Th vS €€ v9°sv 19'98 1VL10L ANVYD
9Z'L 9T'L SANId 1SIM
1L°9€ 99'8T S0'ST ANIIYD 1SIM
8.°'ST 8€'/ '8 NMOLYINTVM
9’ TT 9,9 L't JAISANNNS
EE'VT £€8°'S S8 SINVT 'LS
4’ 8's S8 03noY
ZT9 AN) MNVE3IYO
€1°0T S8'Y 87'S a1vNOQ\
TY°61 9Z'9 ISV v9'8 N3FYD ISHOH
16'tC ¥S°TT LETT AYVN3H 1VH
85'8 85'8 INOLSAIYD
v LT'TT €TET sng3aa
ST'8 ST'8 YOHONY SSOHD
LTS LTS SONIYS ¥V3I1
€TET £8'S e NOlAITIvE
£0'8€ 80°0¢ S6°LT NOLl4v
V101 AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasani AVANOW YILNTD
€z0z/8/21  |€Toe/L/er  |€Zoe/9/TT |€T0T/S/TT gzoz/v/Tt €2/v/2T 40 M3IMm

AVd ¥3d SNOL ¥O1DVdINOD

ALSVAA dI'IOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




b 9T 1T°LS 9'Lp 6T°€C STv 61°26 TV.1OL ANVYD
Z8'ET 6t'9 €€°L SANId 1SIM
v'LE 8t'6T T6°LT INTIYD 1SIM
LT 9'g 19’8 NMOLYINTVM
et T6'L S'v JAISANNNS
b L L SINVT "LS
ST'ET 1S ST'8 030y
GE'S GE'S MNVEIHO
1T €8't LT'9 a1vYNOQ2
L'6T £€6'S 8T’V 6t'6 N33YD ISHOH
6v'TT SE'TT ¥T°0T QYVYN3H 1VH
9T St's ST'L ANOLSAIYD
16°SC LTTT v9°v1T sng3ia
10°ST 98'9 ST'8 HOHONY SSOHD
S0°S S0°S SHNIYS VI
ShvT 6t°'9 96°L NOLATTIVE
8T'SE ¥L°8T ¥5°9T NOL4V
V10l AVAIYd| AVASHNHL| AVASINAIM AVasini AVANOW Y3INID
€202/ST/TT |€202/vT/TT |€20T/€T/T1 |€20Z/eT/er  |€202/IT/TT | €2/1T/TT 40 %IIM

AVA ¥3d SNOL HOL1OVdINOD

HLSVAA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




AVAITOH 01 3INa
ATdVY3 A31Nd«

61°89 G6'6T€ 126V 60°'8€ ¥9°0€ LE'SY Sb'88 1V1O0L ANVYD
86't 99'ZT 89°L SANId 1SIM
L' SE S0'LT A1 INIIYD 1SIM

WL 18'CC 61°9 6 NMOLYINTYM
LTt €991 L S6'Y JAISANNNS
90°2T LTS 689 SINVC "LS

L'ET €6't LL'8 o[/ [e}!]

6€'9 6€9 MNVE3I40

vz 01 IV £€6°S d1vNOQ2>W

SL'L ¥8°92 LY 99't we N33YD ISYOH
S6°L 87'TE 19°TT we AYVYN3H 1VH
19 v9'vT €7'8 INOLSAIYD
6S°'S 9€'ZE s STYT sngia
9€'9 vy €T 80°L YOHINV SSOHD
YR 9Lt SHNIYS VI

€19 99°/T (4% 19 NOLATTIVE
€E°ET 10°0S '6T 8T'LT NOl4VY
AVAQYNLYS V10l AVAIlYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINAIM AVasint AVANOW Y3INDD
gzoe/ez/Tt €202/T2/TT |€e0T/1T/TT  |€202/02/2T |€20T/61/21  |€202/8T/TT | €Z/8T/2T 40 X3am

AVA ¥3d SNOL 4O1DVdINOD

HLSVA AI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




SVIALLSIIHD

404 Isomn
62'STC 68° TV vE'STT 9€'SE LT 0 1V1OL ANVYD
20°0T 86'T v0'8 SANId 1SIM
¥6'6€ 90°SZ 88T INIIYDO 1SIM
L'l L'L NMOLYINTYM
81T 90't veL 3AISANNNS
87’8 87'8 SINVT °LS
90°'t'T vL 99'9 O3NoY
) MINVEIHO
€8 LvL €8°0 a1vyNOa>
9¢'TT 80'C 87'6 334D ISYOH
69'LT 69°'LT QYVYN3H TVH
59'9 59'9 INOLSAIYD
18'S¢ €6'8T LS 9T'T sng3ia
€6'TT bS'€E 6€'8 YOHINV SSOHD
£v's £'S SONIYAS VI
96°'S 96'S NOLAITIVE
9€°0€ €11 90'6T NOLl4v

V101 AVAIYdd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM AvVasani AVANOW Y3IINID
€202/62/21 |€T0T/82/tT |€207/LZ/TT  |€20T/9t/TT  |€202/SZ/TT | €2/S2/2T 40 XIIM

AVA ¥3d SNOL HOLOVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHIIAD




6TVITL 1v10L1l ANVYS
[A: WA S3ANId 1Sam
¢s'evt INIIYO 1SIM
95°09 NMOLYINTVM
L'LS JAISANNNS
1247 SANVT LS
T0°SS O3INOoY
98°'LT JMNVE3HO
(9°6¢E a1vNOadW
PT°€E8 N334 ISYOH
LE'96 QYVN3H TVH
LYy INOLSAIYD
LV'6TL Asng3aa
€T°SS HOHONV SSOYD
15°0¢ SONIRICS ¥VITD
€'1S NO.1AJIvd
E1ATA NOLldVv

€707 ¥349IN303d 404 STv10L HO1IVdNOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




(@3asn 41) SQYYD XIM Y04 NMOHS AINO LNNOIAY 1SOD 310N+

2'98¢ 0798¢ 0 ¢'86S. L'LLE SIviolL
13Nd dOHS 6°0¢
SHONYL NOILY.LS HI4SNVHL 6.°.0L 66182
JTOIHIA S1HVd /XANNY Z8 cvel 09LL [s}=[oE | ccoc 8¢
HOSIAYAANS 162 141 [8¢1944 9042 ado4d cz0e LE
"INIVIN ¥91N3D Lse 9've 1516 9088 ado4d 202 9¢
440 7110d 18°8L Loce 1°50S 5618 £8961 MOV 2202 SE€
440 710d v.°0¢ 1962 9'8¢9 /6619 9€06S MOV ceoe Ve
HIMONW 9e 280ve [S140144 054 404 220c %
d3AAvO1 LNOHA 157¢e L06¢ L¥99 £V6€.L crolLL MOVYIN [44V14 ce
MONHL F1ddVdO TvL3IN /OW3FA §8'8 Svol 2'86C G26SS 08¢rS TYNOILYNYHILNI Leoc 1e
d3Av01 LNOHA G6'LS (010} 4 6’8 Z0vSSt 200SsSs 1 MOV g€loc 0¢
d3AvOoT1 LNOY4 0 8¥eE8e 8PreESE MOV 14114 6¢
"INIVIAl /OINVHO3W 0 Gll6le S/l6le 06s-4 100¢ 214
IY13IW/ONWIa 9001 1'66 09reL V1472 0Ssg-d 0coc yx4
"INIVIN /OINYHO3IN 6l 0.55¢ 01555¢ 0s¢e-4 £002 74
Iv1idW/ONW3a £9°E £8Y1 L'¥St 91619 £e¥09 0se-d 014014 14
(41¥d3y NI) ¥3av01 LNOYd 0 S/8vEY S/8veY AOVIN 100¢ [ %4
"INIVIN /OINVHOIWN 796 9’19 6 18Ge0¢ £€¢910¢ 0se-d 100 [#4
¥3dv07 LNOHA 0 00000C 000002 MOVIN 1002 |74
SILVAINI NVA 6 0v06¢2}) 1£062L NVA AAIHO 1002 (114
"INIVIN /OINVYHOIN LS S'v9 865EEC 280€¢ecC ¥ X ¥ 05¢-d 1002 6l
440 710d v8'L S8 8'8€l 8esysSt #89¢€S1 MOVIN 121414 Ll
340 7110d 18'S [Sr44% §'09¢ er1Ssl vLLiEGL AOVIN 4104 9l
440 T10d 169 €69 egeel 960..1 €0v9.LL AOVIN 102 Sl
440 710y 2c'8s 901 1'62C 16889} 128191 MOVIN 710¢ 143
"LNIVIN /OINVHO3IN 192 §'S0l £¢8561 950561 X ¥ 06¢-d 800¢ 43
MONY1 dOHS 8l¢c v'iZ 0cac [0 <4 AOVIN €ecoe oL
3440 710y 901 99 89598 29198 MOVIN 900e 6
FTOADTY /43AVOT LNOYS 9/.°/2 SE6C 6°219 0L9/81 S/9991 MOV 810¢ 8
AY3IAIMAA Y3INIVINOD 00¢ 7'€S £26e £29¢ TYNOILYNAI3LNI 6002 FA
"INIVIN /OINVHO3IN 0 chllle L LiLe 0se-d 1661 9
“INIVIN ¥3LIN3IO 0501 L'¥8 €1¢S61 £91v61 0s1-d4 100¢ S
MONY1L MO0 0 88€0.¢ 88€0.¢ dNNaHI G861 b4
JOSINYIdANS siol .8 L'l8 Sale9l L6ceol 0G¢-d g€1oc €
43av01 LNOHS 0 £9818¢2 €9818¢ MOV 002 4
J3IAVOT LNOYS §8°6C Ll¥e 885 18996} 0lZysi MOVIN 6102 l
J01034Iq 8€L 9'9§ 0€00C 6261 adod eoe 700
s|eb EIETN: s|eb sjeb abeay obea)
asn A"__mn_v P w_w__s_ * 809 [end _omA..".___u\_w:u_ mhm_\_mw."_ m:__uwu_ mc_:c__w_w_m DIVIN yvIA #MoNulL

Y38W303a ¥Z. 4V3IA TVISH
130434 3I9VITN /SVD ILSVYM AIT0S ALNNOD INITYD




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes December 6, 2023
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,

Tennessee
MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner
Paul Burkey-Commissioner
ALSO:
Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Erin Elmore — HR Director
Roger Woolsey- County Attorney TJ Manis- EMS Assistant Director
Calvin Hawkins-EMS Director David Beverly — Chief Deputy
Christian Michael Dalton- Extension Agent | Nathan Holt- Trustee

Anthony Shelton - Interim Greene County Ag Director

OTHERS:
Spencer Morrel- Greeneville Sun
Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director

CALL TO ORDER:
Commissioner Brad Peters called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday,
December 6st, 2023 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the November 1st, 2023 meeting was made by
Commissioner Quillens and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion was approved with no
opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:
For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by
Mayor Morrison.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS NEEDING APPROVAL BY THE BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE Greene
County Sheriff Wesley Holt requested that from the Other Public Safety Resource Officers budget that
$57,482 from Medical Insurance (207) and $172,307 be taken from School Resource Officer (170) and
the amount of $35,604 be transferred in Law Enforcement Equipment (716) for SRO equipment and the
remaining $194,185 be transferred into Motor Vehicles (718) for the purchase of five Pursuit Dodge
Durango’s. Commissioner Quillen motioned to approve and was seconded by Commissioner Smithson.
All were in favor.

RESOLUTIONS:

A. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $4,385 to the
Sheriff's Department for funds received from AAA Bail Bonding for inmate transportation
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner
Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

B. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $850 to the
Sheriff's Department for funds Other Public Safety Resource officers for funds received
from a contribution for the FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by
Commissioner Smithson and was seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes December 6, 2023
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,
Tennessee

C. Aresolution to appropriate $12,600 for training with Integrity K-9 for the K-9 unit and the
purchase of data processing equipment from the Sheriffs Department Restricted Fund
for the FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Burkey and
was seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

D. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Jail in the
amount of $14,734 for the annual allocation of the Training Equipment Grant for the June
30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Smithson and was seconded
by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

E. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Jail in the
amount of $34,327 for the annual allocation of the Mental Health Transportation Grant for
the FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was
seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

F. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds in the amount of
$610,000 to the Emergency Medical Services Department for the purpose of two
ambulances with power loads for the FYE June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve
by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

G. Aresolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to reappropriate funds in the amount
of $35,000 to the UT Extension of Agriculture Department from the Soil Conservation
Department for the addition of a 4-H position sponsored in part by TSU for the FYE June
30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Smithson and was seconded
by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

H. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate an increase in the
State of Tennessee Department of Health Grant of $8,400 for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by
Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

I.  Aresolution to appropriate funds to the Greene County Election Commission received as
a reimbursement from vendor supplying electronic pollbooks and software to the Greene
County Election Commission. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Burkey and
was seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

J. Aresolution of the County Commission of Greene County, Tennessee approving an
economic impact for the Mosheim Crossing Development area. Motion was made to
approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. After
further discussion, it was decided to change three paragraphs on page 2 and 4. A motion
was made to amend Resolution J, giving Attorney Woolsey authority to speak to the
Bond Attorney to make changes and rewrite as needed and recommended by
Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes December 6, 2023
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,
Tennessee

DISCUSSIONS:
Hotel/Motel research was discussed. It was decided that a person was needed to reach out to various

locations and inform them that they needed to pay by a certain deadline. Building and Zoning
employee possibly could cover this with a parttime person. A motion was made by Commissioner
Quillen and seconded by Commissioner Smithson to allocate $30,000 to get letters out and have on

agenda. All agreed.

NEXT MEETING:
The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, January

3rd, 8:30 AM Held in the Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:
Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Burkey at 9:50 A.M. seconded by Commissioner

Smithson.

Respectfully submitted,
Regina Nuckols
Budget & Finance Secretary



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
November 22, 2023
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:

Kevin Motrrison-Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director William Dabbs-Comm.

Brad Peters-Comm. Kathy Crawford-Comm. Roger Woolsey- County Atty.
Wesley Holt-Sheriff

Also, Present:
Kim Peterson-TSC Leslie Jones- Clinic Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.

Call to Order:
Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Crawford to
approve the minutes from October 25, 2023. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for October 2023. There was a total of 291 patients seen (77
more than last year), of those patients, 185 were provider visits and 106 were nurse visits. There
were 65 biometric physicals. There were 5 no show provider visits. There were 946 prescriptions
given out (61 less than last year). Roger inquired as to how many total lives are covered and
Danny reported for Decemberthere are 8186 total lives covered. Roger inquired about the drainage
issues at the clinic and as far as Leslie knows all drainage issues have been resolved. There have
been no complaints about the clinic from employees. Roger stated he was very thankful the clinic
is working out and acknowledged Leslie for being such a good manager of the clinic.

Danny Lowery gave the financial reports for October 2023. Claims are up and Danny asked Leslie
to check with Jennifer and/or Chris to see what the issue may be. Unless it’s a definite emergency,
Danny encouraged everyone to keep everything in house as much as possible. Danny stated we
should see an improvement on the revenue side due to the jump of 30-40 covered lives. Danny
is hopeful that things will start to even out with claims and the jump in covered lives. Danny stated
the clinic is doing great and a lot of things that went undone or unchecked are now being taken
care of. It's a definite balance. Roger stated he recalled reading an article that as a nation, medical
costs are 40% higher as before the pandemic. The inflation is seen in a lot of things and
everywhere. Leslie stated she does her best to get the patients in the clinic and if she can’t get
them in, she reminds them of the text care so they don’t go to an urgent care. Again, it's a balance.
Danny stated that Chris Poynter said BCBS is close to a contract with Ballad so there will be no
drop in coverage. Roger stated we are in good shape and we have a healthy balance in the self-
insurance fund and we just always need to keep an eye onit. A motion to approve these reports
was made by County Attorney Woolsey. Motion was seconded by Sheriff Holt. Reports were
approved with no opposition.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
November 22, 2023
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Discussion:

Other Business.

Attorney Roger Woolsey brought up an issue with the student work programs in the county school
system. The Board of Education has several student work programs with local
companies/businesses and those companies/businesses are not wanting to use students unless
BOE agrees to insure them for liability purposes. Roger stated this is a new trend for companies
and the last contract he looked at with Walgreens stated it would not let the student intern unless
the school provides liability insurance for the student. The way he looks at it, if it's a beneficial risk
then we will have to accept it. He stated we don't have much negotiating power because these
companies don’t have to take the students. Danny inquired as to how it would work because he
only submits the county’s payroll and numbers and that does not include any student. Roger
talked to Johnand he says it’s all rolled up into the county’s insurance and won'’t affectreinsurance
at all. Roger stated that not every employer requires it but he is seeing it more and if we want to
keep this benefit, we will have to do it. The agreement with all companies states that there is a
Supervisor/Instructor with the student at all times. Roger doesn't think there is much risk and he
recommends that the county approve the liability insurance for the students. A motion to approve
that Greene County will provide liability insurance for students in the work programs in the county
school system was made by Commissioner Dabbs. Motion was seconded by Commissioner
Crawford. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by Sheriff Holt. Motion was seconded by
Commissioner Dabbs.

Claims:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Attorney Roger Woolsey to
deny TSC-0001988. There was no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Sheriff Holt to approve TSC-
0001970. There was no opposition.

Motion to adjourn was made by Danny Lowery and seconded by Sheriff Holt. There was no
opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Greene County Commission Education Committee
30 October 2023
Regular Meeting

The Greene County Commission Education Committee met at 3:30 PM at the Greene County Schools Central Office
for its regular November meeting.

Committee Members in Attendance: Chairman Bill Dabbs, Lioyd Bowers, Kathy Crawford, Larkin Clemmer, Jan
Kiker and Paul Burkey. Director David McLain was present as well.

Others in Attendance:

The Committee reviewed the minutes from 5 September meeting. Mr. Larkin made the motion to accept the
minutes. Ms. Kiker seconded. The motion to approve the minutes passed unanimously.

Mr. McLain presented a draft resolution to amend the 2023-2024 School budget to reflect an increase in local
option sales tax in the amount of $800,000 bringing the budget sales tax revenue amount to $8.9 million. Mr.
Bowers moved to recommend that the County Commission approve this resolution. Ms. Crawford seconded. The
motion passed unanimously.

Mr. McLain also provided a few comments regarding the current status of school system grading. The new A-F
grading system has still not come out.

Meeting adjourned.

The next Education Committee meeting will be at 3:30 PM on Monday, December 11, 2023.

%/ . ﬂzé‘z?
Respectfully submitted,

Paul Burkey
Secretary



911
Tuesday, November 14, 2023 - 3:30 PM

Pamela Carpenter Kevin Morrison

Hoot Bowers TJ Manis

Tim Ward Calvin Hawkins

Danny Green Wesley Holt

Dustin Jeffers David Beverly

Jerry Bird Kelly Dabbs

Jor Waddell Roger Woolsey

Alan Shipley Nelson Morales (Greeneville Sun)

Todd Smith - Matthew Greenlee (McDonald VFD)

é S\ ‘t_;\i_ﬁ DLE. Dustin Keller (Midway VFD)
200y LAtk Harold Williamson (Mosheim VFD)

Absent- James-Feshie~ Josh Teegusen
Hoot 1st Teddy 2nd Passed the Minutes

John Waddle gave the Treasurer Report

Things are better. Money received even months 1.469 million in the bank.
Andrew Johnson payroll

Money Market Greeneville Federal & Apex

Roger asked to check Eastman on banking arrangements

1st Hoot 2nd Alan on Treasury Report

Kelly has 4 training (I was just released from training)

3ave - 461 people joined so far - Advertising needed

9,000 people were on old system Hyper Reach

21,000 landlines were transferred in

120 were notified in the recent fire {,\. Fire)

Roger suggested sending a letter to Hyper Reach to transfer records to Rave.
City schools met with Rave & 911

8 schools and central office

accepted 2 to test for dispatchers

1 county school (Baileyton) with Mr. Jones 1 city

Daniel Thompson is county school representative aid paid $17,000
Tim asked Jerry to get city alarms and get it done this week

2023 was to be installed in July by state law

Jerry each school sends in a plans (Project Mgr.)

Recorder Update

Dec. 11, 2023 to set up on that date & what they can do (installation)
requires 3 days training

John says this is imparative this be done now

Next Gen 4th in line next year

3 projects done to be completed



New Business

Fire chiefs asked to speak (Associations) about Rave
Dispatch issues (give to Ryan then Jerry)

Wrong dispatch to wrong area crossing 2 different areas
McDonald is 8.7 miles to Midway

getting worse 6 wrong calls since Sept 18th

Jerry said it was a mapping issue

no boundary between McDonald and Midaway

which messed up city map- equipment issue

Tim said check all others now

What can be done to stop mistakes

Jon said it is not easy to adjust

notice comes in wrong

Life assist medical call - | am responding

TJ manis slow dispatch (huge delay)
Med unit was not told about situation
answering is a long delay for 911

Law enforcement can't answer 911
one person per shift is assigned

Two extra will be trained in mid December

13 out of 18 are new people

Turn over causes (growing pains)

Tim asked Jerry what is your fix for these problems

Kelly - Quality Assurance major event checks about response of employee
no time to update Q&A lives are at risk

Hoot- asked should we send the police & sheriffs depts (dispatching)
Wesley questions the peron who leaves their job for that reason
County fire dept. on this (advisory board) asked Harold Williamson
Roger explained to keep up emails & letters not just (finding & staffing)
Recorder Rave new projects are taking time to implement

John wants a fence at 911 (security wise)

Hoot 1st & Alan 2nd to adjourn 5:00 PM ~

BYAEA"S ‘w

\

( }Jt DN \\’/72



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday,
November 14, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam Riley, Chairman Kevin-Merrison—County-Mayor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Roger Woolsey, County Attomey

Gary Reetor-Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Phillin-Oti

Jason Cobble

Becky Rideout

Also participating: Interested citizens

The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. The Chairman asked if members
had received the draft minutes of the October 10, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Lyle Parton,
seconded by Gwen Lilley, to approve the minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

Presidential View RV Resort. The Chairman opened the floor to a discussion of concerns about the
Presidential View RV Park, which had been approved at the October 10, 2023 meeting. Amy Tweed
stated Stephanie Hopson had asked to be on the agenda. The Chairman stated that discussion would
be limited to five people on each side of the debate, with a speaking time of three minutes each.

Kathleen Carr, of 600 Woolsey College Road, stated that RV resorts should not be permitted in the
A-1 [General Agriculture] zone, and that RV resorts and campgrounds were two different things. Ms.
Carr expressed concern that the neighbors were not given an opportunity to speak about the proposal,
and that it should never have been approved without public comment and public notice. Further,
notice of the meeting was in the paper, but the agenda was not included. Ms. Carr stated she did not
believe the proposal met the general standards in the Zoning Resolution, and was concerned about
potential wind damage, the inability of RV’s to make the turns necessary to access the park, and the
need for more research on the issues.

Julie Davidson, of 610 Woolsey College Road, said she was concerned about the lack of notification,
and that environmental aspects of the development should be considered. Ms. Davidson provided a
handout with pictures of the area, which showed the width of roads that would have to be traveled by
the RV’s, and expressed concern for the safety of people using the road. Specifically mentioned was
the inability of school buses and cars to pass on the roads before the County cut back the trees located

1



along the road. Ms. Davidson stated that a neighbor, who spoke to owners, was told that the RV park
would have flea markets and would sell produce and the like. Finally, each entrance would be placed
in narrow flag lots which were not wide enough for RV turning movements. As a result, the RV’s
would have to encroach onto neighboring properties which, because of its location, included her
paved driveway and a neighboring property.

Dwayne Gibson of 375 Kelley Gap Road stated he had purchased property in the area which he used
as a certified organic farm. His main concern was how the RV park could impact Camp Creek and
the water in the area, specifically the spring he used to water his crops. Mr. Gibson was also
concerned about traffic generated by the development, and the other things brought up by previous
speakers. He also expressed concern about lighting for the development and asked if the lights would
be “capped”.

Danielle Gruber of 2678 Sunnydale Road stated she ran an equine rehabilitation center, and was
concerned about the potential impact to the quality of the environment in the area. Ms. Gruber
expressed concern that the development would take what was so special about the area and make it
like everywhere else, specifically that Greene County would no longer be agricultural. The width of
the roads, and the movement of RV’s interfering with farm equipment on the road was also a concern.

Aimee Eucce of 110 Woolsey College Road, stated the roads were barely wide enough for two cars,
much less RV’s, to pass, that Woolsey College Road in particular was not designed for two-way
travel, and she was concerned about the safety of kids biking in the area. Ms. Eucce questioned why
the A-1 zone had strict regulations for daycares, (limited to 16 children with required access to
“feeder” or arterial roads), but not for campgrounds and RV parks. She stated this did not make sense,
to put such regulations on smaller businesses, but not larger businesses that will have an impact on
the community. Ms. Eucce also stated her belief that the people starting businesses in Greene County,
need to stay in the community so they could be part of things, and not be in and out of the County.

The Chairman asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the RV development. Mr. and Mrs.
Merklin stated they were at the meeting to answer questions and concerns. Mr. Merklin said that,
generally speaking, a campground is a lot of campsites that are bunched together, and the main focus
is to get as many campers in as possible. Their development would start out with 40 RV sites and
two cabins, and no more than seven cabins in total would be constructed. It would be more spacious,
private, have more landscaping and nicer common spaces, like a barn/clubhouse, laundry facilities,
restrooms, an outdoor pickle ball court and outdoor chess. The resort would be adults only with
enforced quiet time hours. Mr. Merklin stated they wanted to focus on agri-tourism, where their
guests could have interactions with local farmers, and planned to have gardens where guests could
pick their own fruits, vegetables, and herbs. He added that RV’s are not wide loads and no longer
than a school bus, and would not hurt roads or other properties.



With no one else wishing to speak in favor of the RV resort, Amy Tweed discussed the records
requests that had been received and fulfilled. Stephanie Hopson had requested records from the
October 2023 planning commission meeting, and she was provided with a Planning Commission
packet and copies of the aerial photographs and site plan presented at the October meeting. A copy
of the October 2023 minutes would be provided after the meeting, as they had been approved as the
first order of business. Amy Tweed stated local attorney Bill Nunnally had requested the same
information and it had been prepared for him to pick up.

Tim Tweed began to summarize the approval process, as it pertained to the Zoning Resolution. The
process was that the Planning Commission made recommendations about zoning regulations to the
County Commission, who actually determined what the regulations would be. When a proposal was
submitted to the Planning Commission for a development, as long as it met the requirements they had
to approve it. Likewise, staff didn’t have the authority to make changes to the regulations, and could
only present the proposal to the Planning Commission. As of that day, there was nothing the Planning
Commission could really do about the RV resort. There was still information that had to be submitted
in order to fulfill the site plan requirements, because plan approval had been contingent upon receipt
of the additional information.

Tim Tweed and Mr. Merklin discussed concerns about damaging winds at the RV site, and Mr.
Merklin stated the development would be closed during high wind months. A question was raised
about planting smaller trees in the buffer than what was required. Tim Tweed stated that a variance
would have to be approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals if the owners wanted to plant shorter
trees than what was required. Mr. Merklin stated they had already planted buffer trees so they would
be at the required height by the time the project was completed.

Roger Woolsey stated the most common concemn voiced to him about the RV project was about the
appropriateness of RV parks in the A-1 zone. He said this was not something the Planning
Commission could decide at the meeting, as their responsibility was to review the plan to ensure the
RV park complied with the existing regulations. Mr. Woolsey explained that the Planning
Commission had a responsibility to abide by the zoning ordinance, Tim Tweed was to enforce the
provisions of the regulations, and both he and Tim were to see that the terms of the ordinance was
carried out. In regards to campgrounds/RV parks being allowed in the A-1 zone, people don’t want
to camp in town, they want to be in an area where they can enjoy nature which, in Greene County,
was in the A-1 zone. As for public notice, there was no requirement that notice be provided when a
permitted use was being discussed. It would be like requiring notice for building a home.

Questions were raised by audience members about why some roads were so narrow, and why
environmental studies weren’t performed to determine the impact of a development. Mr. Woolsey
stated that Greene County is and has been a low tax county, and County taxpayers historically don’t
want to pay to condemn right-of-way to widen roads or pay for environmental studies. The right-of-



way the County has in many areas is an implied right-of-way, in that it was not created by being
purchased or platted, and was too narrow to permit road widening.

Stephanie Hopson stated the County would have the expense of additional road maintenance and
clean-up costs from the increased traffic, which would be on the County. The discussion concluded.

Robinette 1.11 AC +/- Property Partition. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Robinette 1.11 AC +/- Property Partition plat, for one lot totaling 1.11 acres, located
adjacent to Chimney Top Loop in the 17" civil district. Staff recommended approval as the plat had
all signatures and met all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by
Gary Rector, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously.

Linton Ricker Property, Section 2. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the Linton Ricker Property, Section 2 plat, for one lot totaling 2.85 acres, located adjacent to Kelley
Gap Road in the 18" civil district. Staff recommended approval as the plat had all signatures and met
all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine, to
approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Replat of Lots 4 & 5 of Cold Springs Subdivision (Malone 0.96 acre +/- Property Partition).
The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Replat of Lots 4 & 5 of Cold
Springs Subdivision (Malone 0.96 acre +/- Property Partition) for one lot totaling 0.96 acres, located
adjacent to Horse Creek Park Rd. in the 1 civil district. Staff recommended approval as the plat had
all signatures and met all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by
Edwin Remine, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously.

Division of the Judith A. Morrow-Mabey Revocable Trust Property. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving the Division of the Judith A. Morrow-Mabey Revocable Trust
Property plat, for two lots totaling 3.25 acres, located adjacent to Brandon Hollow Lane in the 7% civil
district. Staff stated the revised plat had not been submitted, and recommended denial. The
determination was made that, when the plat was completed and submitted to staff, it could be
approved administratively. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Gary Rector, to deny
approval to the plat as it had not been submitted prior to the meeting as required. The motion carried
unanimously.

Replat of Lots 1-4 & Portions of Lots 5-7 of the John McLean Property (Survey of the Bobby
Tate Property). The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Replat of Lots
1-4 & Portions of Lots 5-7 of the John McLean Property (Survey of the Bobby Tate Property) for two
lots totaling 4.83 acres, located adjacent to Barkley Road in the 17% civil district. Staff recommended
approval subject to the addition of signatures as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A

4



motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Gary Rector, to approve the plat subject to the
addition of signatures as it met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Property of Tim White. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Property
of Tim White plat for six lots totaling 33.957 acres, adjacent to Old Baileyton Road in the 11" civil
district. Staff recommended approval subject to the addition of signatures as the plat met all other
applicable requirements. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve
the plat subject to the addition of signatures as it met all other applicable requirements. The motion
carried unanimously.

Replat of Lots 6 & 7 of the Gary Lawing Subdivision (Property Survey for Gilliam & Stokely).
The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Replat of Lots 6 & 7 of the Gary
Lawing Subdivision (Property Survey for Gilliam & Stokely) for four lots totaling 1.03 acres, located
adjacent to Old Asheville Highway in the 2™ civil district. Staff recommended approval subject to
the addition of signatures as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by
Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the plat subject to the addition of signatures as it
met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Ambrose Willett Estate. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
Ambrose Willett Estate, for one lot totaling 2.847 acres, located adjacent to both W. Andrew Johnson
Highway and Dulaney Road in the 23™ civil district. Staff recommended approval as the plat had all
signatures and met all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by
Edwin Remine, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously.

Ben Harold Heirs. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Ben Harold
Heirs plat for four lots totaling 10.47 acres, located at the intersection of Hal Henard Road and Burkey
Road in the 8" civil district. Staff recommended approval subject to the addition of signatures as the
plat met all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Edwin
Remine, to approve the plat subject to the addition of signatures as it met all other applicable
requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Christopher Curtiss Property. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
Christopher Curtiss Property plat for five lots totaling 8.55 acres, located at the intersection of Poplar
Springs Road and Snake Hollow Road in the 5™ civil district. Staff recommended approval subject
to the addition of signatures as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by
Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the plat subject to the addition of signatures as it
met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Brian & Amanda Larson-Wells. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the Brian & Amanda Larson-Wells plat, for two lots totaling 1.78 acres, located adjacent to Kingsport

5



Highway in the 16" civil district. Staff stated the revised plat had not been submitted prior to the
meeting as required, and recommended denial. A motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by
Edwin Remine, to deny approval as the revised plat had not been submitted as required. The motion
carried unanimously.

Division of the Edward & Luann Sullivan Heirs Property. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving the Division of the Edward & Luann Sullivan Heirs Property, for four lots
totaling 5.52 acres, located adjacent to Bishop Loop in the 22" civil district. Staff recommended
approval subject to the addition of signatures as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A
motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Gary Rector, to approve the plat subject to the
addition of signatures as it met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.
* Linda Grizzle plat for one lot totaling 2.00 acres, located adjacent to Warrensburg Road in
the 8™ civil district.
e Combination Plat of Lots 5 & 6 of the Patricia & Lyle Miller Farm, for one lot totaling 2.12
acres, located adjacent to Woolsey College Rd. in the 2™ civil district.
e Combination Plat of Lots 23 and 24 of the Chester and Ollie Flynn Waddell Subdivision, for
one lot totaling 2.89 acres, located adjacent to Gregg Mill Rd. in the 3™ civil district.
® Replat of Lot 15 of the Park Subdivision (Property Survey for Robert Schell et ux), for two
lots totaling 5.31 acres, located adjacent to Park Lane in the 24 civil district.
¢ Division of a Portion of the Robert and Barbara Shanks Revocable Living Trust Property,
for one lot totaling 0.93 acres, located adjacent to Brian Circle in the 20™ civil district.

A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton, to accept the list. The motion carried
unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the monthly
department activity report. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Gary Rector, to accept
the report. The motion carried unanimously.

Other Business.

White Sands RV Resort. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approval of a concept
plan for an addition to the White Sands RV Resort, formerly known as Elysium, located adjacent to
White Sands Road. Marty Erwin, the new property owner, stated some of the occupants were long-
term residents. Tim Tweed stated that occupancy was not supposed to be long term, and the residents
would have to move off the site. In response to a question about the septic system, the Planning
Commission was informed that TDEC approval was not required for concept approval, but would
have to be obtained before approval of the full site plan at a later date. In essence, they were approving

6



the idea of the expansion, not the site plan itself. Tim Tweed stated an issue that would be resolved
before plan approval was the actual separation between the camp sites, which was shown to be fifteen
(15), instead of the required twenty (20) feet. The discrepancy could simply be a question of where
the measurement was made, and the designer would need to clarify how they measured the distance.
Tim Tweed stated that the proposed cabins could not be fully self-contained, and couldn’t be rented
out as a residence. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Gary Rector, to grant
conceptual approval as long as it meets all the requirements for a campground. The motion carried
unanimously.

Roger Woolsey stated the Planning Commission needed to consider if they wanted to make a
recommendation to the County Commission on RV parks. Discussion ensued concerning the
hotel/motel tax on campgrounds, and how campgrounds were classified for property tax purposes.
Tim Tweed stated he wanted the Planning Commission to look at changing the campground
regulations. The expansion of a campground in Baileyton was discussed.

Edwin Remine stated there was a public comment session at the Ruritan building in Limestone at
5:30 p.m. that evening to discuss the future of the Davy Crockett State Park.

There was additional discussion about possible changes to the Zoning Resolution. Tim Tweed stated
most of the quick changes he’d like to see concern language issues, which created gray areas. A
motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, directing staff to meet with Roger
Woolsey to discuss proposed changes, to be presented to the Planning Commission at a later date.

Gwen Lilley questioned the status of the proposed solar regulations. Amy Tweed stated the proposed
regulations would be back on the agenda for the January, 2024 meeting.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton, to
adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 3:20 pm.

Approved as written:

Secretary:

Chairman/Vice Chairman: m —— .




31vd

.I&RP

JISSINNTL ‘INIIYUD 40 ALN

0509-.8.-€ZV

9.2¢-6€9-¢CY

8¥29-9£9-€T¥

8989-9€/-¢€8
98.28-006-€2¥

0Sv1-18L-€2V

FHNLYNOIL

LLNOAINOH N33
IVIAL C “LENDASNOH "4 NHOP

JONVHNSNI WYV 31VS

LLLY-8€9-ECF
Wes-525-tey
966€-89.-€0¢

1212-8€9-€2

fel

JHL 40 X310

G18ESYLLE N1 I TTAINIIHO
1S NIVIN N 122

CCISSPLLE NL STTAINIIUOD
JAV QUVNA3E 3 60%
809SEVLLE NL ITTIAINIFID
1S 3937102 N OLL
LEQ9EYLLE NL TIAINIIYO
Ad AOOMLNINE 9051
LLELSYLLE NL TTIAINITRIO
Y AHI13INID ATOAUVH 98T
Y09.E NL 292.€ OoI3Ar

002 1INS ¥Ad 1L3ISNNS 802
SY..¢ N1 3TTAINIIHO

€ 31INS ‘13341S NILSNV ¥2Z)
€621LSP2.LE NL ITTAINIIFNO
AMH NOSNHOI" MJ¥ANV M 098
L09SEVLLE NL ATTAINIINO
1S AN3IAVIOV SLE

9Z6vEPLLE NL I TNAINIFAD
1S MIWINNS M 0LZ
SELEEPLLE N1 ITTAINIIUD
1S dva3id iLi

YZevevLLe NL 3TIIAINIIHO
1SHINNNS M PLL
YZOrEV.LLE N1 TTTIAINITHO
JAV VINVATASNNI 004

¥69%-029-€2¥
1856-62¢-€2¥
8.€1-756-€¢Y
Sv12-9v6-£2v
€6€2-295-€2V
v180-6£4-58S
1098-¢02-€¢t
6.68-€29-€2V
50¥8-029-€2v
ovee-ele-tey
966¢£-89.-€0¢C
£292-029-€2v

(X5 TA g XA

CSLELYILE NL ASMONHD

ay TN HLINS o2y
b28CEPLLE NL I TUAINIRUO
QY TTIH LLINVO 092¢
LESEEPLLE N1 ATTAINIIHEO
ay LNDT1IH S52

PL99EV.LLE NL TTNAINIFRUO
Jd GOOMIN3NE 9051
C0LOPP.LLE NL ITTAINITHO
20} X04d Od

LL2IE NL dVO STING

N7 AUNIH 092

LIE9SYLLE NL ATTIAINITUD
Ad ST1IH NVIANI 2€1
209SEP2.LE N1 ITNAINIIHO
4401NnD 201 0589

9Ev0SP.L.LE N1 ITHAINITHO
10 INJYOHLMVH M ¥12
L1S0SY2.€ N1 3TTAINIIHO
d1D AMNGTAOOM ¥9
GELEEYLLE N1 ATIIAINTIIYHO
1sdva3o Lkt

029€818.¢ NL WISHSOW

a3y M3IAMOAV3IN S2§
2¢v9Z189.2¢ NL INOLS3ININ
N7 AMINTO 801

SWVITIIM r H1LIgvZI13 '€l
T13advm 13HL3 T
IANOLS VI NMVYA 'L L
NVITINOW ONIGOOO NVAY "01
N3rLan vi3Invd 6
Y3443IM NOa '8

SILSNr INNC vH93d "L
LLADAINOH 71 ANNIf 9
SNITIOD HIVId VSSATV '
NAMOYE © WVITTIM v
NO1SOg 3NINVAr ¢
NO1109 ILSRIHD 2

AIOHNGAVY vOO383Y I

Al3dNs 3INOHd SS3NIsSNd

$S3YAAv ss3aNIsSNg

: 2009 ONINIHAOD HHILI A0 ONILIHMW ¥#720<

INOHd FNOH

§5344aav 3NO0H

JNVN

‘9T X¥VANYL FHI ONIYNA OITdnNd XUVION

d0 HOIAAO HHL OL CHLOUTH HIHM DNIMOTTIOA HHL LYHL HLYLS J0 AIYLHAIOHAS HHL

OL XIIINIAD XEHIHH I HASSHENNIL ‘HENITID J0 AINNOD HHI 40 MHTID Y SY
OITdNd SHIYVILON 40 NOILOHETH J0 HLVOIAILIHD



THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR
CHANGES IN REVEUNES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024

WHEREAS, the Greene County School System is amending the 2023-2024 Budget for the General Purpose

School Fund to budget end of year changes in revenues and expenditures of $2,960,843.91
THEREFORE, the following appropriations will be amended:

REVENUES

Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
46790 Innovative School Models 2,960,843.91

TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,960,843.91 | § -

EXPENDITURES

Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
71100 722 Regular Instruction Equipment 186,000
71300 123 Guidance Personnel 294,603.00
71300 189 Other Salaries & Wages 17,451.04
71300 201 Social Security 12,412.90
71300 204 Retirement 22,803.65
71300 206 Life Insurance 70.00
71300 207 Mcdical Insurance 35,562.00
71300 208 Dental Insurance 750.00
71300212 Medicare 4,524,717
71300 429 Instructional Supplies 82,914.03
71300 471 Software 26,000.00
71300 499 Other Supplies 685,193.80
71300 730 Vocational Equipment 1,464,359.72
72130 123 Guidance Personnel 2,000.00
72130 524 Inservice/Staff Development 14,000.00
72230 790 Other Equipment 27,000.00
72710 412 Diesel Fuel 4,200.00
76100 707 Building Improvements 80,999.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 2,960,843.91 | § -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular session, this 16th day of
January 2024, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown

above.

Greene County Education Committee

County Mayor

Sponsor

County Attorrley

County Clerk




THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR
CHANGES IN REVEUNES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024

WHEREAS, the Greene County School System is amending the 2023-2024 Budget for the General Purpose
School Fund to budget end of year changes in revenues and expenditures of $ 361,186

THEREFORE, the following appropriations will be amended:

REVENUES

Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
46515 Voluntary Prek 4,386.19
46515 State Special Education Preschool Grant 113,163.11
46980 Public School Security Grant 243,636.68

TOTAL REVENUES $ 361,186 | $ -

EXPENDITURES

Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
73400 310 Contracts with Public Agencies 4.386.19
72620 790 Other Equipment 243,636.68
71200 163 Educational Assistants 52,500.00
71200 201 Social Security 3,300.00
71200 204 State Retirement 5,100.00
71200 206 Life Insurance 45.00
71200 207 Medical Insurance 42,900.00
71200 210 Unemployment 75.00
71200 212 Medicare 780.00
71200 499 Other Supplies 4,513.11
71200 208 Dental Insurance 450.00
71200 725 Special Education Equipment _ 3,500.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' $ 361,186 | $ -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular session, this 16th day of
January 2024, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown
above.

Greene County Education Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

County Attprney County Clerk




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GREENE COUNTY SHERIFF’S
DEPARTMENT TO DONATE TWO UHF RADIO/REPEATERS TO THE COCKE
COUNTY EMERGENCY RESPONDER’S ASSOCIATION

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff’s Department has two UHF radios/repeaters
purchased more than ten years ago that have never been used, as the sheriff’s department is on
a VHF radio system; and

WHEREAS, these two UHF radios/repeaters have little value because most sheriff and
first responder agencies presently use the VHF systems; and

WHEREAS, Cocke County is a distressed county and a donation of this equipment by
Greene County to the Cocke County Emergency Responder’s Association would be appropriate
and appreciated as that entity is on the UHF system and could utilize the UHF radios/repeaters.

WHEREAS, additionally, this donation would benefit the Greene County’s fire

departments at St. James, Caney Branch, Orebank, and McDonald who all provide mutual aid

to Cocke County fire departments when the Greene County’s fire departments are

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff’s Department has agreed to donate the two
Greene County Attomey
Roger A. Woolse ) i
204g§, Cutler sm,gt UHF radios/repeaters that are not needed by the sheriff’s department to the Cocke County
Greeneville, TN 37745

: 423-798-1779 . . o mme :
Eﬁ,‘(’f‘iz;‘.?gg?nsl . Emergency Responder’s Association, a non-profit organization for their use; attached as

|
communicating with the Cocke County fire departments on their system.
|
|
|

Exhibit “A” are the radios/repeaters to be donated.

C




Greene County Attorney
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 16™ day of January, 2024, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the Sheriff’s Department is hereby authorized to donate

two UHF radios/repeaters to the Cocke County Emergency Responder’s Association.

Budget and Finance
Sponsor County Mayor

County Clerk County Adtorney




EXHIBIT “A”

Motorola MTR 2000 Model # AA23510 Serial: C5158F009Y02F

Motorola MTR 2000 Model: T5544A Serial; 512cfr0286



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT TO LEASE PARKING SPACES AT
THE FORMER TAKOMA HOSPITAL BUILDING TO COOLIDGE
STREET PARTNERS

WHEREAS, the Coolidge Street Partners (State of Franklin Health Associates —
SOFHA) desire to lease 50 parking spaces that affronts Coolidge Street; the Coolidge
Street Partners’ medical facility is located adjacent to the parking lot and serves the
public and Greene County as primary care physicians; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Lease Agreement is attached lease as Exhibit “A” to
this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, it appears that it would be in the best interests of and would greatly
benefit the citizens of Greene County; to lease these 50 parking spaces to Coolidge Street
Partners at $40.00 per space per month for a total lease amount of TWO THOUSAND
($2,000.00) DOLLARS per month; and

WHEREAS, the lease would be for a one-year period beginning January 1, 2024
with an option to extend as needed for a lease amount of TWO THOUSAND ($2,000.00)
DOLLARS per month,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of January, 2024 a quorum being present
and a majority voting in the affirmative that the County Mayor for Greene County is
authorized to enter into the attached Lease Agreement to lease 50 parking spaces to

Coolidge Street Partners at the former Takoma Hospital property.

Sponsor County Mayor
County Clerk County Au.brney

o)




STATE OF TENNESSEE )
COUNTY OF GREENE )

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and
for said County and State, the within named KEVIN MORRISON, with whom [ am
personally acquainted or whose identity was proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence, and who acknowledged that he is the County Mayor of Greene County,
Tennessee, the within named bargainor, a governmental entity and that he, as County
Mayor, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes
therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and official seal of office on this the day of January,

2024,

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:
STATE OF TENNESSEE )
COUNTY OF )

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said
County and Statc, the within named DAN BRAGG, with whom I am personally
acquainted or whose identity was proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, and
who acknowledged that he is the Chief Administrative Officer of Coolidge Street
Partners, the within named bargainer, and that he as Chief Administrative Officer, being
authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS my hand and official seal of office on this the day of January,

2024.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:




LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement entered into by and between GREENE COUNTY,
TENNESSEE, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor,” and COOLIDGE STREET
PARTNERS, hereinafter referred to as “Lessee;” and

WHEREAS, the Lessor owns certain real property located in the 10 Civil
District of Greene County, Tennessee consisting of 8.35 acres fronting on the Asheville
Highway, Coolidge Street, and Takoma Avenue, generally referred to as the former
Takoma Hospital property, and being further described as Map 1109, Parcel 009.00 in the
Tax Assessor’s Office for Greene County, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease and Lessor has agreed to lease to Lessee fifty
(50) designated parking spaces in the front parking lot of Lessor’s property adjacent to
Lessee’s property subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. Lessor agrees to rent or lease fifty (50) parking spaces including reasonable
access to those parking spaces to Lessee solely for the use of Lessee’s managers,
employees, and patients with the location of those designated parking spaces outlined and
identified on the map attached as Exhibit “A” to this agreement.

2. That the term of this lease shall be for one year — from January 1, 2024, until
December 31, 2024, and the lease shall be renewed automatically on an annual basis
unless NOTICE is given by the party desiring to terminate this lease agreement to the
other party in writing sixty (60) days before the end of the Lease or any renewal

thereafter.

EXHIBIT

A



3. That the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor the sum of TWO THOUSAND
(52,000.00) DOLLARS per month as the monthly rent for the leased parking spaces on
this property which payment shall be due on or before the fifteenth day of the month
beginning January 15, 2024 and by the fifteenth day of the month for each successive
month during the term of the lease or any subsequent renewal thereafter unless otherwise
agreed to by the parties in writing.

4. Lessee agrees to provide routine maintenance on the leased premises to ensure
that those designated parking spaces remain free of litter.

5. Lessee shall be solely responsible for any injury suffered or claim made by any
employee, patient, vendor, or other persons utilizing the designated parking spaces on the
leased premises and agrees to hold Lessor, its managers, and employees harmless from
any claim or cause of action by any persons using those designated parking spaces on the
leased premises.

This Lease Agreement entered into this the day of January, 2024.

GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

KEVIN MORRISON
County Mayor

COOLIDGE STREET PARTNERS

DAN BRAGG
Chief Administrative Officer



TN

R ———
f | TDOT Imagery Vexcel Imagery Property Lines FEMA Flood Map

EXHIBIT

H




Greene County Aftorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO REMOVE CROW FLY LANE FROM THE OFFICIAL
GREENE COUNTY ROAD LIST
(Second Reading)

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane is located in the 24 Civil District of Greene
County, Tennessee and is presently a county road on the official Greene County Road
List maintained by the Greene County Highway Department; and

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane intersects with the Old Ashville Highway on each
end; at the north end it intersects with the Old Ashville Highway close to Link Hills
Road and at the south end it intersects with the Old Ashville Highway close to Kinser
Park Road; and

- WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane runs through the property originally owned by
James C. Morelock and his wife, Shirley A. Morelock; James C. Morelock is deceased
and his spouse Shirley A. Morelock now solely owns said property pursuant to the
doctrine of tenants by the entireties as dictated by Tennessee law; and

WHEREAS, Crow Fly Lane is maintained by the County Highway Department
and is approximately .18 mile in length with Shirley A Morelock owning all property on
each side of the road for its entire length; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Morelock has requested by written petition that Crow Fly
Lane be removed from the Greene County Road List and no longer considered a county
road to be maintained by the county road department; and

WHEREAS, after review of this road by the Greene County Legislative Body,
it appears that it would be in the best interest of the individual owning all the property .

contiguous to Crow Fly Lane and the citizens of Greene County as a whole to remove

E.




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

Crow Fly Lane from the Greene County Road List subject to the reservation of utility

easements if any for the benefit of Greene County residents.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body, meeting in regular session on the 16™ day of January, 2024, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative that Crow Fly Lane be removed from
the official Greene County Road List with the reservation of utility easements for the

benefit of the citizens of Greene County.

Tim White
Sponsor County Mayor

County Clerk EOUim1ley - NQX




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

A RESOLUTION URGING THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE
OF TENNESSEE TO ENACT LAWS TO FACILITATE NULLIFICATION OF
CERTAIN FEDERAL ACTION AND FEDERAL OVERREACH TO
UPHOLD STATE SOVEREIGNTY

WHEREAS, Federal overreach is running rampant in the United States of
America impacting all aspects of life and governance; and

WHEREAS, all three branches of the United States government, executive,
legislative, and judicial have, at times, exceeded their constitutional authority; and

WHEREAS, state and local governments suffer from interference by federal
actions, federal court decisions made concerning state and local affairs of government,
bureaucratic rulemaking by federal agencies, and by federal law making outside of
constitutional boundaries; and

WHEREAS, state and local government departments are often held hostage by
federal funding mandates that are designed to control state and local policies by the power
of the federal purse; and

WHEREAS, it may be necessary and proper from time to time for the State of
Tennessee to nullify federal actions and overreach to maintain state sovereignty in areas
of authority that are reserved to the states by the Tenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution, which reads as follows: “The powers not delegated to the United States by
the Constitution, nor prohibited by it to the states, are reserved to the states respectively,
or to the people. ”

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of January, 2024, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative:

SECTION 1, That the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee is urged to
enact laws to facilitate nullification of federal actions and overreach as it deems proper
and necessary to maintain state sovereignty, giving deference to the language, or similar
language, included in the document attached hereto as Exhibit A, more specifically titled
House Bill 726 and Senate Bill 1092, of the 2023 legislative session.




SECTION 2, That upon approval and signing of this resolution, the Greene
County Clerk is requested to transmit a copy of this resolution to the Governor of the
State of Tennessee, the State Representative and State Senator that represent Greene
County, Tennessee, the Speaker of the Tennessee House of Representatives, and the
Lieutenant Governor of Tennessee.

Chase Murray
Sponsor County Mayor
County Clerk County Att&mcy

Greene County Attorney
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745 ‘

Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781




SENATE BILL 1092
By Bowling
HOUSE BILL 726
By Hulsey
AN ACT to amend Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 3 and
Title 4, relative to nullification.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, is amended by adding Sections 2
through 13 as a new chapter.

SECTION 2. This chapter is known and may be cited as the "Restoring State
Sovereignty Through Nullification Act."

SECTION 3. The general assembly makes the following findings:

(1) Article I, Section 1 of the Constitution of Tennessee (All power is inherent in
the people) declares: "That all power is inherent in the people, and all free governments
are founded on their authority, and instituted for their peace, safety, and happiness; for
the advancement of those ends they have at all times, an unalienable and indefeasible
right to alter, reform, or abolish the government in such manner as they may think
proper.";

(2) Article I, Section 2 of the Constitution of Tennessee (Doctrine of
nonresistance condemned) declares: "That government being instituted for the common
benefit, the doctrine of nonresistance against arbitrary power and oppression is absurd,
slavish, and destructive of the good and happiness of mankind.";

(3) When "We the People" ordained and established the Constitution of the
United States of America, the people and the states granted only specific, limited powers
to the federal government, with those areas of federal powers being enumerated in

Article |, Section 8 of the Constitution of the United States;

\o7as EXHIBIT

/



(4) Articles I, Il, and lll of the Constitution of the United States, respectively, vest
the legislative, executive, and judicial powers to and within separate branches of the
federal government (horizontal separation of powers), such that lawmaking powers are
vested only in the legislative branch of the United States congress, that enforcement
powers are vested only in the executive branch (president and executive agencies), and
that judicial powers are vested only in the judicial branch (supreme court of the United
States and other inferior federal courts created by the United States congress);

(5) This horizontal separation of powers in the Constitution of the United States
reflects the understanding that our federal founding fathers had derived from both
scripture and experience that sinful man could not be trusted to always be virtuous and
public-minded, and as such, they did not want undue power to be combined in any
branch of government where, if left unchecked, it could become tyrannical;

(6) Nothing in the Constitution of the United States permits congress to delegate
or confer any lawmaking power to any other branch of government, because it has no
enumerated powers to create lawmakers. When the president and federal courts are
vested, respectively, with the executive and judicial powers, neither of those branches
are granted general powers of lawmaking. Therefore, no person, agency, or department
of any other branch of the federal government, not even the supreme court or the
president of the United States, has any lawmaking power under the Constitution of the
United States;

(7) In Article |, Section 7, paragraph 2 of the Constitution of the United States,
the text describes how federal laws are to be made. Bills must be passed by both
houses of congress and then approved by the president (or by a presidential veto by
congress). This is the only method of lawmaking under the Constitution of the United

States. Thus, contrary to popular opinion, federal executive orders, federal agency rules

o 001601



and regulations, and federal court opinions are not laws at all, and they are certainly not
settled law or the supreme law of the land. Instead, any action by the executive branch
or the judicial branch that purports to be law, or that purports to be treated as law, is a
usurpation of powers not delegated to it;

(8) It is not uncommon for congress and the federal executive branch to
erroneously elevate federal court opinions to the status of "law," sometimes even
regarding court opinions as having amended the language of the Constitution of the
United States;

(9) Itis not uncommon for congress and the federal courts to erroneously
elevate federal executive orders to the status of "law," sometimes even regarding
executive orders as having amended the language of the Constitution of the United
States;

(10) The principle of "separation of powers" is so innately representative of a
republican form of government that the Constitution of Tennessee (Atrticle I, Sections 1
and 2) upholds and reinforces this principle of horizontal "separation of powers" within
the three departments of our Tennessee state government;

(11) When creating a federal government by ratifying the Constitution of the
United States, the people and the states also designed a second, and more important,
"separation of powers," that being a vertical separation of powers between the superior
sovereign states and the inferior feder\al government;

(12) A vertical "separation of powers" was explicitly set out in Article |, Section 8
of the Constitution of the United States, wherein only limited, enumerated, lawmaking
powers were granted to the federal government;

(13) This vertical "separation of powers" was also incorporated into the United

States bill of rights, whereby (a) in the first amendment, congress was specifically denied

3. 001601



lawmaking power within those fields listed in the first amendment; (b) in the ninth
amendment, the federal government was specifically prohibited from interfering with
rights not mentioned in the Constitution of the United States; and (c) in the tenth
amendment, the federal government was specifically denied powers not delegated to it
in the Constitution of the United States;

(14) This vertical "separation of powers" was generally well-known by the people
and the states, and was known and respected by the federal government, for over one
hundred (100) years of our nation's history, but the principle has in more recent decades
been first disregarded, and subsequently even disbelieved, as if the federal government
was supreme in all areas and was unlimited in its jurisdiction. Whether this shift in
jurisprudence was intentional or accidental, active or passive, the shift is nevertheless
not supported by the Constitution of the United States, by the laws of the United States,
or by the constitutions of any of the sovereign states. The shift is thus an illegal
usurpation of the Constitution of the United States, of the various state constitutions, and
of the unalienable rights of the people;

(15) Any federal action that violates the horizontal "separation of powers"
imposed by the Constitution of the United States, or that exceeds the jurisdictional limits
imposed by the vertical "separation of powers," is therefore void, since the Constitution
of the United States is the supreme law of the land;

(16) "[A] law repugnant to the Constitution is void." An act of congress
repugnant to the Constitution of the United States cannot become a law. The
Constitution supersedes all other laws and the individual's rights shall be Iibérally
enforced in favor of him, the clearly intended and expressly designated beneficiary.

Marbury v. Madison, 5 U.S. 137 (1803);

-4 - 001601



(17) "An unconstitutional law is void and is as no law. An offense created by it is
not crime. A conviction under it is not merely erroneous but is illegal and void and
cannot be used as a legal cause of imprisonment." Ex parte Siebold, 100 U.S. 371
(1879);

(18) "An unconstitutional act is not law; it confers no rights; it imposes no duties;
it affords no protection; it creates no office; it is, in legal contemplation, as inoperative as
though it had never been passed.”" Norfon v. Shelby County, 118 U.S. 425 (1886);

(19) "Where rights secured by the Constitution are involved, there can be no
rule-making or legislation which would abrogate them." Miranda v. Arizona,

384 U.S. 436 (1966);

(20) As Thomas Jefferson explained in the Kentucky Resolution of 1798: "When-
so-ever the [Federal] government assumes undelegated power, its acts are
unauthoritative, void and of no force." He added, "Where powers are assumed which
have not been delegated, a nullification of the act is the remedy. That every state has a
natural right and duty in cases not within [the authority of the Constitution]... to nullify of
their own authority all assumptions of powers by others within their own states
boundaries." The Constitution of the United States binds federal lawmakers by oath to
support the Constitution, and when they fail to do so, the rightful remedy is for states to
nullify their usurpations and to declare their acts void;

(21) Every constitutional officeholder, whether local, state, or federal, must first
know and understand these important constitutional limitations of power, and thereafter,
must determine individually how best to defend the rights of the people and to fulfill the
oath of office. As illustrative of this principle, in 1832, Tennessee's own Andrew
Jackson, as president, vetoed a bill to recharter the Bank of the United States.

President Jackson opposed the bank's political power and financial influence, but his

=5+ 001601



veto was based substantially on constitutional grounds, notwithstanding the judgment of
prior presidents and congress, not to mention the supreme court's decision upholding
the bank's validity. President Jackson argued that the "separation of powers" principle
meant that none of the branches of the federal government can pretend to have
exclusive or supreme right to settle constitutional diﬁgrences of opinion among them,
since each public officer who takes an oath to support the Constitution swears that he
will support it as he understands it, and not as it is understood by others. He further said
the opinion of judges has no more authority over congress than the opinion of congress
has over judges, and on that point, the president is independent of both of them;

(22) President Andrew Jackson's veto illustrates that every officeholder must
reach an independent judgment about the jurisdictional scope of the federal government
under the Constitution of the United States and must thereafter act consistently on those
judgments;

(23) The Constitution of the United States assures the people and the states that
their respective rights and powers will be respected by the federal government;

(24) Each member of the general assembly shall, before they proceed to
business, take an oath or affirmation to support the Constitution of Tennessee, and of
the United States, and also the following oath: "I ___ do solemnly swear (or affirm)
that as a member of this General Assembly, | will, in all appointments, vote without favor,
affection, partiality, or prejudice; and that | will not propose or assent to any bill, vote, or
resolution, which shall appear to me injurious to the people, or consent to any act or
thing, whatever, that shall have a tendency to lessen or abridge their rights and
privileges, as declared by the Constitution of this state." (Tennessee Constitution, Article

X, Section 2);

-6 - 001601



(25) The people are the ultimate source of human governmental power under
our constitutions, and the states, through their elected officers, are dutybound to fulfill
their oath of office to preserve the rights of the people, it is therefore long overdue, and
therefore urgently necessary, for this state to prescribe the manner in which, under the
authority of the Constitutions of the United States and of Tennessee, the people's rights
and the state's sovereignty may be asserted as against federal officeholders, whether
individually or collectively; and

(26) This act is written to aid the people and the government of this state in the
implementation and enforcement of the various provisions of the Constitution of the
United States that expressly limit federal power and federal jurisdiction, and in
furtherance of the rights of the people as set forth in Article |, Section 1 and Article I,
Section 2 of the Constitution of Tennessee.

SECTION 4. As used in this chapter:

(1) "Federal action" includes federal law; a federal agency rule, policy, or
standard; an executive order of the president of the United States; an order or decision
of a federal court; and the making or enforcing of a treaty; and

(2) "Unconstitutional federal action" means a federal action enacted, adopted, or
implemented without authority specifically delegated to the federal government by the
people and the states through the United States Constitution.

SECTION 5. This chapter contemplates the review of any federal action to determine

whether the action is an unconstitutional federal action. When evaluating a federal action, the

general assembly shall consider the plain reading and reasoning of the text of the United States

Constitution and the understood definitions at the time of the framing and construction of the

Constitution by the framers before making a final declaration of constitutionality, as

demonstrated by:

7. 001601



(1) The ratifying debates in the several states;

(2) The understanding of the leading participants at the constitutional
convention;

(3) The understanding of the doctrine in question by the constitutions of the
several states in existence at the time the United States Constitution was adopted,;

(4) The understanding of the United States Constitution by the first United States
congress;

(5) The opinions of the first chief justice of the United States supreme court;

(6) The background understanding of the doctrine in question under the English

Constitution of the time; and

(7) The statements of support for natural law and natural rights by the framers
and the philosophers admired by the framers.

SECTION 6. It is declared that federal laws, federal executive actions, and federal court
opinions must comply with the jurisdictional limitations of the United States Constitution. It is
further declared that any federal action outside the enumerated powers set forth in the United
States Constitution are in violation of the peace and safety of the people of this state, and
therefore, said acts are declared void and must be resisted.

SECTION 7. The proper manner of resistance is a state action of nullification of the
federal action.

SECTION 8.

(a) Nullification is the process whereby this state makes an official declaration
that:
(1) A specific federal action has exceeded the prescribed authority under

the United States Constitution;

-8- 001601



(2) That said action, as being ultra vires, will not be recognized as valid
within the bounds of this state;

(3) That said action, as being ultra vires, is null and void in this state;

(4) That an officeholder, agency, or government employee, whether
state, county, or city, serving under the authority of the Constitution of Tennessee
shall not assist in any attempted enforcement of said federal action; and

(5) That state or local funds collected under the authority of the
Constitution of Tennessee shall not be used to assist in any attempted
enforcement of said federal action.

(b) The general assembly has sole authority to prescribe the crimes, penalties,
fines, or other consequences of the violation of a bill of nullification by any person found
within the boundary of this state. Said consequences must be specified in the bill of
nullification before a final vote is taken on its passage.

SECTION 9. State nullification of federal action may be accomplished in any of the
following ways:

(1) The governor may, by the governor's own executive authority, issue an
executive order nullifying the same, whereby all executive departments of the state are
bound by said order;

(2) Any member of the general assembly may introduce a bill of nullification in
the general assembly. For any such proposed bill of nullification, the bill is not subject to
debate or passage in committees, and proceeds directly to the floor of each house,
where said bill shall, within five (5) legislative days, be scheduled for debate on the floor
of each house, and thereafter, within three (3) legislative days after the debate is closed,
shall be presented for a roll call vote on each floor. The bill, if passed in the same

manner as other general law, has the force and effect of law, and becomes effective

-9- 001601



immediately upon enactment. The time constraints listed in this subdivision (2) may be
changed by majority vote of any house of subsequent general assemblies;

(3) Any court operating under the authority of the Constitution of Tennessee may
render a finding or a holding of nullification in any case of which it otherwise has proper
venue and jurisdiction, wherein the parties to said case will, upon final judgment, be
bound thereby in the same manner as in other cases;

(4) Any combination of ten (10) counties and municipalities may, through the
action of the executive or through the action of a majority of the governing legislative
body, submit a petition of nullification to the speaker of the house of representatives,
with a copy to the office of the attorney general and reporter, and upon satisfactory proof
that said petitions are valid, the speaker of the house of representatives shall proceed to
introduce the bill and follow the same methods and protocols as described in subdivision
(2); and

(5) The signed petitions of two thousand (2,000) registered voters of this state
may submit a petition of nullification to the speaker of the house of representatives, with
a copy to the office of the attorney general and reporter, and upon satisfactory proof that
said signatures are valid, the speaker of the house of representatives shall proceed to
introduce the bill and follow the same methods and protocols as described in subdivision
(2). Said voter petitions must not be submitted individually, but said petitions must be
coordinated and compiled in batches, by county of voter registration, of not less than
twenty-five (25) voters per county in a bundled batch.

SECTION 10. Before conducting a roll call vote on the floor of each house of the
general assembly, the several committees of the general assembly may debate any bill of
nullification, express its approval or disapproval, and add any penalty for violations of the bill.

The results of all committee actions, as well as the result of the roll call vote on each house

-10- 001601



floor, shall be published in the official records of each house and disseminated to the people in
the same manner as with other bills.

SECTION 11. The procedures contained in this chapter are available to challenge any
federal action, whether said action is past, present, or future. A bill of nullification must not be
rejected because of any perceived statute of limitation or because said federal action was taken
in the distant past. Any federal action may be considered, or reconsidered, as the people or
their representatives may think proper.

SECTION 12. Regarding the same federal action, a bill of nullification must not be
considered by the general assembly more than once each year. If said bill fails, then it may be
considered again in any succeeding year, but not more than once per year. If said bill passes,
then the provisions of Section 8 become the law of this state.

SECTION 13. Formal pleadings or petitions are not required for a bill of nullification. It
is sufficient if the pleading or petition is in substantially the form as set forth below:

Petition for Action Under the
"Restoring State Sovereignty Through Nullification Act.”
Regarding your claim that the federal government has exceeded its authority under the U.S.
Constitution, please list the following:

1. Date or Year of federal action:

2. ldentify the federal branch, official, or agency:

3. Give the official name of the action, if known. If not known, then give the name by

which the action is commonly known or identified:

4. Identify the specific action, or part of the action, that you assert is unconstitutional:

Identification of Petitioner (Registered Voter):

11 - 001601



Signature Printed Name

Street Address, City, County — Must match voter registration.

SECTION 14. If any provision of this act or its application to any person or circumstance
is held invalid, then the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of the act that
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to that end, the provisions of
this act are severable.

SECTION 15. This act takes effect upon becoming a law, the public welfare requiring it.

-12- 001601



Greene County Attomey

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

A RESOLUTION TO ABOLISH THE OFFICE OF CONSTABLE IN
GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE
(1%* Reading)

WHEREAS, the office of Constable was originally established to provide
assistance and support to the Sheriff’s Office personnel; in particular, in the more rural
counties in the State of Tennessee and in situations where officers did not have
sufficient resources for backup support when needed; and

WHEREAS, with the overall improvements in the capability, training, staffing,
professionalism, and efficiency of the office of Sheriff in Greene County regarding
patrol and law enforcement generally, the office of Constable is no longer a necessary
component of law enforcement in Greene County; and

WHEREAS, while some of the individuals, both past and present, who hold or
have held the position of Constable have performed admirably, the required training to
hold the elective office of Constable as well as the physical demands of the office has
not kept pace with the initial and continuing training now required of post certified
officers with the Greene County Sheriff’s Department, which in many instances may
pose an increased risk of liability for Greene County; and

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee through the
enactment of Chapter 344 of the Public Acts of 1997, codified at Tennessee Code
Annotated, Section 8-10-101(a)(3) authorized the county legislative body to abolish the
office of Constable at the end of the term of current officeholders upon two-thirds (2/3)

majority vote in two (2) consecutive meetings; and

G.




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

WHEREAS, many counties in the State of Tennessee has either abolished the
office of Constable or in the alternative removed their law enforcement powers in an
attempt to limit the liability risks associated with the persons who hold that office; and

WHEREAS, it would appear to be in the best interests of the citizens of Greene
County and of the county as a whole to abolish the office of Constable, effective at the
conclusion of the current terms of office of those Constables presently elected.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of Janﬁary, 2024, a quorum being
present and a two-thirds (2/3) majority voting in the affirmative that the office of
Constable in Greene County, Tennessee is hereby abolished effective at the end of the
current term of office of the current holders of the office of Constable in Greene
County, Tennessee. |

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk, after an affirmative
vote at the 2"¢ Reading, shall send a copy of this resolution to the current holders of the

office of Constable and to the County Election Commission for Greene County.

Lloyd Bowers
Sponsor County Mayor

_John Waddle Q CH - dmﬁ_\

Sponsor County Anomey

County Clerk




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE GREENE COUNTY PURCHASING
DEPARTMENT’S INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT COUPLED
WITH ITS AMENDED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department for Greene County, Tennessee
operates under certain policies and procedures pursuant to state law, recommend-
dations from the office of the Controller, and policics and proccdures approved by
the Purchasing Committee and the Greene County Legislative Body contained in
the Department’s Internal Control Assessment and the Department’s Policies and
Procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department’s Policies and Procedures was
originally adopted and approved in 1992 by the Greene County Commission and
was revised and updated on August 22, 2003 and January 18, 2011; since that
time because of material changes of circumstances and conditions in purchasing
goods and services and in order to comply with guidelines established by the State
of Tennessee, an updated purchasing policy and procedures has been formulated;
and

WHEREAS, it appears that it is in the best interests of the Purchasing
Department, Greene County Government, and the citizens of Greene County for
the County Legislative Body to approve the proposed Internal Control
Assessment and updated Policies and Procedures for the Greene County
Purchasing Department (attached collectively as Exhibit A).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County
Legislative Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of January, 2024, a

quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, to approve the

f.




Greene County Attorney
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N, Cutler Street
Greeneyille, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

updated proposed Internal Control Assessment and Policies and Procedures for
the Greene County Purchasing Department (attached as Exhibit A) effective

immediately upon passage .

Tim White
Sponsor County Mayor

Q@t« o b)("o@“‘“
County Court Clerk County A\lomey




INTERNAL CONTROL
ASSESSMENT

GREENE COUNTY
PURCHASING
DEPARMENT

APPROVED JANUARY 16, 2024

EXHIBIT

A



Internal Control Assessment of Greene County Purchasing Department

Purpose: To document an understanding and assess the internal controls of the Greene County

finance department as it pertains to the following:

I Whether obligations and costs of the operation are in compliance with applicable laws.
I Whether county funds, property and other assets that are designated/assigned to the finance
department are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, or misappropriation.
Il  Whether revenues and expenditures in the county funds are properly recorded and
accounted for to permit the preparation of accurate and reliable financial and statistical

reports and to maintain accountability over the assets.

Overview: An in-depth analysis of the internal control environment for the operations of the
Greene County Purchasing Department was performed over a four-day period by county
purchasing department employees, Krystal Justis, Purchasing Agent, and Rachel Colyer,
Purchasing Assistant. The purchasing department consists of two (2) people, the agent and the

assistant.

L. Obligations and costs of the operation are in compliance with applicable law

Ensure that contracts are in place for goods and services that are required by law; review
purchasing procedures for non-payroll costs to ensure compliance with the law; review payroll
procedures to ensure that payroll is for legitimate and authorized employee costs only; review
emergency purchase procedures for compliance with the law; ensure any store cards and credit
cards used by the department are in compliance with the purchasing policies and the law and are

safeguarded; and ensure that all debt is issued in accordance with statute.

Purchasing: The Accounts and Budgets Department complies with the county purchasing policy
adopted under the County Purchasing Law of 1957 for Greene County Government. The
Purchasing Department started July 1, 1991, with two (2) employees, the Purchasing Agent and
the Assistant Purchasing Agent. The County Fiscal Procedure Law of 1957 was adopted and



became effective July 1, 1993, and the first Budget Director started on that date. Greene County
Purchasing adopted the first purchasing policy in 1992. The policy was revised August 22, 2003,
January 18, 2011, and January 16, 2024. The policies and procedures are attached to these internal

controls.

Purchase Orders: The County Purchasing Department complies with and administers the written

policies for purchase orders in the county purchasing policies. No purchases (other than insurance,
tuition, membership fees, travel, utilities) can be made until a requisition has been received and
approved by the county purchasing office and the applicable department head/elected official or
their designee. County departments will bring in, email or fax a requisition to RACHEL COLYER,
PURCHASING ASSISTANT OR KRYSTAL JUSTIS, PURCHASING AGENT, who will verify
the availability of funding in the budget. The purchase order is then issued, and the requesting
department may make a purchase. The Purchasing Department staff will enter the purchase order
into the LGDPC accounting software that the county finance department utilizes. When the finance
department receives the corresponding invoice for the ordered goods, the finance department
requires the department/office that ordered the goods to sign off on the receiving copy of the
purchase order verifying the goods were received. The purchase order is then liquidated (if not an
open blanket PO), and checks are prepared for payments by the two (2) accounts payable clerks in
accounts and budgets office. The county finance office typically negotiates early discount
payments from vendors. If these are not offered, the vendor will receive their payments net 30 days
of the invoice date unless a special exception (local small business) is agreed upon ahead of the
purchase. SEE the purchase order section of the county purchasing policy for more detail of

internal control over purchase orders.

Store cards: As some vendors do not accept county purchase orders: namely, Walmart, Home
Depot, Office Depot, Tractor Supply, Food City, Sears, Staples, and Northern Tool. Credit cards
are maintained and kept locked up when not in use in Rachel Colyer’s office in Purchasing. Rachel
maintains a sign out sheet so that authorized county officials/employees can check out a card after
a purchase order has been issued. The department that uses the card must sign the receipt/invoice

before the invoice is paid.



Purchasing cards (P-Cards): Greene County has adopted a policy for using p-cards. However, p-

cards are not utilized at this time, only credit cards.

Credit Card: Greene County Purchasing utilizes credit cards for items that must be ordered

online. Various departments also have credit cards. All credit cards are issued by First Horizon
and all cards have a $5,000 credit limit except for Greene County EMS. The EMS card has a limit
of $1,000. Each card is assigned to the individual. If a card is lost the user is required to
immediately contact the Purchasing Department and First Horizon. If suspicious activity occurs,
First Horizon shall immediately call the Purchasing Department. If First Horizon calls or if the
Purchasing Department believes the card has been hacked, then that card is canceled and a new
card issued. Other departments and individuals with a credit card are as follow: Purchasing Agent,
Krystal Justis, Purchasing Assistant, Rachel Colyer, Sheriff Wesley Holt, David Beverly, Chief
Deputy, Ray Allen, Chief Deputy-Finance, John Key, Jail Administrator, EMS Director Calvin
Hawkins, Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent (locked in safe in accounting), Solid Waste
(locked in the safe in accounting), and Mayor Kevin Morrison. These cards are kept in a locked
(iesk or file cabinet at all times when not in use. The primary use of these cards is travel and
tuition. The purchasing department uses credit cards primarily for online purchases, room
reservations, plane reservations, and tuition. Before making online credit card purchases, the
department must call for a purchase order if ordering goods online. If a department uses a credit
card for travel expenses, the user must submit a warrant/voucher request, receipts and travel form
to accounting. These cards are used for on-line purchases and for vendors that do not take a
purchase order and do not have store cards. After a purchase order is issued, authorized county
officials/employees can sign a credit card out. The respective county official/department head is
responsible for reviewing and signing off on the credit card invoice for all purchases made by their

department/office monthly.

Contracts: Per Greene County purchasing policy, the county purchasing agent will sign all county
contracts dealing with purchasing. Any items (other than professional services or other items
exempt from bidding by state statute) over $25,000 must be competitively bid, and all items
between $500 and $25,000 must have three quotes when possible. All contracts over 12 months
in length are reviewed by the County Attorney and then approved by the County Commission. For

a detailed step-by-step listing of internal controls/processes over bidding/contract awards, see the



bidding procedure section of the County’s Purchasing Policy. The Purchasing Agent coordinates
with the individual county departments/offices to ensure contracts compliance from the vendors
(county receiving agreed upon price, level of service, etc.). Per county policy, all grant contracts
are approved by the County Commission and signed by the County Mayor, Road Superintendent

or Director of Schools prior to any grant funds being spent or encumbered.

Emergency purchases: The County Purchasing Policy addresses emergency purchases, and the

Purchasing Agent enforces this policy. Any emergency purchase that circumvents normal
purchasing procedure must have the requesting official/department head complete, as soon as
feasible, an emergency purchase justification form that both the requesting official and a
department head sign. See the County Purchasing Policy for a copy of the emergency purchase

justification form and additional information on emergency purchasing procedures.

Payroll: Greene County Purchasing Department works 40 hours per week under the “salary”
system. Payroll is authorized each fiscal year through the annual county budget appropriation, and
letters of agreement are used for the constitutional officers. The County Accounts and Budgets
Director assists the county officials with completing their letters of agreement if requested. The
Finance Director monitors all county payroll line items during the fiscal year to ensure that payroll
costs do not exceed County Commission approved budgets, and the authorized amounts in the
letters of agreement if applicable, without a budget amendment and/or amendment to the letter of
agreement first being approved. The County Mayor is authorized to sign the Assistant Purchasing
Agent’s time sheet if Purchasing Agent is absent. Any hours in excess of 40 hours per work week
must be awarded and recorded as compensatory time as the Purchasing Department does not have

an overtime line in its budget.

Employee benefits: The County participates in TCRS for full-time employees and also allows

full-time county employees that have worked for Greene County for thirty (30) years to maintain
health insurance as provided for in the County’s insurance policy guidelines after they retire if they
meet qualifications and are eligible for TCRS benefits. This benefit is in effect until the retiree
turns 65 years of age. The Accounts and Budgets Department monitors the OPEB and pension
obligations for the County along with a contracted actuary. The Accounts and Budgets Director is
responsible for ensuring compliance with the county personnel policies to ensure that only eligible

county employees/retirees receive OPEB and pension benefits. The Accounts and Budgets



Department payroll clerks continually review the status of county employees to check for

eligibility of these benefits.

Vacation and leave obligations: The County Accounts and Budgets Director coordinates with the
county payroll clerk(s) and the various county departments to ensure all
vacation/sick/compensatory time accrued is accounted for accurately, is in compliance with county

personnel policies, and is within legal limits (comp time).

Physical security of the purchasing office: The Greene Count Purchasing office is located at

204 N. Cutler St, Suite 209, Greeneville TN 37745. The Agent and Assistant have keys to the

office. The Mayor, maintenance and custodial also have keys to the office. Access to the office
is through the entrance on Cutler Street or Hall Street. The Purchasing Department has two
monitors in their office to allow employees or deliveries to enter from the alley on Cutler Street.
Access for employees is through the ally off Cutler or lower entrance on Hall. Access is allowed
through HID Proximity cards that are issued by the county maintenance department. When an
employee quits or retires, the county maintenance department will delete that employee’s access
card immediately. If an employee should lose his/her employee access card, he/she must notify
his/her supervisor and the maintenance department immediately. The system is monitored by
Dynamark Security in Blountville, TN. If a security breach is detected, Dynamark Security shall
notify the Purchasing Department if the office is open and staff working; if the Purchasing
Department does not answer or when the County Annex is closed, then Dynamark Security shall
notify the maintenance department, and as a last resort, the Mayor. Also, some offices have panic
buttons installed that alert the Greeneville Police Department. Security cameras are installed in the

hallway, lobby areas and the outside perimeter of the building to monitor activity in these areas.

Debt issuance and management: The County Accounts and Budgets Department coordinates

with the county financial advisor (bonds) and financial institutions (capital outlay notes) to ensure
that the County follows the adopted county debt management policy and state statute. The
Accounts and Budgets Department is responsible for an annual review of the county debt
management policy. To guard against the county entering into a capital lease by accident, all leases

for equipment (copiers, office equipment) are reviewed by the County Attorney prior to signing.



II. Safeguarding county funds, property and other assets against waste, loss,

unauthorized use, or misappropriation

Control environment: All Purchasing Department employees have written job descriptions. All

new hires in the County Purchasing office are required to have a criminal background check

prior to starting work. See attached personnel job descriptions.

Surplus county property: The County Purchasing Department administers the sales of surplus

county equipment after the equipment has been declared surplus. If a county auction is held, the
Purchasing Department coordinates with the departments to get a listing of items that are surplus.
The Purchasing Department also uses GovDeals online auction. If Greene County Government
has accumulated large quantities of items from seizure or surplus, the County Purchasing
Department will usually conduct a public auction. If Greene County Government have vehicles,
the County Purchasing Department generally attempts to sell same utilizing GovDeals. The public
auction process starts with a list of surplus/seizure items. This list will be used to develop an ad
for the Greeneville Sun and print brochures with date, time, and location of auction. The surplus
auction is usually conducted at the Greene County Solid Waste Department. The auctioneer is
usually a county employee, so the Purchasing Department customarily does not have to bid those
services. The Assistant works with other employees that assist in assigning buyer numbers. After
the auction the Assistant and other county employees collect money, write receipts for each buyer,
and give them titles or seizure orders (vehicles only). The Purchasing Agent clerks the auction
with the auctioneer. After the conclusion of the auction, funds are secured, receipt’s (county), and
auction cards are returned to the purchasing office. The Purchasing Agent counts out all money
and balances the receipts and auction tickets. The Purchasing Agent turns the money in to the
Trustee’s office the next working day. The money is deposited into the fund(s) into the county
general fund. The proceeds are then calculated as to each department’s proceeds and that
department may request resolutions for the proceeds to be returned to their budgets. The County
Purchasing Department may also have real property listed on GovDeals. This may be surplus
property including property that the county purchased at the delinquent taxes sales for Greene
County. When items are listed on GovDeals, the County Purchasing Department will post pictures
to the website, describe the item, give starting price and bid increments. Some items may be listed

with a reserve. When this occurs, the bidder will bid until the site lets them (the bidder) know they



have made the reserve. If an item did not reach the reserve amount GovDeals will notify
purchasing. The County Purchasing Department can accept a back-up bid, cancel or rebid an item.
The County Purchasing Department will also set a day and time that the auction ends. When the
auction ends, GovDeals notifies purchasing and the successful bidder. When the bidder pays
GovDeals, the County Purchasing Department will receive a bill of sale showing that the item has
been paid for. The bidder pays GovDeals 7.5% and GovDeals charges the county 5% for each
auction item. When the auction has ended, and all items are paid for and picked up, GovDeals
will mail a check to the trustee’s office. The County Purchasing Department will notify the
Trustee’s office after the auction that a check is expected and lets the trustee know amount,
description and fund for deposit and receipt. The County Purchasing Department will send the
Budgets & Accounts Department copies of titles and inventory numbers for removal from

inventory.

I11. Determining whether revenues and expenditures are properly recorded and

accounted for, to permit the preparation of accurate and reliable financial and statistical

reports, and to maintain accountability over the assets

The Accounts and Budgets Department shall perform monthly reconciliations for all funds with
the County Trustee. This reconciliation includes ensuring that revenues and expenditures for the
month were coded correctly. Copies of the month-end reports are sent to all county department

heads and officials for review.

The Accounts and Budgets Department shall post all purchase orders and contracts (except phone,
utilities, insurance premiums, surety bonds) to LGDPC software as encumbrances to assist with

ongoing monitoring of the appropriation budget.

The County Accounts and Budget Director and his/her staff will review the budget of each fund
to ensure the original approved budget and any subsequent budget amendments are posted

correctly to the accounting software.

The Accounts and Budgets Department shall close the financial year-end on June 30" of each year.
The Accounts and Budgets Department has a year-end checklist that includes each report needed
by audit (deferred revenue, taxes receivable, interest receivable, cash with clerks and trustee, etc.).

Depreciation and capital asset reports are prepared and reviewed.



The Accounts and Budgets Director shall take prompt action on any identified internal control
weakness over accounting, purchasing and budgeting identified by his/her review of operations,

external annual audits and state/federal monitors.

The County Accounts and Budgets Director attends numerous continuing education courses
annually that pertain to GASB updates and changes to state law pertaining to accounting,

purchasing and budgeting.



II.

II1.

IV.

VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

XL

XII.

XIIIL.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIL

PURCHASING MANUAL
GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

OBIJECTIVES s i sm s i wmmmnis i s s 0 oo bk a6 sl a7 ravaa PAGE 2

PROCEDURES . . i i sass i sia sviss o4 o scoigas G aiaiesm o%s o 548 PAGE 2-3
PURCHASE REQUISITION PREPARATION .. ............. PAGE 3-4
PURCHASEMETHODS . ... ... i, PAGE 4-8

EXCEPTIONS TO THE NORMAL PURCHASING CYCLE ... PAGE S8

EMERGENCY PURCHASES . i s v s cwios s 56 awlsias o6 9s 5 PAGE 8
CONTRACTING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES . ............ PAGE 8
GOODS & SERVICES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS. .. .. PAGE 9
GOODS OR SERVICES COOPERATIVE PURCHASE....... PAGE 9
BUDGET ACCOUNTABILITY . ... cviiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. PAGE 9
LIABILITY OF THECOUNTY . . ..ot PAGE 9
SURPLUS PROPERTY ... .ottt PAGE 9
GIFTS AND GRATUITIES . . cci vv v v wmn im e san v s omiaras s PAGE 9-10
PURCHASES FROM EMPLOYEES . ...............oo.... PAGE 10
CHANGE ORDERS TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS .... PAGE 10
EVALUATIONOFTIEBIDS . .. ..o PAGE 10-11
LONGTERM AGREEMENTS . ... ... .. i PAGE 11
WARRANI IREOUIES x4 sozoms smessmsas smmonsomsn s siowmss o PAGE 11-12
MISCELLANEOUS . i wn o s s savwans 5% wacstes s s s 8% 5. PAGE 12
RESOLUTION FOR PROCEDURES TO PURCHASE AT

PUBLICLY ADVERTISED AUCTIONS . ...........ccuntn PAGE 12-13
PURHCASING COMMITTEE APPROVAL OF BIDS . ....... PAGE 13

XVIII. COUNTY PURCHASING APPROVALOFBIDS ............ PAGE 13-33



I. OBJECTIVES

THE OBJECTIVES OF THE GREENE COUNTY PURCHASING POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES ARE:

1.

Conform with all statutes and regulations affecting purchasing by the Greene
County Government.

2. Purchase supplies and services for the various county departments at an
economical price.

3. Purchase supplies and services in the quality that is best suited to the interest of
the county.

4. Purchase supplies and services on a timely basis to avoid interruptions to services
provided by the county.

5. Introduce a greater measure of responsibility and accountability over
implementation of the county budget, specifically as related to the procurement of
commodities, contractual services and capital outlay items.

6. Assist at all levels of the county government in reaching responsible cost-
effective decisions in the procurement of supplies for county use.

7. Select sources of supply on a fair and open competitive basis.

8. Promote goodwill and clear communications in county-vendor relations and intra-
county relations relative to purchasing.

9. Encourage public confidence in the procurement process by conducting
purchasing in a fair, open and honest manner.

IL. PROCEDURES
THE PURCHASING CYCLE:

1. Requesting department determines a need for supplies or services.
Requesting department prepares a two-part purchase requisition and keeps
the pink copy and returns the white copy to the Purchasing Department
(hereinafter referred to as “Purchasing™).

3. The purchasing staff checks the requisition to see if it is accurate. If not
accurate, the requesting department is contacted for clarification.
4. If accurate, the Purchasing staff checks to see if funds are available. If not

available, the requesting department is contacted and instructed in the
process for a transfer of funds. The requisition is not processed until
notification of available funds.

5. If funds are available, Purchasing determines whether regulations require
bids to be solicited.

2



6. If bids are not required, price quotations are obtained by phone, written

inquiry, or from catalogs, and a purchase order is prepared.

If bids are required, bid quotations are requested.

8. Bids are received, tabulated, and evaluated by Purchasing personnel and a
recommended bidder is approved.

0. If not approved, either (1) another bid is approved, (2) no bids are
accepted and the purchase is not completed, or (3) Purchasing will solicit

o

bids again.
10.  If abid is approved, Purchasing prepares the purchase order.
11. A purchase order consists of 5 copies. The original copy is sent to the

vendor, if requested, a copy is retained by Purchasing for the alpha file, a
copy is retained by Purchasing for the numerical file, a copy is retained
by Accounting, two (2) copies are retained by the requesting department,
and one copy is the receiving copy. This copy is signed and returned to
Accounting when the order has been received and is complete.

12. The vendor supplies the ordered goods or services and submits two copies
of the invoice to Central Accounting.
13.  The requesting department inspects the goods or services to see if

specifications have been met. If they have not been met, Purchasing is
notified, and the goods are returned to the vendor and/or the vendor is
otherwise directed to comply with the order.

14.  If the specifications have been met, the requesting department then signs
the receiving copy as complete and returns to the Central Accounting
office. The receiving agent’s signature provides the legal sufficiency to
expend public funds.

15.  Accounting verifies that the purchase order and invoice are correct and
pays the bill.

III. PURCHASE REQUISITION PREPARATION

The purchase requisition initiated the procurement cycle. The receipt of a
requisition with the necessary information and required signature gives the authority for
each specific purchase. A purchase order will not be issued unless authorized by a proper
requisition.

The SOLE authority for requisitioning resides in and for the departments of
Greene County. The Purchasing Department cannot requisition items without a written
request from a requesting agency. The departments of Greene County can request any
equipment, materials, or supplies that are necessary for the operation of the office.
However, representing (requisitioning) departments DO NOT HAVE THE LEGAL
AUTHORITY TO COMMIT GREENE COUNTY FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF
ITEMS. Only the Greene County Purchasing Department has the exclusive legal power,
authority, and obligation to commit county funds for expenditures. For the purchasing
activities of Greene County Government to operate effectively (TCA 5-14-105), there
needs to be a professional and complimentary working relationship between the
Purchasing Department and requesting agencies. Only when these departments work in
unison can the public interest be served best.

The requisition will be a two-part form available from the Purchasing
Department. The pink copy is retained by the requesting department and the white

3



original copy is submitted to Purchasing. Purchasing will review the requisition for the
purpose of verifying that all required information is provided; will determine if bids are
required; will ensure that the purchase is within the allocated budget line item; and that
contract compliance, when applicable, is assured.

A REQUISITION SHALL INCLUDE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

1.

DATE: Date requisition is prepared.

2. REQUISITIONED BY: The name of the person who is requesting the

(98]

10.

supplies or services.

DEPARTMENT: The department which is requesting the supplies or services.
APPROVED BY: The signature of the department head or approved person in
the requesting department.

DELIVER TO: The person and department to which the goods are to be
delivered.

CHARGE TO: The budget account from which the items are to be charged.
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: Instructions such as when the purchase order is
to be returned to the department for ordering, or to mail order forms or checks
with the purchase order, etc.

QUANTITY: The amount of goods or services requested. This should be
clearly identified in measurable units such as each, pieces, sheets, pounds,
gallons, feet, etc.

DESCRIPTION: Descriptions should be complete and detailed.

Specifications should be written so that no guess work is required. If a
specification such as color is not important, it should be so stated on the
requisition. If known, the manufacturer and part number should be shown.
USEFUL INFORMATION: The requisitioner should include on, or attach to,
the requisition any information whatsoever that will assist in making the best
possible buy on the needed supplies or services.

IV. PURCHASE METHODS

A. BID LIMIT/SEALED BIDS

It is the policy of Greene County to purchase goods and services based, if
feasible, by sealed competitive bids. Sealed bids allow the county to take
advantage of the resultant increase in competition and decrease in prices for
goods and services.

Tennessee Code Annotated Section 5-14-108 states that “All purchases of
contracts for purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and contractual
services, and all contracts for the lease or rental of equipment shall be based
whenever possible on competitive bids”.

Purchases exceeding $25,0000 in value will be made through the use of
competitive sealed bids. If the award criteria is not easily measured (or
objective), a request for proposals (RFP’S) may be utilized. Items estimated
to cost more than $25,000.00 will not be subdivided to circumvent the sealed
bid requirement.

4



Once the Purchasing Agent has determined that a requisition will be fulfilled
through sealed bids, specifications are prepared. The requisitioning agency
will be asked to assist in the preparation of these specifications. The general
terms and conditions are then prepared and combined with the specifications.
The Purchasing Department will not make changes in the requisitioning
department’s specifications, or accept substitutions in quality, without first
contacting the requisitioning department.

The invitation states the quantity of items and specifications to be quoted on
and the date and time the bid will be opened and publicly read. It also states
the bid number into which the bid is to be placed.

A record is kept of all vendors who pick up an invitation to bid so if
addendums are made, these vendors can also receive the addendum.

B. PUBLIC NOTICE

All sealed bids will be given public notice at least five (5) days prior to the
final date of submitting bids. Purchasing will decide whether to (1) insert the
public notice in a newspaper of county wide circulation, or (2) post the public
notice on the bulletin board in the County Annex and on the county’s website
under the heading, “PURCHASING DEPARTMENT”. The notice will
include a general description of the items or services to be purchased, where
bid forms and specifications may be obtained, and the time and place of the
bid opening.

C. BID RECEIPT AND TABULATION

At the designated time of the bid opening, additional bids cannot be accepted.
‘T'he Purchasing Agent will then unlock the box, file or sate. Once the bid file
is opened, each bid is brought out individually and opened, timed dated,
numbered, read, and tabulated.

D. AWARD OF BIDS

The Purchasing Agent will study the bids for conformance with terms,
specifications, responsiveness, and price, and award the contract. The
contract shall be awarded to the vendor(s) whose bids is the most
advantageous to the county. Whenever the award is not given to the lowest,
responsive bidder, the reason shall be documented and placed in the bid file.

If after the opening, but prior to award, any bid or proposal may be rejected in
whole or in part when it is in the best interest of the county. Reasons
included, but not limited to: (1) does not meet the specifications, (2) the
supplies or services are no longer needed, (3) prices exceed available funds,
(4) the pricing is not reasonable based on other available information in the
marketplace, and (5) the bidder is not responsive.



The Purchasing Committee shall serve as the hearing board for any grievance
by vendors against the county’s purchasing system. Any vendor aggrieved by
the actions of the Purchasing Department shall file a written request for
hearing in the Office of the County Mayor and furnish a copy to the
Purchasing Department within seven (7) days of the decision or action by the
Purchasing Department.

Greene County reserves the right to accept or reject a bid or any part of a bid;
to award a bid on “all or none basis”; to cancel a bid at any time by giving
appropriate notice; to lessen a bid (after it is opened); and to require necessary
bonds as required by law.

E. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

If the bid item criteria can’t be based solely on price, then a request for
proposals (RFP) may be made. The request for proposals will then be
prepared for suppliers to offer solutions to/for the need. The proposal is a
written request to suppliers inviting them to propose solutions and prices that
satisfy functional requirements described in that document. Proposals and
suppliers are evaluated in terms of the ability of the solution to satisfy a stated
requirement. Evaluation factors shall be set to indicate the importance of
price and other significant evaluation factors. Specific evaluation categories
need to be developed for each RFP. The following is a sample breakdown for
the point rating system:

Price 40 Percent
Experience 20 Percent
Usefulness of Plan 30 Percent
Proximity of Operation 10 Percent

Suppliers must be informed of the major evaluation factors in each RFP.
Award shall be made to the otteror whose proposal is determined to be more
advantageous to the county, taking into consideration price and the evaluation
factors set forth in the RFP.

DISCUSSION WITH ALL RESPONSIBLE OFFERORS:

Written or oral discussions shall be conducted with all responsible offerors
who submit proposals determined to be potentially eligible for the award.
Discussions shall not disclose any information derived from proposals
submitted by competing offerors.

DISCUSSIONS NEED NOT BE CONDUCTED:

1. With respect to prices, where such prices are fixed by law or
regulation, except that consideration shall be given to competitive
terms and conditions; or

2. Where time of delivery or performance will not permit discussions; or

3. When it is demonstrated to the Purchasing Agent by the existence of
adequate competition and/or accurate prior cost experience with the
procured items, that acceptance of an initial offer without discussion

6



would result in fair and reasonable prices. The request for proposals
must also notify all offerors of the possibility that award may be made
on the basis of the initial offers.

PURCHASE ORDER PREPARATION:

The purchase order is a five-part numbered form which is used to authorize the
vendor to supply ordered goods or services. The purchase order shall contain the
following information.

Name and address of the vendor.

Point to which the goods or services should be delivered.

Quantity of goods or services ordered.

Description of goods or services ordered.

Budget account to which the cost should be charged.

Unit price and total price.

Delivery information.

Signature of the Purchasing Agent; and

Signature of the Accounts & Budget Director that there are sufficient
funds available to cover the purchase.

LRI RPs

THE PURCHASE ORDER COPIES SHALL BE DISTRIBUTED AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Vendor.

2. Numerical copy for Purchasing.

3. Requesting department.

4. Receiving — (submitted to accounting as approval to pay for purchase).
3L Accounting.

CORRECTIONS OR CHANGES TO THE PURCHASE ORDER MAY BE
MADE BY ACCOUNTING UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1. The amount of change is limited to $50.00 or 10% of the original purchase
order price for upward revisions.
2. Downward revisions may be completed at their discretion.

(Upward revisions are necessary to allow for market fluctuations, shipping
charges, weight variances, etc.)

RECEIPT AND INSPECTION:

The department that requisitioned the goods or services shall be responsible for
the receipt, inspection, and acceptance of incoming supplies and equipment. The
department shall review the invoice or packing slip and certify by signature of the
department head or their designee on the receiving copy of the purchase order that
the items covered by the invoice and/or packing slip have been received in good
condition and correct quantities and that payment of the purchase order is
approved. The receiving copy of the purchase order along with attached invoice
and/or packing slip should then be sent promptly to Accounting for payment. If
the goods or services have not been received in good condition or if the quantity

7




is incorrect, the department should notify Purchasing promptly. Purchasing

shall then do what is necessary to correct the problem.

o Qwp

EXCEPTIONS TO THE NORMAL PURCHASING CYCLE

EMERGENCY PURCHASES

CONTRACTING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.
GOODS AND SERVICES PURCHASED FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL UNITS.

GOODS AND SERVICES PURCHASED UNDER COOPERATIVE
PURCHASING AGREEMENTS.

A. EMERGENCY PURCHASES -

TCA Section 5-14-110 Authorizes Purchasing “... Without filling
requisition or estimate, any supplies, material, or equipment for
immediate delivery in actual emergencies arising from unforeseen
causes...” Emergency purchases are made to protect the public health,
welfare or safety of citizens or when immediate repair is necessary to
prevent further damage to public property, machinery, or equipment.
Poor planning, overlooked requirements and inadequate forecasting
will not be considered a bonafide emergency purchase situation.

EMERGENCY PURCHASING WILL NOT BE USED AS A “CRUTCH FOR
POOR MANAGEMENT.

Purchasing will handle the emergency purchase, if needed, during
regular Greene County Purchasing business hours 8 A.M. TO 5 P.M.
If the emergency purchase is needed after regular courthouse business
hours, weekends, or holidays, the department head or designee may
make the purchase. A report of the purchase, including a justification,
requisition, and delivery ticket or packing slip shall be sent to
Purchasing before the end of the next working day. Purchasing will
then write a confirming purchase order.

Abuses of this procedure will be investigated and if necessary, the use

of emergency purchasing procedures can be revoked by the Purchasing
Committee.

. CONTRACTING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -

TCA Section 5-14-108 provides that “...contracts for legal services,
auditing services by CPA, and similar services by professional
persons or groups of high ethical standards shall not be based upon
competitive bids, but shall be awarded on the basis of recognized
competency and integrity; provided further that bids need not be
required for services for which the rate or price is fixed by a public
authority authorized by law to fix such rates or prices.”



C. GOODS AND SERVICES PURCHASED FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTS -

“The county may purchase materials, supplies, commodities and
equipment from any federal, state or local governmental units or
agency, without confirming to the competitive bidding
requirements...” TCA Section 5-14-108.

D. GOODS OR SERVICES PURCHASED UNDER
GOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING
AGREEMENTS -

The county may purchase goods or services without competitive bids
under State of Tennessee Contracts which allow cooperative
purchasing. It shall be the policy of the Purchasing Agent to
compare state contract prices with prices offered to the county. If
the state contract price is lower, the Purchasing Agent shall purchase
items under the state contract.

VI. BUDGET ACCOUNTABILITY

Elected officials and department heads are directly responsible for their respective
budgets. No purchase will be made unless authorized by a requisition signed by the
department head or their designee. When budgeted amounts are expended, Purchasing
may not authorize additional expenditures. Purchasing shall not be responsible for
securing additional appropriations for any purchase.

VII. LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY

The county is not liable for purchases which do not conform to the procedures
covered in (his manual.

VIII. SURPLUS PROPERTY

No department shall transfer, sell, trade-in, or otherwise dispose of supplies or
equipment owned by the county without written authorization of the Purchasing Agent.
To notify the Purchasing Agent of surplus supplies or materials, the department head
shall fill out a form describing the surplus material. If a transfer cannot be arranged, the
methods of disposal are competitive sealed bids, GovDeals or public auction. The county
can conduct a public auction each fiscal year to accommodate if needed.

IX. GIFTS AND GRATUITIES

County purchasing employees are expressly prohibited from soliciting or
accepting any rebate, money, entertainment gift, or gratuity from any person, company,
firm or corporation to which any purchase order or contract is or might be awarded. The
county will not tolerate circumstances that produce or reasonably appear to produce

9



conflicts between the personal interest of a purchasing employee and the interest of the
county. Association with supplier representatives at luncheons, dinners or business
organization meetings are helpful in establishing better business understanding. These
associations are neither questionable nor unethical, provided the Greene County
employee remains completely free of obligations.

X. PURCHASES FROM EMPLOYEES

It shall be the policy of the county not to purchase any goods or services from any
employee or close relative (ex. husband, wife, son, daughter, daughter-in-law, son-in-law,
father, mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
step relations of the same degree as the above described) of any employee.

XI. CHANGE ORDERS TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Architect/engineer assisted construction projects require explicit specifications,
drawings and data in the bid solicitation process. No matter how thorough the documents
are produced, it is almost indisputable that change orders will be necessary during the
construction phase to successfully complete the project. All changes to the original scope
of work must be submitted by the contractor to the architect, approved by the architect
and submitted to the Purchasing Department for written authorization prior to initiating
the change. All change orders are presented to the Purchasing Agent on 414
DOCUMENT G701/CHANGE ORDER, defending_the reason for change and any
increase/decrease to the contract sum. A change order can be as simple as relocating a
doorway 6” to the right, or as complicated as redesigning a complete area to
accommodate fire marshal requirements, etc. Each change order is reviewed by the
Purchasing Agent, County Executive, Budget Director, and appropriate County Officials
for final approval. If approved, the Purchasing Agent signs the AIA G701 form and
presents it to the architect as contractor’s Notice-to-Proceed and to authorize changes to
the blueprints/drawings. The Purchasing Department then prepares a revision to the
original construction contract (purchasc order) to record each change and any applicable
increase/decrease to the contract sum. The architect/engineer will be given these
guidelines to follow at the beginning of each construction project.

XII. EVALUATION OF TIE BIDS

If Greene County received more than one low bid, identical in dollar amounts, the
following procedures would be utilized.

A. Each bid would be carefully examined for adherence to specifications.
If any bid failed to meet the exact specifications it would not be
considered for evaluation.

B. Delivery factors such as lead times, schedules and cost could be
considered.

C. Locality could be a factor of the decision. If either vendor was local or
if one vendor was in the State of Tennessee and the other one was not,
the award can be made to the company having local ties.

D. Discount rates for prompt payment can be utilized to decide tie bids.

10



E. If no other method of breaking the tie is useful, a publicly witnessed
drawing of lots can be utilized.
F. Finally, the bids could be rejected and the item re-bid.

XHI. LONG TERM AGREEMENTS

Greene County does not normally enter into agreements that are any longer than
one budget year (twelve months). However, some contracts are written to provide for an
option to renew for additional years. When this arrangement is in the best interest of
Greene County, it will be utilized. If a contract with option to renew is utilized, the
renewal is subject to the following conditions:

A. Funds are available for the purchase of the items or services.
B. The items are still desired by the County.
C. Merchandise quality and vendor services have been satisfactory.

XIV. WARRANT REQUEST (A PURCHASE ORDER IS NOT REQUIRED)

Telephone

Utilities

Jury

Inter-department billings

Appointed board and committee member pay
Bonds

Insurance

Reimbursement

Contributions

Fixed rate by public utility

Payroll reimbursements

Beeper/pager/cell phone charges

Legal fees for attorney

Freight/shipping

Payments to hospital for inmates

Payments for inmate x-rays

Interpreters for courts

Doctor/dentist payments

Hospital labor work for hepatitis/lab work for inmates
Bank fees for services

Inter-local agreements - Sheriff’s Department
Medical bills for K-9 — Sheriff’s Department
Bid advertisements, newspaper subscriptions, periodical subscriptions
Audit services

Membership fees— including publications

NXNE<SCHAFONOZEN AT EOTImUO®Ey

Dues
AA. Hotel/motel travel prepayment
BB.  Tuition
CC. Travel

DD. 363 confidential account
11



EE. Postage (stamps or meter)
FF.  Vehicle tags

XV. MISCELLANEOUS

If items are purchased without prior approval and a purchase order, other than
items listed above, Greene County will have no obligation to pay. If department(s) or
individuals continue to abuse this, the individual shall be required to pay for the purchase
out of pocket.

Purchase orders are issued in July for copier lease/rental, that includes all
consumables, except paper. This includes service and toner. Postage machines also have
a purchase order issued in July, BUT that doesn’t include supplies. Those items must be
placed on a requisition and submitted to Purchasing for ordering. Also, fax machines are
not covered on maintenance contracts. Therefore, a purchase order must be issued for
repair prior to service.

XVI. RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH WRITTEN PROCEDURES
GOVERNING PURCHASES AT PUBLICLY ADVERTISED AUCTIONS

Established by Chapter 795 of the Public Acts of 1994 authorizing counties to
purchase new or secondhand articles or equipment or other materials, supplies,
commodities, and equipment at any publicly advertised auction without the necessity of
using the public advertisement and competitive bidding process. The Greene County
Commission adopted the following procedures on June 21, 1999:

L. When used herein, “Purchase Agent” shall mean the person authorized
under applicable law to make purchases for a county department.

2. All purchases at public auction must be initiated by the county official
having responsibility for the department for which the purchasc is to be
made. The county official must complete a “Request for Purchase at
Public Auction.” The form of which may be obtained from Purchasing. A
copy of the public advertisement of the auction must be attached to the
form. The completed form must be approved by the Purchasing Agent (if
different from the county official) for the department for which the
purchase is to be made.

3: The county official (and the Purchasing Agent, if different from the county
official) must certify the unencumbered balance available in the line-item
account from which the proposed purchase is to be taken.

4. The request for purchase at public auction must be delivered to the County
Executive AT LEAST FIVE (5) WORKING DAYS BEFORE THE
AUCTION.

5: No tax shall be paid on any item purchased at public auction, except to the

extent that no exemption is available to the county under applicable law.

12



10.

Purchases shall be made only by county warrant or county check.

The auction must be conducted by an auctioneer who is licensed to
conduct auctions in the State of Tennessee. Any items purchased at public
auction shall be accomplished by the vendor’s certification that the item is
free from any liens or encumbrances.

The Purchasing Agent, or another person designated by the Purchasing
Agent, shall act as bidder for the county at the auction. The bidder is
prohibited from submitting any bid above the unencumbered balance
available in the line-item account from which the proposed purchase is to
be taken, as certified in the request for purchase at public action, and the
total successful bids by the county shall not exceed such unencumbered
balance. If the county is the successful bidder, the bidder must complete
and sign a “CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASE AT PUBLIC
AUCTION”. This form can be obtained from Purchasing.

The request for purchase at public auction and the certificate of purchase
at public auction, properly completed and signed, shall be filed with the
Purchasing Agent as soon as reasonably possible after the auction. The
Purchasing Agent shall mail or deliver copies to the Chairman of the
County Legislative Body within a reasonable time thereafter.

All applicable conflict of interest laws shall apply to purchases at public
auction.

XVII. PURCHASING COMMITTEE APPROVAL OF BIDS

The Purchasing Committee shall approve all bids in excess of $25,000.00.

XVIL. COUNTY PURCHASING APPROVAL OF BIDS

See attached applicable statutes.

13



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-101

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-101. Short title.

This part shall be known and may be cited as the “"County Purchasing Law of 1957.”

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 1; T.C.A., § 5-1401,

Roger Woolsey /5/



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-102

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-102. Local approval.

(a) This part shall be local in effect and shall become effective in a particular county upon the contingency
of a two-thirds (%4) vote of the county legisiative body or other governing body of the county approving this

law, or upon the contingency of the majority of the voters casting votes in any election held for this purpose
approving this law.

(b)

(1) The procedure for elections held for the purpose of approving this law shall be that the county
election commission shall call and conduct an election within thirty (30) days after receiving a petition
signed by ten percent (10%) of the qualified voters of the county, stating that they favor this law and
requesting that an election be held in the county on the subject.

(2) The number of qualified voters in the county is deemed to be the total number of votes cast for all
candidates for governor in the last general election, or upon a resolution of the county legislative body,
or other governing body, duly certified to the election commission, requesting such an election.

(3) In such an election, the propositions to be voted upon shall be stated on the ballot on separate
lines in the following manner: “For the County Purchasing Law of 1957” and “Against the County
Purchasing Law of 1957."

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 2; impl. am. Acts 1972, ch. 740, § 7; impl. am. Acts 1978, ch. 934, §§ 7, 36; T.C.A., § 5-1402.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey /j



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-103

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-103. Purchasing agent — Appointment — Compensation — Staff.

(a) The county mayor of any county that has adopted this part shall appoint, with the approval of the county
legislative body or other governing body, a purchasing agent who shall be a county employee.

(b) A purchasing agent shall be qualified by training and experience to perform the purchasing agent's
duties in a proficient manner and in accordance with generally recognized principles of governmental
purchasing and in accordance with this part.

(c)

(1) Before assuming the purchasing agent's duties, a purchasing agent shall execute a corporate
surety bond, the amount of which shall be established by the county mayor at not less than one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000).

(2) The bond must be prepared, executed, filed, and recorded in accordance with title 8, chapter 19.
(3) The premium for such bond shall be paid from the county general fund.

(d) The compensation of the purchasing agent, which shall not be in excess of compensation allowed
county officials in accordance with §§ 8-24-101 and 8-24-102, shall be set annually by the county legislative
body or other governing body; and the amount of such compensation, the compensation of such clerks and
assistants as may be needed, and the other necessary expenses of this office shall be provided for by
annual appropriation made by the county legislative body or other governing body from the county general
fund.

{e) The purchasing agent has the power, in accordance with such regulations as may be established by
the county mayor, to appoint and remove the purchasing agent's assistants, to prescribe their duties, and to
fix their salaries within the limits of the annual appropriation made therefor.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 3; impl. am. Acts 1978, ch. 934, §§ 7, 16, 36; T.C.A., § 5-1403; Acts 1998, ch. 677, § 4, 2003,
ch. 90, § 2; 2013, ch. 315, §§ 13, 14, 2023, ch. 207, § 3.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey / @)



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-104

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-104. Purchasing agent — Office.

(a) Necessary office space and equipment for the use of the purchasing agent shall be provided and
maintained at the county seat of such county.

(b) Such office shall be open for business during the usual hours observed by other officials of the county
government.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 14; T.C.A,, § 5-1404.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey / 7



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-105

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-105. Purchasing agent — Powers and duties.

The county purchasing agent has exclusive power and it is the purchasing agent's duty to:

(1) Contract for and purchase all supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services required by
each and every official, agency, office, department or employee of the county government, or that is
supported by, or under control of, the county government and that expends or encumbers any of the
county's funds. No other official, employee or agent of the county or of any of its departments or
agencies shall be authorized to contract for or purchase any such materials, supplies, equipment or
contractual services;

(2) Arrange for the rental of machinery, buildings or equipment when the rents are to be paid out of
funds belonging to the county or any department, institution or agency thereof; and no other official,
employee or agent of the county shall have the right or power to make any contract for such rental;

(3) Transfer materials, supplies and equipment to or between county departments and agencies as
may be needed for the proper and efficient administration of the county government; and

(4) Have charge of any central storeroom or central mailing room or similar services that may hereafter
be established for the efficient and economical handling of the county's business.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 4, T.C.A,, § 5-1405.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey / 8



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-106

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-106. County purchasing commission.

(a) A county purchasing commission is hereby created.
(b)

(1) The commission shall consist of five (5) members, one (1) of whom shall be the county mayor; the
remaining four (4) shall be appointed by the county mayor with the approval of the county governing
body.

(2) The members of the commission need not be members of the county governing body.

(c) Such commission shall elect its own chair and shall meet from time to time as it may deem necessary
for the discharge of its duties.

(d) It is the duty of the commission to assist the purchasing agent in the determination of overall
purchasing policies and in the establishment and promulgation, in accordance with this part, of rules,
regulations and procedures to be followed in the making of purchases and contracts for purchase for the
county. The actual administration of such activity shall be the sole responsibility of the purchasing agent.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 5; impl. am. Acts 1978, ch. 934, §§ 16, 36; T.C.A., § 5-1406; Acts 2003, ch. 90. § 2.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey / (I



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-107

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-107. Rules and regulations.

The county purchasing agent, with the assistance of the county purchasing commission, shall adopt,
promulgate, and may from time to time amend, rules and regulations for the purchase of supplies,
materials, equipment and contractual services and specifically for the following purposes:

(1) Authorizing in writing any department, official or agency of the county government to make
purchases in the open market for immediate delivery in emergencies, defining such emergencies,
describing the manner in which such emergency purchases shall be made and promptly afterward
reported to the county purchasing agent;

(2) Prescribing the manner in which supplies, materials and equipment shall be requisitioned,
purchased, delivered, stored and distributed, and providing that such shali be conducted in accordance
with this part;

(3) Prescribing the dates for submitting requisitions and estimates, the future period they are to cover,
the form in which they are to be submitted, the manner of their authentication, and their revision by the
county purchasing agent;

(4) Prescribing the manner of inspecting all deliveries of supplies, materials and equipment, and of
making or procuring chemical and physical tests of samples submitted with bids and samples of
deliveries to determine compliance with specifications;

(5) Requiring periodical and special reports by county departments, agencies, and employees of
stocks of surplus, unusable or obsolete supplies and equipment on hand and prescribing the form of
such reports;

(6) Providing for the transfer to or between county departments and agencies of supplies and
equipment on hand, that are surplus with one (1) department or agency, but that may be needed by
another or others, and for the disposal by sale, after receipt of competitive bids, of supplies, materials
and equipment that are obsolete or unusable;

(7) Determining whether a deposit or bond is to be submitted with a bid on a purchase contract or sale,
and if required, prescribing the amount and form thereof, and providing that such surety shall be
forfeited if the successful bidder refuses to enter into contract ten (10) days after the award;

(8) Prescribing the manner in which invoices for supplies, materials, equipment and contractual
services delivered to any and all departments, agencies and offices of the county shall be submitted,
examined and approved;

(9) Providing for all other such matters as may be necessary to give effect to the foregoing rules and to
this part; and

(10) Prescribing the manner in which public auctions for the sale of county-owned property, real or
personal, that has become surplus, obsolete or unusable shall be conducted.

Roger Woolsey /)



Page 8 of 20
5-14-107. Rules and regulations.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 4, T.C.A., § 5-1405; Acts 1984, ch. 647, § 1.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey o/) ‘



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-108

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-108. Purchases, sales, etc. — Bidding, auctions.

(a)

(1) All purchases of and contracts for purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and contractual
services, and all contracts for the lease or rental of equipment, and all sales of county-owned property
that has become surplus, obsolete or unusable, shall be based wherever possible on competitive bids.

(2) Contracts for legal services, auditing services by certified public accountants, and similar services
by professional persons or groups of high ethical standards shall not be based upon competitive bids
but shall be awarded on the basis of recognized competence and integrity.

(3) Bids need not be required for services for which the rate or price is fixed by a public authority
authorized by law to fix such rates or prices.

(4) The prohibition in this subsection (a) against competitive bidding shall not prohibit the county from
interviewing eligible persons or groups to determine the capabilities of such persons or groups.

(b) The county may purchase materials, supplies, commodities and equipment from any federal, state or
local governmental unit or agency, without conforming to the competitive bidding requirements of this part.

(c)

(1) If the amount of the expenditure or sale is estimated to exceed five hundred dollars ($500), sealed
bids shall be solicited, unless the county legislative body by resolution establishes a higher amount not
to exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000).

(2) The county legislative body by resolution may exempt perishable commodities from the
requirements of sealed or competitive bidding when such items are purchased in the open market.

(3) The county purchasing agent shall solicit sealed bids by public notice inserted at least once in a
newspaper of county-wide circulation, five (5) days prior to the final date for submitting bids or by
posting notices on a public bulletin board in the county courthouse.

(4) The county purchasing agent shall also, when deemed necessary or desirable, solicit sealed bids
by sending requests by mail to prospective suppliers.

(5) All such notices shall include a general description of the commodities or contractual services to be
purchased or property to be sold, and shall state where bid blanks and specifications may be obtained
and the time and place of opening bids.

(d)

(1) All purchases or sales in amounts that do not require bid solicitation pursuant to subsection (c) may
be made by the county purchasing agent in the open market without newspaper notice, but shall
whenever possible be based upon at least three (3) competitive bids.

Roger Woolsey 99



Page 10 of 20
5-14-108. Purchases, sales, etc. — Bidding, auctions.

(2) Requisitions for items estimated to cost an amount such as to require public newspaper notice shall
not be subdivided in order to circumvent the requirement for public newspaper notice as herein
provided.

(3) All sales by the purchasing agent shall be made to the highest responsible bidder.

(e) Bids on purchases shall in all cases be based on such standards as may be adopted and promuigated
by the county purchasing agent and approved by the county purchasing commission.

(f) All open market purchase orders or contracts made by the county purchasing agent or in extreme
emergencies by any county department or agency shall be awarded to the lowest and best bidder, taking
into consideration the qualities of the articles to be supplied, their conformity with specifications, their
suitability to the requirements of the county government, and the delivery terms. Any or all bids may be
rejected for good cause.

{g) All bids taken under the requirements of this part, and all other documents, including purchase orders,
pertaining to the award of contracts on such bids, shall be preserved for a period of five (5) years.

(h) If all bids received on a pending contract are for the same unit price or total amount, the county
purchasing agent shall have authority to reject all bids and to purchase the required supplies, materials,
equipment or contractual services in the open market; provided, that the price paid in the open market does
not exceed the bid price.

(i) All sealed bids received shall be opened publicly at the time and place fixed in the advertisement. Each
bid, with the name and address of the bidder, shall be entered on a record, and each record with the names
of the bidders, the amounts of their bids, and the name of the successful bidder indicated thereon, shall,
after the award or contract or order, be open to public inspection.

(j) All contracts shall be approved as to form by the county attorney, and the original copy of each long-
term contract shall be filed with the county clerk.

(k) No purchase shall be made or purchase order or contract of purchase issued but in consequence of a
written requisition for the supplies, materials, equipment or contractual services required, which requisition
shall be signed by the head of the department, office or agency of the county requiring such articles or
services. Original copies of all such requisitions shall be kept on file in the office of the county purchasing
agent.

(I) No purchase shall be made or purchase order or contract of purchase issued for tangible personal
property or services by county officials or employees, acting in their official capacity, from any firm or
individual whose business tax or license is delinquent.

(m)

(1) The county purchasing agent is authorized to purchase and contract to purchase materials,
supplies, equipment and contractual services on a fiscal year basis, but no commitment shall be made
that extends beyond the end of the current fiscal year for which appropriations have been made by the
county legislative body, except such commitments as are authorized by resolution of the county
legislative body.

(2) In the determination of the county's annual needs of certain commodities or services, or both, the
county purchasing agent may request the various departments, offices and agencies of the county
government to anticipate their needs for the remainder of the fiscal year and to issue their requisitions
based upon such estimates.

(n)

(1) Perishable commodities, at the election of the local governing body, may be exempted from the
requirements of public advertisements and competitive bidding when such items are purchased in the
open market.

Roger Woolsey 075



Page 11 of 20
5-14-108. Purchases, sales, etc. — Bidding, auctions.

(2) Arecord of all such purchases shall be made by the purchasing agent and shall specify the amount
paid, the items purchased, and from whom the purchase was made.

(3) A report of such purchases shall be made to the county mayor and the governing body of the
county at frequencies specified by the governing body.

(4) Fuel and fuel products may be purchased in the open market without public newspaper notice, but
shall whenever possible be based on at least three (3) competitive bids. Fuel and fuel products may be
purchased from the department of general services' contract where available.

(5) This subsection (n) shall apply to any county having a population of not less than seventy-seven
thousand seven hundred (77,700) nor more than seventy-seven thousand eight hundred (77,800),
according to the 1980 federal census or any subsequent census, if it is approved by a two-thirds (24)
vote of the county legislative body of any county to which it may apply.

(0)

(1) All sales of county-owned property, real or personal in nature, that has become surplus, obsolete or
unusable shall be made by public auction or by sealed bid under this section, in the discretion of the
purchasing agent or responsible official. “Public auction” includes sale by Internet auction.

(2) The county purchasing agent shall give public notice of such auction by inserting at least once in a
newspaper of county-wide circulation or by posting on a public bulletin board in the county courthouse
at least five (5) days prior to the date of such auction, a notice specifying the auction date, time, place,
property to be sold and terms of such auction.

(3) This subsection (o) does not apply to any books, recordings, or other material previously in general
circulation at a county public library; provided, however, that the county public library shall conduct a
public sale of surplus, obsolete or otherwise unusable books, recordings or other materials previously
in general circulation at the county public library and shall give public notice of such sale by inserting at
least once in a newspaper of county-wide circulation, by posting such sale on a web site maintained by
the county, or by posting on a public bulletin board in the county courthouse and at the county public
library at least five (5) days prior to the date of such sale, a notice specifying generally that such a sale
shall occur, including the dates, times, places, and terms of such sale.

(4) Notwithstanding any other law, a procedure may be established upon approval by resolution or
ordinance, by a two-thirds (%5) majority vote of the county legislative body, to provide the purchasing
agent, upon request of the county mayor, the authority to declare county owned personal property with
an accumulative estimated value of one thousand dollars ($1,000) or less surplus, obsolete, or
unusable personal property and to dispose of the personal property, at the purchasing agent's
discretion, by selling the personal property on the open market or by gift, trade, or barter to a nonprofit
or charitable organization properly incorporated under the laws of this state and in which no part of the
net earnings of the organization inures or may lawfully inure to the benefit of any private shareholder or
individual and that it provides services benefiting the general welfare of the residents of the county.
Iltems having an accumulative estimated value that exceeds one thousand dollars ($1,000) shall not be
subdivided in order to circumvent the requirement for public notice or receipt of sealed bids or selling
the property through public or Internet auction. The purchasing agent shall keep all records of
transactions of the disposal of personal property under this subdivision (0)(4) for a minimum of five (5)
years.

(p) In any county having a population of not less than one hundred seven thousand one hundred (107,100)
nor more than one hundred seven thousand two hundred (107,200), according to the 2000 federal census
or any subsequent federal census, the county may purchase and enter into contracts for group health
insurance for county employees and officials without conforming to the competitive bidding requirements of
this part. This subsection (p) shall only be implemented in any county to which this subsection (p) applies
upon the adoption of a resolution by a two-thirds (%5) vote of the county legislative body of such county.

Roger Woolsey 0?4



Page 12 of 20
5-14-108. Purchases, sales, etc. — Bidding, auctions.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 7; 1963, ch. 367, § 1; 1975, ch. 563, § 1; 1977, ch. 119, §§ 1, 2; 1977, ch. 288, § 1; impl. am.
Acts 1978, ch. 934, §§ 7, 22, 36; modified; T.C.A., § 5-1408; Acts 1984, ch. 604, § 1; 1984, ch. 647, §§ 2-5; 1984,
ch. 822, § 1, 1984, ch. 895, §§ 1, 2; 1988, ch. 770, §§ 1, 2; 1995, ch. 179, § 1, 2004, ch. 500, § 1, 2006, ch. 509,
§ 1; 2007, ch. 122, § 1; 2007, ch. 135, § 1; 2007, ch. 415, § 1; 2009, ch. 173, §§ 1, 2; 2010, ch. 974, § 1; 2013, ch.
162, § 1.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 09.5



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-109

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-109. Purchases — Certification of adequate funding.

Except in emergencies, no order for delivery on a contract or open market order for supplies, materials,
equipment or contractual services for any county department or agency shall be awarded unless it shall be
first certified by the director of accounts and budgets, or other county official or employee in charge of the
central accounting records of the county that the unencumbered balance in the appropriation chargeable
with such purchase in excess of all unpaid obligations, is sufficient to defray the entire cost of such order or

contract.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 8; T.C.A., § 5-1409.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey v



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-110

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-110. Emergency purchases.

(a) The county purchasing agent may authorize any department or agency of the county government to
purchase in the open market, without filing requisition or estimate, any supplies, materials or equipment for
immediate delivery in actual emergencies arising from unforeseen causes, including delays by contractors,
delays in transportation, and unanticipated volume of work; but such emergencies shall not include
conditions arising from neglect or indifference in anticipating normal needs.

(b)
(1) Such direct emergency purchases, however, may only be made by department or agency heads at
times when the office of the county purchasing agent is closed.
(2) Atall other times, only the county purchasing agent shall make these purchases.

(3) A report of such emergency purchase, when made by a department or agency head, together with
a record of the competitive bids secured and upon which it was based, shall be submitted in writing to
the county purchasing agent before the close of the next working day following the date of such
purchase, by the head of the county department or agency concerned, together with a full and
complete account of the circumstances of such emergency.

(4) Such report shall be kept on file and shall be open to public inspection.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 9: T.C.A., § 5-1410.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey CQ 7



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-111

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-111. Written orders and contracts.

(a) Each purchase order or contract issued or executed pursuant to this chapter shall be evidenced by a
written order sighed by the county purchasing agent, which shall give all significant details respecting such
order or contract.

(b) A copy of such order shall be furnished the vendor, one (1) copy shall be furnished to the county
accounting department, and at least two (2) copies shall be retained in the office of the county purchasing
agent, one (1) of such copies to be filed in numerical order and the other alphabetically.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 11; T.C.A,, § 5-1411.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey o/) 8



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-112

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-112. Purchasing standards and specifications.

(a) Itis the duty of the county purchasing agent to:
(1) Classify the requirements of the county government for supplies, materials and equipment;

(2) Adopt as standards the smallest number of quantities, sizes and varieties of such supplies,
materials and equipment consistent with the successful operation of the county government; and

(3) Prepare, adopt and promulgate written specifications describing such standards.
(b)

(1) In the preparation and revision of such standards, the county purchasing agent shall seek the
advice, assistance and cooperation of the county departments and agencies concerned, to ascertain
their precise requirements.

(2) Each specification adopted for any commaodity shall, insofar as possible, satisfy the requirements of
the majority of the county departments and agencies that use the same.

History

Acts 1967, ch. 312, § 12, T.C.A,, § 5-1412.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 09 q



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-113

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-113. Liability of county.

The county shall be liable for the payment of all purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and
contractual service made in accordance with this chapter, but shall not be liable for the payment of such
purchases made contrary to its provisions.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 13; T.C.A,, § 5-1413.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 30



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-114

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-114. Conflicts of interest — Forfeiture of compensation — Removal
from office.

(a) The county purchasing agent, members of the county purchasing commission, members of the county
legislative body, and other officials of the county shall not;

(1) Have a direct interest in a contract or purchase order for supplies, materials, equipment, or
contractual services used by or furnished to a department or agency of the county government. As
used in this subdivision (a)(1), “direct interest” means a contract with such person personally or with a
business in which such person is the proprietor, a partner, or the person having the controlling interest
in the business; “controlling interest” includes the individual with the ownership or control of the largest
number of outstanding shares owned by a single individual or corporation;

(2) Have an indirect interest in the purchase of supplies, materials, equipment, or contractual services
for the county unless the person publicly acknowledges the interest. A person who is not a member of a
governing body and who is required to publicly acknowledge an indirect interest must do so by
reporting the interest to the office of the county mayor to be compiled into a list that must be maintained
as a public record. As used in this subdivision (a)(2), “indirect interest” means a contract in which a
person is interested, but not directly so, and includes contracts where the person is directly interested
and is the sole supplier of goods or services in the county; or

(3) Accept or receive, directly or indirectly, from a person, firm, or corporation to which a contract or
purchase order may be awarded, by rebate, gift, or otherwise, money or anything of value whatsoever,
or a promise, obligation, or contract for future reward or compensation.

(b) If an official subject to subsection (a) violates subsection (a), the official shall forfeit all compensation
earned by the official under the contract and is removed from office. An official removed from office
pursuant to this section is ineligible for the same or similar position for a period of ten (10) years following
the date of the violation.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 10; impl. am. Acts 1978, ch. 934, §§ 7, 36; T.C.A., § 5-1414; Acts 1989, ch. 591, § 18; 2022,
ch. 700, § 1.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 3’



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-115

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5 Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-115. Application to schools.

(a) This part shall not apply to county school funds for any purpose, the county board of education and the
county director of schools, unless approved by the commissioner of education.

{b) Upon request by a majority vote of the local board of education and with the approval of the
commissioner of education, applicability of this part as it applies to county school funds shall cease to be
effective.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 14a; T.C.A.,, § 5-1415; Acts 1982, ch. 809, § 1.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 30)



Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-14-116

Current through the 2023 First Extraordinary Session.

TN - Tennessee Code Annotated > Title 5§ Counties > Chapter 14 County Purchasing > Part 1
County Purchasing Law of 1957

5-14-116. Construction of part.

This part is not exclusive and shall not prevent the adoption of amendments to existing special or local
purchasing laws, or the enactment of special or local purchasing acts.

History

Acts 1957, ch. 312, § 15; T.C.A,, § 5-1416.

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
Copyright © 2024 by The State of Tennessee All rights reserved

End of Document

Roger Woolsey 3 3



